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Chairperson’s message

| am pleased to present the NSW Education Standards Authority (NESA) 2019-20 Annual Report.

At the beginning of 2020, | began my term as the Chairperson of the NESA Board. To be guiding an
organisation that delivers world-class syllabuses, assessment, teaching and learning is an honour and
privilege. This year NESA welcomed our new Chief Executive Officer, Paul Martin, who brings a wealth of
knowledge and teaching experience to NESA’s work during such a significant period of education reform in
NSW.

At the start of 2020, the NESA Board also welcomed six new members. These members bring skills,
knowledge and hands-on teaching experience, and a strong understanding and vision for education in NSW.
The Board has has worked collaboratively to tackle some incredibly challenging education issues during the
first six months of my leadership.

This reporting year has been filled with immense disruption, from the bushfire season to the COVID-19
pandemic, and these events have affected us all and have impacted the way education has been delivered
in 2019-20. The NESA Board and the NESA agency have worked hard to support NSW students through
these uncertainties, in partnership with each of the NSW school sectors and other key stakeholders.

At the centre of every decision the NESA Board makes is the health and wellbeing of students and teachers.
That is why we established a COVID-19 Response Committee, which | also chair. The Committee includes
representatives from all three school sectors, addressing developing and urgent issues related to the COVID-
19 pandemic. The Committee met regularly through 2020, and has played a vital role in responding quickly
to a range of COVID-19 issues to ensure the continuity of education in NSW. The Committee’s work is
ongoing as we head into the latter half of 2020 and 2021.

| extend my deepest thanks to NSW teachers, schools and parents and carers for the remarkable effort to
teach and learn remotely, and to support students in the face of such disruption and uncertainty. | commend
the remarkable effort and resilience of NSW’s senior secondary students heading into the 2020 HSC, in
particular those students from rural and remote areas and students with a disability.

Finalising the NSW Curriculum Review shaped much of NESA’s work during 2019-20, with the NSW
Government announcing the Final Report and its response on 23 June 2020. Implementing a once-in-a-
generation curriculum reform program will now be NESA’s central focus into 2020-21. This is a tremendous
opportunity for the NESA Board and agency to reform the NSW curriculum to help students achieve their
maximum potential, and prepare for life and work in the 215t century.

On behalf of the NESA Board, | would like to acknowledge Mr Tom Alegounarias as the outgoing Chair of
the NESA Board. | thank him for his many years of leadership, expertise and service to NESA and its
predecessor organisations. His long serving passion for education and policy making has left NESA well
positioned to continue its journey on improving the education outcomes of all NSW students.

Finally, | thank all of my colleagues on the NESA Board and its committees. Your expertise, dedication and
steady hands have been invaluable as we navigated the difficulties of 2019-20. | look forward to continuing
to work with you to support the brilliant teaching and learning that happens right across NSW into 2020-21.

iy

Professor Peter Shergold AC
Chairperson
NSW Education Standards Authority Board
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Chief Executive Officer’'s message

The 2019-20 reporting year has not been without its challenges for NSW students, teachers, schools,
parents and carers. The COVID-19 pandemic has changed the world as we know it, and reshaped education,
teaching and learning for many people. The health and wellbeing of every NSW student has always been at
the centre of NESA'’s work. I'm pleased that during the COVID-19 pandemic, NESA has not wavered from
this commitment.

In December 2019, the NSW Minister for Education and Early Childhood Learning announced my ongoing
appointment as NESA’s Chief Executive Officer (CEQ). This is a great privilege and responsbility to ensure
the continued educational attainment of all NSW students. In my first year as CEO, the agency has focused
on supporting the first comprehensive review of the NSW curriculum since 1989, while also responding to
the COVID-19 pandemic. At the same time, the Minister also announced new membership of the NESA
Board and appointed a new Chair, Professor Peter Shergold.

In March 2020, NESA’s new Board met for the first time, and established a COVID-19 Response Committee.
The Committee has worked to ensure the delivery of the Higher School Certificate (HSC) in 2020, in
particular the conduct of COVID-19 safe examinations. These necessary adjustments to the HSC will enable
NSW senior secondary students to continue to pursue their plans for work, study and life after school.

| also acknowledge the dedication that all NSW students showed to their education during a challenging and
unprecedented time. | also want to acknowledge our teachers and schools for their resilience in adapting to
remote learning at short notice during 2020, and transitioning back to face-to-face learning during the year.
Finally, | acknowledge all parents and carers for their invaluable role in supporting remote education of our
children during COVID-19.

In the midst of a global pandemic, Premier Berejiklian and Minister Mitchell announced the NSW
Government’s response to the NSW Curriculum Review reform final report ‘Nuturing wonder and igniting
passion’, by Professor Geoff Masters. NESA’s work over the next few years will focus on responding and
implementing the recommendations agreed by the NSW Government.

NESA has continued to support its Commitment to Aboriginal Education, established in 2017 with the NSW
Aboriginal Education Consultative Group (NSW AECG). This reporting year, NESA collaborated with the
Metropolitan Local Aboriginal Land Council to rename the NESA Boardroom to the Ngara room. ‘Ngara’ is a
Gadigal word meaning ‘to listen’. This is a significant milestone for NESA and solidifies our acknowledgement
of the Gadigal peoples as the traditional owners of the land on which NESA’s main office is located. This
milestone is also a deliverable in NESA’s Innovate Reconciliation Action Plan, which emphasises NESA’s
role in listening to Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander peoples, and the broader education community, to
drive its work across curriculum, assessment, teacher quality and school standards.

I would like to express my sincere thanks and appreciation to our key stakeholders across the NSW
education community. NESA looks towards your goodwill and commitment to education as we pursue
common educational goals.

Finally, | want to acknowledge the NESA Board, my executive team and the NESA agency for your continued
dedication, collaboration and hard work to improve the education outcomes of all NSW students.

Paul Martin
Chief Executive Officer
NSW Education Standards Authority
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1.1 About NESA

The NSW Education Standards Authority (NESA) was established on 1 January 2017 as an independent
statutory authority under the Education Standards Authority Act 2013 (NESA Act). NESA is a portfolio
responsibility of the NSW Minister for Education and Early Childhood Learning.

NESA brings together all four educational pillars — teacher quality, curriculum, assessment and school
standards — into a single education authority.

Making sure all children and young people in NSW leave school ready to take advantage of life’s
opportunities, and rise to its inevitable challenges, is at the heart of what we do at NESA. We support the
school sectors to deliver the best possible outcomes for students through high quality syllabuses,
assessment, teaching standards and school environments.

The NESA Act, the Education Act 1990 and the Teacher Accreditation Act 2004 outline NESA'’s functions
and responsibilities. Collectively, these acts constitute the NSW ‘education and teaching legislation’. The
education and teaching legislation encompasses NESA’s curriculum, teacher accreditation, examinations
and assessment and regulatory functions.

A NSW Public Service staff agency supports NESA in achieving its goals across all four educational pillars,
established under Schedule 1 Part 3 of the Government Sector Employment Act 2013.

Charter

Under the NESA Act, NESA is required to have a Charter, prepared by the NESA Board and approved by
the Minister, which outlines NESA’s mission and purpose, objectives and functions, values and operating
principles, and the role and functions of the Board.

The Board endorsed and the Minister approved the NESA Charter in May 2017. The complete NESA Charter
is at Appendix A.

The Charter outlines NESA’s key purpose, which is to bring about change to improve student learning and
wellbeing through:

= supporting the teaching profession to be the best it can be, through the Australian Professional
Standards for Teachers and quality assurance of professional learning and development

= developing world-class curriculum
= deepening the understanding and practice of assessing student knowledge and capabilities
= driving improvement in the quality assurance systems for schools.

NESA provides a forum for collaboration and works in partnership with students, parents, teachers,
principals, school sectors and other stakeholders on key educational matters in NSW, identifying issues and
producing policies that support the attainment of high education standards in NSW.

As an independent authority acting across school sectors, NESA identifies common and agreed standards
and benchmarks for the NSW school system by analysing data, research, and drawing upon the practical
experience, wisdom and professional judgement of teachers and schools.

NESA applies Australian and international research to implement policy that generates improvements in the
quality of teaching and student learning, and brings together expertise from within the school sectors,
universities and other professional groups to promote evidence-based analysis, teacher judgement and
policy within and on behalf of the teaching profession.
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Key functions

Curriculum and Assessment

Develop curriculum and curriculum support materials that articulate NSW educational standards at
each stage of learning from Kindergarten to Year 12

Develop high quality resources and provide expert guidance and support for teachers undertaking
assessment of the educational standards of NSW students from Kindergarten to Year 12

Examinations and Credentials

Develop and deliver HSC examinations and award the HSC to eligible students, including the HSC
Minimum Standard

Award the Record of School Achievement (RoSA) to eligible students who leave school before
completing the HSC

Implement and administer the National Assessment Program — Literacy and Numeracy (NAPLAN)
tests in NSW

Teaching Quality

Implement and oversee teacher accreditation processes against whole-of-career Australian
Professional Standards for Teachers and accredit NSW teachers against those standards

Assure the quality of Initial Teacher Education programs offered by providers against the Australian
Professional Standards for Teachers

Assure professional learning for beginning, returning and continuing teachers based on rigorous
professional standards

School Registration and Accreditation

Develop and implement school registration standards

Register non-government schools seeking to operate in NSW and accredit non-government schools to
present candidates for the ROSA and HSC

Provide advice to the Minister on the compliance by NSW government schools with requirements
similar to those required for the registration of non-government schools

Regulate teacher accreditation authorities for non-government schools and early childhood education
centres

Approve schools to deliver courses to overseas students

Administer the home schooling program under delegation from the Minister

NSW Aboriginal Education Consultative Group (AECG)

Provide corporate services support to the NSW Aboriginal Education Consultative Group Inc.

Australian Music Examinations Board NSW

Provide corporate services support to the Australian Music Examinations Board (NSW).
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The NESA Board

NESA includes a 12-member governing Board, which sets the strategic direction for NESA.

In December 2019, the NSW Government announced the appointment of Professor Peter Shergold as the
new Chairperson of the NESA Board, as well as five new Board members whose terms began on 1 January
2020. The new Board membership includes members with extensive hands-on teaching experience.

The NESA Board provides guidance about the nature of the activities NESA is expected to undertake, as
NESA fulfils its functions and executes the policy directions set by the Board and the Minister.

With the Minister's approval, the NESA Board has established several Committees to perform delegated
functions on behalf of the Board. These Committees provide advice and assistance to the Board and the

agency.

NESA Annual Report 2019-20

Professor Peter Shergold AC (Chairperson)
BA, MA, PhD, Hon. Litt.D., UNSW

Peter is an Australian academic, company director, and former public servant.
Peter has been the Chancellor of Western Sydney University since 2011.

Between February 2003 and February 2008, he was the Secretary of the
Department of the Prime Minister and Cabinet, and as such was the most senior
official in the Australian Public Service. He was elected a Fellow of the Academy
of Social Sciences (FASSA) in Australia in 2005 and Royal Society of New South
Wales (FRSN) in 2016.

In 1996, Peter was appointed a Member of the Order of Australia, and a
Companion of the Order in 2007 for service to the community as a significant
leader of changes and innovation in the public sector, particularly through the
development and implementation of a whole-of-government approach to policy
development and program delivery. Peter was a recipient of the Centenary Medal
in 2001.

Peter is also the Chair of the NESA Board COVID-19 Response Committee.

Ms Jenny Allum
BSc, GDipEd, MA, DLitt

Jenny Allum is the Head of SCEGGS Darlinghurst, a position she has held
since 1996. From 1991-1995 she was Manager of the Curriculum Branch of
the Board of Studies NSW, responsible for the development of all school
curriculum in the State from Kindergarten to Year 12.

Jenny was Chair of the NSW/ACT Branch of the Association of Heads of
Independent Schools from 2004 — 2005, and before that chaired the
Academic Committee of that Association. Jenny is currently its co-Chair.

She is a Fellow of the Australian College of Educators. In 2011, she was
awarded an honorary Doctor of Letters from the University of NSW.


https://educationstandards.nsw.edu.au/wps/portal/nesa/about/who-we-are/board-members

Jenny served on the NESA Board Curriculum Committee from 2017 to 2019.
She is also the Chair of the AIS Education Research Council and the Chair of
the AIS Advisory Committee.

Jenny is Chair of the NESA Board Assessment Committee and is a member
of the NESA Board COVID-19 Response Committee.

Mr Denis Fitzgerald
BA(Hons), DipEd

Denis Fitzgerald has taught in a range of public schools across NSW as a
classroom teacher and in a variety of promotion positions. He was a
foundation member of the NSW Board of Secondary Education, a member of
the Curriculum Corporation of Australia and a foundation member of the
Board of Studies NSW.

Denis has also been the President of the NSW Teachers Federation, the
Federal President of the Australian Education Union as well as a writer and
speaker on educational and social issues.

Denis was Director of Equity and Aboriginal Education in the NSW
Department of Education before returning to teaching. He has researched and
been published across a range of education issues. He was also the
foundation Director of the Centre for Professional Learning and the editor of
the Journal of Professional Learning.

Denis is Chair of NESA Board Curriculum Committee and is also a member of
the NESA Board COVID-19 Response Committee.

Ms Katherine Grace

BA(Hons), LLB(Hons), MPP

Katherine Grace is the General Counsel, Company Secretary and a member of
the Executive Committee for Stockland Group, a top 30 ASX listed entity.

In addition to her business role at Stockland, Ms Grace is also involved in
inclusive leadership, education and gender equity programs. Ms Grace is a
member of the Australian Institute of Company Directors, Chief Executive
Women and the Law Society of NSW.

Katherine is Chair of the NESA Board Finance Committee.
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Ms Jude Hayman
BEd

Jude Hayman was appointed the Principal of Griffith Public School in NSW’s
Riverina region in January 2010. This follows two years as Principal of
Tharbogang Public School, and Assistant and Relieving Principal appointments
at a series of rural and regional NSW government primary schools from 2003 to
2009.

In 2013, Jude was named one of two inaugural winners of the Harvard Club of
Australia Education Scholarship. This led her to complete a post-graduate
professional short course at Harvard University. Jude recently participated in a
bespoke course at University College London as a NSW DoE scholarship
recipient.

Jude is an active member of the NSW Primary Principals’ Association, she has
been the State Secretary since November 2018.

Jude is Chair of the NESA Board Special Education Committee.

Mr Gary Johnson
BA, DipEd

Gary Johnson is the Principal of Cherrybrook High School, a purpose-built
technology high school in Sydney’s northwest. Under Gary’s leadership,
Cherrybrook High School has developed a reputation as one of the most
innovative and successful comprehensive high schools in the state.

Gary was appointed Principal in 2003. Before this, Gary was Principal of
Jamison High School and Deputy Principal, Asquith Boys High School. Gary
was an HSC marker and HSC Marking Supervisor from 1992 to 1999.

Gary has served on the Curriculum Committee of the NESA Board since 2017.
From 2010 to 2016, Gary sat on the former Board of Studies, Teaching and
Educational Standards as a nominee of the Minister representing secondary
principals.

He is a life member of the NSW Secondary Principals’ Council.

Gary is Chair of the NESA Board Initial Teacher Education Committee.

Ms Christine Legg
BEd(EC), DipT(ECE)

Christine Legg was appointed to her role as CEO of KU Children’s Services in
April 2011. Chris is an experienced early childhood professional who began her
teaching career in South Australia, before moving back to Sydney.

During her career, Chris has worked in a variety of services, including long day
care and preschool, and has held a number of positions within KU including
Teacher, Director, Consultant, Trainer and several management roles.

Chris is currently a member of the NSW Early Childhood Education Advisory
Group and the Australian Government Early Childhood Education and Care
Reference Group. In addition, Chris is a member of the Macquarie University
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Department of Education Studies Advisory Board and the University of Notre
Dame School of Education Advisory Board.

Chris has been an active member of Early Childhood Australia (ECA) at both
the NSW and National level and is currently the National President of ECA.

Throughout her career, Chris has been actively engaged in promoting the value
of early childhood education, the rights of children, and improving the status
and standing of early childhood education as a profession.

Christine is a member of the NESA Board Finance Committee.

Mr Paul Martin
BA(Hons), DipEd

Paul Martin is the Chief Executive Officer of NESA. Prior to his appointment as
CEO in 2019, Paul was the Executive Director, Quality Teaching at NESA and

before that the Manager of Professional Learning and Initial Teacher Education
at the former NSW Institute of Teachers (NSWIT).

Paul played a key role in the implementation of the NSW Government’s Great
Teaching, Inspired Learning initiative with both NESA and the NSWIT, and
previously been a policy advisor for NSW and Australian governments.

Paul was previously an English and History Teacher.

Paul is a member of the NESA Board COVID-19 Response Committee.

Mr Dallas Mclnerney
BA, LLB, MPP

Dallas Mclnerney was appointed Chief Executive Officer of Catholic Schools
NSW (CSNSW) in August 2017. CSNSW is the representative body of the
state’s almost 600 Catholic schools and their owners, and is also the system
authority for the approximately 550 NSW Catholic diocesan schools, with
responsibility for their funding, distribution, compliance and governance.

Previously, Dallas spent two decades in financial regulation and public policy
across the government and private sectors.

Dallas holds degrees in Arts and Law and is a Master of Public Policy. He is a
graduate of the University of Sydney and the University of New England and
completed much of his schooling in southern Sydney and central western NSW.

Dallas is a member of the NESA Board COVID-19 Response Committee.

Dr Geoffrey Newcombe AM
BSc, DipEd, MEdAdmin, PhD, GAICD

Dr Geoff Newcombe was appointed Chief Executive of the Association of
Independent Schools of NSW in 2005. He has had extensive experience in
school management and finance having held positions of Head and Business
Manager in a number of independent schools.

Dr Newcombe has lectured in the Master of Education program at the
University of New South Wales and was appointed Adjunct Associate Professor
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in the School of Education at the University.

He is a Director of the Non-Government Schools Superannuation Fund (NGS
Super) and serves on the Funds HR Committee and Investment Committee
and has recently been appointed Deputy Chair of the Board.

In 2009 he was appointed to the Board of the Australian Institute of Teaching
and School Leadership (AITSL) and has served on a humber of committees
including Governance, Finance and Audit and Risk. He retired from the Board
in June 2018.

Dr Newcombe was appointed to the NSW Government’'s Study NSW
International Education Advisory Board in 2014 and to the Board of the NSW
Education Standards Authority (NESA) in January 2017.

Dr Newcombe is currently a member of the Board of Dymocks Children’s
Charities and a member of the Audit and Risk Committee of the Department of
Education, Western Australia.

In December 2018 he was appointed to the Board of the Australian Council for
Educational Research (ACER) and now chairs the Finance and Audit
Committee.

In June 2017, he was appointed a Member of the Order of Australia (AM) for
service to education and educational organisations, in particular the
Independent School Sector.

In November 2019, he received the NSW Sir Harold Wyndham Medal, the
highest award given by the Australian College of Educators NSW.

Geoff is a member of the NESA Board COVD-19 Response Committee and the
Finance Committee.

Mr Mark Northam

BA, DipEd, MEdStud

Mark Northam is the Secretary of the NSW/ACT Independent Education Union
(IEU).

He began his career in education as an English and History teacher at Coolah
Central School. Between 1982 and 2000, he taught at Campbelltown High
School, St Anne’s High School Adamstown, and held the position of Assistant
Principal at St Clare’s High School Taree and Acting Assistant Principal at St
Francis Xavier's Hamilton.

Mark chaired the Special Education Committee of the NESA Board from 2017
to 2019.
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Mr Mark Scott AO
BA, DipEd, MA(Syd), MPubAdmin (Harv)

Mark Scott is Secretary of the NSW Department of Education after a decade as
Managing Director of the ABC. Mr Scott was formerly a teacher at St Andrews’
Cathedral School before moving to senior roles working for two education
ministers.

Following completion of a Masters in Public Administration at Harvard
University, Mr Scott joined Fairfax Media as a journalist, rising to senior editorial
and executive roles before moving to the ABC.

Mark is a member of the NESA Board COVID-19 Response Committee.

Mr Nathan Towney
BTeach, BHIthPhyEd

Nathan is a proud Wiradjuri man from Wellington in NSW and an education
leader. He holds a Bachelor of Teaching and a Bachelor of Health and
Physical Education from The University of Newcastle.

Nathan was appointed as the Pro Vice-Chancellor Indigenous, Strategy and
Leadership in 2019, following a four-year tenure as the Principal of Newcastle
High School.

Nathan is Chair of the NESA Board Aboriginal Education Committee.

Dr Anne Wenham
BA, DipEd, MEd, PhD, MTheo

Dr Anne Wenham resigned from her position as Head of College of St
Stanislaus’ College, Bathurst at the conclusion of 2019. Dr Wenham was
appointed in 2012 as the first woman ever to occupy the role.

In 2006, Anne was appointed as Director of Catholic Schools for the Diocese of
Lismore (following a one year period as Assistant Director), following periods as
the Principal of St Columba’s High School, Springwood and Caroline Chisholm
College, Glenmore Park.

Before this, she was an Assistant Principal in two schools in the Sydney
Archdiocese before taking two Principal appointments with the Diocese of
Parramatta.

Dr Wenham currently holds positions on the Board of NESA and the Board of
St Patrick’s College Strathfield and has recently been appointed as Special
Adviser within Catholic Schools NSW on a casual basis, to assist with
responses to COVID-19.

Anne is Chair of the NESA Board School Registration Committee.
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1.2 Organisational structure

NESA is supported by the NESA Staff Agency, which is established under Schedule 1 Part 3 of the
Government Sector Employment Act 2013.

NESA'’s Executive structure at 30 June 2020 is at Figure 1.1. A detailed description of NESA’s functions is
available on the NESA website.

Figure 1.1 NSW Education Standards Authority organisational structure (at 30 June 2020)

MINISTER |
1 | Chairperson
BOARD
PETER SHERGOLD
Chief Executive Officer
PAUL MARTIN

Executive Director, Assessment
Standards

SOFIA KESIDOU

Executive Director, Quality Teaching

LYN KIRKBY

Executive Director, Strategy and
Capability

PAUL DANIELL

Executive Director, Corporate
Govemance and School Standards

DAVID MURPHY

Executive Director, Cumculum
Standards

LYNDALL FOSTER
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NESA’s Executive Leadership Team

Table 1.1

Position

Members of the NSW Education Standards Authority Executive during the 2019-20
reporting year

Qualifications

Mr Paul Martin

Chief Executive Officer
(Acting to 10 December 2019)

BA(Hons), DipEd

Mr Paul Daniell

Executive Director, Strategy and
Capability

BA, PGDipArts, MSc

Dr Sofia Kesidou

Executive Director, Curriculum and
Assessment Standards

BSc(Hons), PhD

Ms Lyn Kirkby

Executive Director, Quality Teaching
(Acting to 23 June 2020)

BA, DipEd, MEd(Lead)

Mr David Murphy
(to 3 July 2020)

Executive Director, Corporate
Governance and School Standards

BBus(Acc/Econ), MALP, FCPA,
FGIA

Ms Lyndall Foster
(to 3 July 2020)

Executive Director, Curriculum
Standards

BEd

NESA Annual Report 2019-20
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1.3 NESA'’s response to the COVID-19 pandemic

Figure 1.2 Key statistics relating to NESA’s response to the COVID-19 pandemic (in 2019-20)

Key statistics

to 30 June 2020

= \

o I
COVID-19 Response Committee of the More than 400,000 views of
NESA Board established COVID-19 pages on the NESA
website

Around 150,000 unique visitors to the More than 1,100 downloads of
NESA website #StayHealthyHSC campaign material

S
MM
Around 3,000 mentions on social media

(using NESA’'s COVID-19 hashtags)
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Support for students, parents, teachers and schools

In February 2020, as social distancing requirements related to the COVID-19 pandemic came into effect in
NSW, NESA established dedicated COVID-19 phone and email support lines. Throughout the pandemic,
NESA staff have managed a strong flow of enquiries from teachers, school leaders, parents and students
regarding a range of issues associated with educational continuity in NSW.

Students, teachers, schools, and parents will continue to be able to use these support lines for as long as
necessary into the 2020-21 reporting year.
Establishing the COVID-19 Response Committee

In March 2020, the NSW Minister for Education and Early Childhood Learning approved the NESA Board’s
establishment of a COVID-19 Response Committee.

The COVID-19 Response Committee met five times during the reporting year. The Committee’s role is to
address promptly any issues related to COVID-19 that relate to NESA’s work.

The COVID-19 Response Committee made a series of decisions about the 2020 NSW Higher School
Certificate and the Kindergarten to Year 10 (K—10) curriculum during the coronavirus pandemic. All decisions
taken by the COVID-19 Response Committee aim to protect the health and safety of students, parents and
teachers and ensure the continuity of education through the pandemic.

The COVID-19 Response Committee comprises:

= Professor Peter Shergold, Chair, NESA Board

= Mark Scott, Secretary, NSW Department of Education

= Dallas Mclnerney, CEO, Catholic Schools NSW

= Dr Geoff Newcombe, CEO, Association of Independent Schools NSW
= Jenny Allum, Chair, NESA Assessment Committee

= Denis Fitzgerald, Chair, NESA Curriculum Committee

= Paul Martin, CEO, NESA

Some of the key decisions taken by the Committee included:

= HSC exams going ahead in 2020, with a commitment to providing clear and regular advice about the
HSC as the COVID-19 pandemic continued

= increasing the number of times Year 12 students yet to meet the HSC minimum standard could sit the
minimum standard online tests (up to six times in 2020)

= making K—10 curriculum requirements more flexible, so that principals and school sectors could decide
which syllabus outcomes and content they taught and assessed

= ensuring that teacher accreditation would not be put at risk. Extensions were available for teachers
whose accreditation was overdue or had upcoming deadlines during the COVID-19 pandemic

= NESA continuing to assess home schooling registration applications

= extending school annual report publication and submission dates and governance (part of the school
inspections and monitoring system)

= professional learning dates (part of the school inspections and monitoring system).

The COVID-19 Response Committee made these decisions in line with published advice from the Australian
Health Protection Principal Committee (AHPPC), which is supported by NSW Health.

NESA Annual Report 2019-20 18


https://educationstandards.nsw.edu.au/wps/portal/nesa/covid-19/coronavirus-advice/our-response-committee

The 2021 HSC program is also within the scope of COVID-19 Response Committee decisions, as
adjustments may be required for the 2020 Year 11 cohort (most of whom will sit the HSC in 2021).

Detailed information about the COVID-19 Response Committee and other NESA decisions and actions
undertaken in response to the pandemic are available on the COVID-19 advice section of the NESA website.

#StayHealthyHSC Campaign
NESA is collaborating with mental health organisation ReachOut, to deliver the #StayHealthyHSC campaign.

Any ‘normal’ HSC year requires dedication, focus, and support of family and friends. The COVID-19
pandemic has increased stress for many students. NESA is committed to ensuring all students’ wellbeing
through the pandemic.

The #StayHealthyHSC campaign provides support to all HSC students in response to the COVID-19 event.
The campaign provides HSC:

= news and updates

= guidance

= social media graphics

* posters

= messages from experts, teachers, parents, students and inspiring spokespeople.

More information about the #StayHealthyHSC campaign is available on the NESA website.

Changes to NAPLAN in 2020

In March 2020, Education Council decided to cancel NAPLAN testing for 2020. This decision sought to help
principals, teachers and school staff focus on student learning during the COVID-19 pandemic. As the NSW
NAPLAN test administration authority, NESA was responsible for implementing this decision in NSW.

More information about NESA'’s role and responsibilities in relation to NAPLAN is available in section 5 of
this report.
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1.4 Delivering on the 2020 Statement of Expectations

Under Division 2 Section 10 of the NESA Act, the “Minister may, in a Statement of Expectations issued
annually to the Authority, determine priorities in relation to the exercise by the Authority of its functions.”

In March 2020, the Minister for Education and Early Childhood Learning issued a Statement of Expectations
to the NESA Board for the 2020 calendar year. NESA made significant progress on a range of key strategic
priorities during the reporting year, despite the impact of COVID-19. NESA will continue delivering on each
of the priorities outlined in the 2020 Statement of Expectations into the 2020-21 reporting year.

Objective 1: Finalise and deliver the NSW Curriculum Review

To support Professor Geoff Masters, as Review Lead, to finalise the NSW Curriculum Review and
deliver a final report to the NSW Government by mid-2020. As part of this process, NESA should
also provide advice to the NSW Government in relation to implementation of the Review’s
recommendations.

Progress update
On 23 June 2020, the NSW Government announced the release of the NSW Curriculum Review final report.

The NSW Government response to the NSW Curriculum Review outlines an ambitious program for
streamlining and strengthening what is taught in our schools over the next four years. The reforms include:

= building strong foundations for future learning by 2022 with new English and Mathematics syllabuses for
Kindergarten to Year 2

= more time for teaching by 2022 by reducing the hours teachers spend on extra-curricular topics and
issues and compliance requirements

= strengthening post school pathways by 2022 with new learning areas for Years 11 and 12 that clearly
link learning to future employment and study options

= a new curriculum from 2024 with new syllabuses focused on what is essential to know and do in early
and middle years of schooling, and key learning areas in the senior years.

Delivering on the NSW Government’s priorities for curriculum reform will be a key priority for the NESA Board
into 2020-21.

NESA has established a dedicated website for curriculum reform and will regularly publish progress updates
and advice about opportunities for the NSW community to get involved with the reform journey into the 2020-
21 reporting year.

More information about the NSW Curriculum Review and reform program is on page 40.
Objective 2: To develop strategies to support the Premier’s Priority of
‘Government made easy’

These strategies should specifically focus on improving the experience of students, teachers and
schools accessing NESA services.

In doing this, NESA should:

= streamline NESA regulatory processes and requirements, aligning with school sector requirements
where relevant

= work with other NSW Government agencies to identify opportunities for strategic alignment and
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improvements to service delivery

= streamline teacher accreditation application and maintenance processes by maximising the use of digital
technologies, focusing on increasing the number of Highly Accomplished and Lead Teachers in NSW.

Progress update

During 2019-20, NESA progressed several initiatives within a significant program of work to support the
‘Government made easy’ Premier’s Priority.

NESA'’s School Centric Delivery Approach embeds a set of principles that will improve how we work with,
and support, NSW schools. It establishes a common framework for delivering projects, allowing NESA to
streamline and align processes with the NSW school sectors.

The Approach aims to reduce the administrative burden placed on schools by NESA, so they can focus on
their students’ teaching and learning. Key principles of NESA’s School Centric Delivery Approach include:

= working alongside schools to understand their context and how they implement NESA’s regulatory
requirements

= streamlining and aligning administrative processes with each of the school sector authorities
= releasing changes and supporting software only when they are ready

= coordinating with sector authorities on changes being rolled out

= reducing the volume of administrative tasks on schools.

Into 202021, NESA will continue collaborating with other NSW Government agencies to improve the way
teachers, students, parents and other school staff experience NESA programs and services. This includes
continuing to investigate possible improvements to teacher accreditation fee payment, Working With
Children Check processes, and other data sharing initiatives.

Objective 3:  To deliver the Higher School Certificate

To continue to deliver the world-class Higher School Certificate (HSC). In doing so, NESA should
consider how the outcomes of the NSW Curriculum Review and other relevant state and national
reviews relate to the future delivery of the HSC.

Progress update

NESA has announced several changes to the HSC in 2020, reflecting the impact of COVID-19 on delivering
the HSC while ensuring the safety of students, teachers and staff administering the HSC.

HSC exams are scheduled to be held as planned in 2020 (with a short additional study period before the
start of the exam period), with necessary adjustments made in response to social distancing requirements
to allow the full range of HSC exams to proceed.

Decisions taken by NESA and the COVID-19 Response Committee will ensure that HSC results are released
as planned in 2020. This will allow students to plan for their 2021 post-school destinations (such as further
study or employment).

Information about the 2020 HSC program, including adjustments made to the delivery of the HSC in response
to COVID-19, is available on the NESA website.

NESA will consider how the outcomes of the NSW Curriculum Review relate to the future delivery of the
HSC as the curriculum reform program progresses into the 2020-21 reporting year.
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1.5 NESA’s Commitment to Aboriginal Education

In 2019-20, NESA continued its reconciliation journey through its Commitment to Aboriginal Education,
developed in partnership with the NSW Aboriginal Education Consultative Group (AECG) Inc. NESA is
committed to:

= the continued growth in educational attainment of Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander children and
young people

= increasing the understanding of Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander knowledge, histories and cultures
for all students.

NESA’s Commitment to Aboriginal Education upholds that the agency sustains genuine partnerships with:
= Aboriginal communities

= government departments

= sectors
= schools
= teachers

to drive improved educational outcomes for Aboriginal children and young people. NESA realises its
Commitment to Aboriginal Education through a number of initiatives, including:

Innovate Reconciliation Action Plan (RAP)

NESA recognises that in order to ensure the education outcomes of Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander
children and young people, change needs to start from within.

NESA'’s Innovate RAP is a practical framework that drives reconciliation within the NESA agency and across
all NESA’s work. Its vision is to change the way NESA conducts its work, to change how NSW supports
education and reconciliation.

During the reporting year, NESA announced that 22 staff members (both Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander
peoples and non-Indigenous Australians) would form NESA’'s RAP Champion Implementation team.
Reconciliation champions play a vital role in supporting positive two-way relationships built on trust and
respect between Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander and non-Indigenous staff. They oversee activities to
ensure NESA meets its RAP deliverables through collaboration with key staff across the agency.

Aboriginal procurement

In 2019-20, NESA engaged several Aboriginal-owned and Supply Nation certified businesses to support
Aboriginal economic participation in NSW and the NSW Government’s Aboriginal Procurement Policy.

NESA commissioned Supply Nation certified business, Mate Sullivan Business Ventures, and Aboriginal
artist Danielle Mate Sullivan to visually represent NESA’s reconciliation journey through contemporary art.
In the artwork, the circles represent the different schools and communities that NESA engages with on a
day-to-day basis. Within each circle there are details that demonstrate the complexities in each relationship,
and the varying colours highlight that they are individual and diverse. The two white dots at the centre focus
attention on NESA's reconciliation goals:

= continual growth in attainment levels of Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander students

= greater understanding of Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander knowledge, histories and cultures for all
students.
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NESA engaged Dreamtime Tuka for corporate catering, to enhance reconciliation through the broadening of
meal selection to include native Australian ingredients. Dreamtime Tuka is an Australian native foods supplier
specialising in bush food to share cultural knowledge with the Australian community.

In combination with NESA'’s reconciliation journey artwork, NESA engaged Yamari Ochre Signs to produce
business signage.

Cultural inclusion training

NESA recognises that it needs strong cultural capabilities to improve the educational outcomes of Aboriginal
and Torres Strait Islander children and young people and to operate amidst cultural diversity.

During 2019-20, NESA engaged PRISMA Cross Cultural Consultants to deliver two cultural inclusion
workshops to NESA staff. Each workshop focused on building inclusive, innovative and high-performance
staff through recognising bias and developing proactive ways to encourage cultural inclusivity.

NESA Reconciliation project

In celebrating the 2019 NAIDOC week theme “Voice, Treaty, Truth, Let’'s work together for a shared future’,
NESA engaged Mate Sullivan Business Ventures to run a Mates Puzzles workshop. The Mates Puzzles
motto is ‘Sharing Stories, Connecting People; One puzzle piece at a time’.

Workshop participants illustrated their personal journey on an individual puzzle piece, and connecting the
pieces together, enabled staff to share their contribution to reconciliation at NESA.

Cross-agency partnership with the Department of Communities and Justice

NESA developed a new partnership with the NSW Department of Communities and Justice to support the
inclusion of teachers, in particular Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander teachers, to become witness
intermediaries as part of the Child Sexual Offence Evidence Program. This program helps child victims of
sexual offences engage with the criminal justice system.

Within the scope of NESA’s partnership in the program, two NESA staff members (Aboriginal and non-
Indigenous Australian) were nominated to the program’s Witness Intermediary Registration Panel (WIRP).

Enhancing Professional Practice through Community Feedback — professional
development course

During 2019-20, NESA developed a registered professional development (PD) course entitled ‘Enhancing
Professional Practice through Community Feedback’.

The course responds to community feedback on NESA’s Commitment to Aboriginal Education. It offers
practical strategies for teachers and schools to support continual growth in attainment levels, and enhanced
relationships between schools and Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander students, parents, carers and
extended Community, and communities.

Support for potential providers of NESA registered professional development

NESA continued to provide tailored support to Aboriginal organisations intending to apply for endorsement
as a NESA registered professional development provider. This included end-to-end support in the potential
provider application process.

Professional Learning Commissioning Program
NESA collaborated with the NSW AECG in Terms 3 and 4 of the 2019 school year to develop and deliver a
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series of NESA-registered PD courses across regional and metropolitan NSW. The courses offered by the
NSW AECG as part of the NESA Commissioning Program were:

= Connecting to Country
= Engaging with Local Aboriginal Communities
= Healthy Culture, Healthy Country.

Local Aboriginal Education Consultative Groups delivered these courses on Country. More information
about the Commissioning Program courses delivered in partnership with the NSW AECG is at Appendix H.
The NSW AECG sought feedback from teachers on their participation in the commissioning program and
will report on outcomes in the 2020-21 annual report.

National Reconciliation Week

NESA supported National Reconciliation Week by screening the observational feature documentary In My
Blood It Runs. Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, NESA staff had the opportunity to register and view the film
remotely, which revealed some of the challenges experienced in Aboriginal education and rural and remote
Aboriginal communities.

Aboriginal education in the curriculum
NESA develops syllabuses and support material related to:

= Aboriginal Studies
= Aboriginal Languages
= Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander histories and cultures cross-curriculum content.

Since 2015, NESA has incorporated Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander histories and cultures in NSW
syllabuses as a cross-curriculum priority. The representation of Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander histories
and cultures has been improved in more than 60 new or amended syllabuses. NESA has developed a range
of support materials across Kindergarten to Year 12 to support the implementation of this learning across
the curriculum area.

NESA syllabuses and curriculum support material acknowledges the importance of prior learning and
promotes recognition of the diversity of learners, and the importance of equity and inclusiveness.

Aboriginal Languages

NSW schools can deliver Aboriginal Languages from Kindergarten to Year 12 through the Abariginal
Languages K—10 Syllabus and the Aboriginal Languages Stage 6 Content Endorsed Course (CEC)
Syllabus.

During 2019-20, NESA progressed a review of the Aboriginal Languages K—10 Syllabus to incorporate
aspects of the Australian Curriculum. NESA began public consultation on the draft syllabus outcomes and
content in September 2020, which will close in December 2020.

Feedback received through consultation will inform the development of the new syllabus, which will be
developed as part of the NSW curriculum reform program. NESA will report on the outcomes of this
consultation in the 2020-21 annual report.

Aboriginal Studies

NSW schools can offer Aboriginal Studies from Years 7 to 12 through the Aboriginal Studies Years 7-10
Syllabus and the Aboriginal Studies Stage 6 Syllabus.
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In 2019-20, NESA completed updates to the Aboriginal Studies Years 7—10 Syllabus. During 2020, schools
continued to deliver the current syllabus, while familiarising themselves with the new syllabus.
Implementation of the new syllabus will commence from Term 1, 2021.

Supporting Aboriginal education

NESA works closely with key stakeholder bodies such as the NSW AECG Inc. and other regional and local
bodies. For information about the NSW AECG Inc., see Appendix H.

NESA attends, participates in and facilitates meetings and workshops in support of its own projects as well
as joint initiatives with other government and regional agencies. NESA has contributed to inter-agency
reports such as the Unfinished Business: Second Progress Report and the NSW Government Response to
the Opportunity, Choice, Healing, Responsibility and Empowerment (OCHRE) Evaluation: Stage 1 Final
Report.

NESA provides opportunities for employment of Aboriginal teachers, education officers and community
members to work on NESA projects.

The NESA Aboriginal Education Committee (AEC) met three times during the reporting period. The AEC
advises the NESA Board about Aboriginal education, including issues and content related to teaching,
curriculum and assessment.
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2.1 Quality teaching

Figure 2.1 NESA quality teaching activity — key statistics 2019-20
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2.2 Key achievements in quality teaching

Dedicated unit in Aboriginal education in all NSW Initial Teacher
Education programs

NSW is the first state in Australia to introduce a requirement for all initial teacher education (ITE) programs
to include a dedicated unit of study in Aboriginal Education. The Minister announced this requirement in
August 2019, following extensive consultation with the NSW Aboriginal Education Consultative Group Inc.
(NSW AECG), the NSW Council of Deans of Education, key education and ITE stakeholders, NSW
education unions, and each of the NSW schooling sectors.

This dedicated unit of Aboriginal Education requirement acknowledges the crucial role that teachers have in
meeting the needs of Aboriginal students, but also ensuring that all NSW students have a sound
understanding of Aboriginal culture and histories.

From January 2021, all NSW ITE programs will be required to include a dedicated unit of Aboriginal
Education to meet ITE accreditation requirements.

Proposed legislative amendments to the Teacher Accreditation Act 2004

The National Review of Teacher Registration — One Teaching Profession: Teacher Registration in
Australia requires NESA to develop policy on suitability to teach, including definitions of ‘fit and proper
persons’. This requirement emerges from the Royal Commission into Institutional Responses to Child
Sexual Abuse.

The NSW Government accepted all the Royal Commission recommendations related to school education in
NSW. During 2019-20, NESA worked in partnership with other NSW Government agencies to scope possible
future amendments to the Teacher Accreditation Act 2004 to give effect to Royal Commission
recommendations. This work will continue into the 2020-21 reporting year.

Highly Accomplished and Lead Teacher Policy

During 2019-20, NESA developed a revised Highly Accomplished and Lead Teacher policy in response to
the NSW Auditor-General's Report ‘Ensuring teaching quality in NSW public schools’ and Dr Bruce
Mowbray’s independent review into NESA’s quality assurance processes.

The revised policy aims to streamline the process for teachers to apply for accreditation at the Highly
Accomplished and Lead Teacher accreditation levels and provide better support to teachers and application
assessors.

NESA consulted with a range of stakeholders across the NSW education community during 2019-20 on the
directions for a revised policy. The NESA Board discussed a draft revised policy in June 2020. NESA will
implement the revised policy in the 2020-21 reporting year.

The Australian Professional Standards for Teachers

The Australian Professional Standards for Teachers apply to all NSW teachers, and describe what
teachers need to know and do at four career stages. NESA implements the standards across its
accreditation processes for all NSW teachers, and each year administers a range of programs supporting
teachers to develop their practice against the Standards.

Initial teacher education and accreditation

Under the NSW education and teaching legislation, NESA’s regulatory function ensures all NSW Initial
Teacher Education (ITE) programs undergo a rigorous accreditation process.
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The Initial Teacher Education Committee (ITEC) of the NESA Board oversees the accreditation of all ITE
programs in NSW.

Provisional and conditional accreditation of teachers in NSW

All teachers require accreditation with NESA to work in a NSW school or centre-based early childhood
service. Provisional and Conditional accreditation are the beginning stages of teacher accreditation.

Maintaining accreditation at Proficient, Highly Accomplished and Lead Teacher

Information about maintaining Proficient Teacher, Highly Accomplished and Lead Teacher accreditation is
available online.

Proficient Teacher accreditation is a mandatory, formative and developmental process. Maintenance of
accreditation ensures that all NSW teachers continue to develop their practice and demonstrate that they
continue to meet the Proficient Teacher accreditation requirements.

Voluntary Highly Accomplished and Lead Teacher accreditation

Accreditation at Highly Accomplished and Lead Teacher levels is voluntary and recognises highly effective,
innovative and exemplary teaching practice.

Applications are open to all NSW Proficient Teachers who meet the Highly Accomplished and Lead
Teacher accreditation eligibility requirements. Application fees apply.

Under the NSW teaching legislation, non-school/service based teacher accreditation is voluntary for
teachers employed in teaching-related roles.

Working with Children Check

A Working with Children Check clearance is a condition of accreditation and requires renewal every five
years. NESA and employers must verify all clearances with the NSW Office of the Children’s Guardian.
NESA ensures teachers can update their clearance as required.

Figure 2.2 Teacher accreditation key statistics, 2019-20

In the 2019-20 reporting year:

3,727 teachers completed their first maintenance of accreditation period

3,747 teachers completed their second (or more) maintenance of accreditation period

41 Highly Accomplished and Lead Teacher applications were considered by the Moderating and
Consistency Committee

19 teachers were newly-accredited at Highly Accomplished Teacher

11 teachers were newly-accredited at Lead Teacher
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Professional learning

NESA is responsible for the endorsement and review of professional development providers who provide
high quality registered professional development (PD) for accredited teachers in NSW.

Figure 2.3 Professional learning key statistics, 2019-20

In the 2019-20 reporting year:

120 newly-endorsed professional development providers

61 endorsed professional development providers that broadened their endorsement (due to COVID-19
restricting face-to-face delivery)

19 endorsed professional development provider audits completed

52 professional development providers renewed (where endorsement was due for renewal)

806 NESA-endorsed professional development providers in total

Revocation, suspension and voluntary cancellation of accreditation

NESA has sole authority to revoke or suspend a teacher’s accreditation. Teachers may have their
accreditation revoked or suspended for:

= misconduct
= failing to comply with a condition of their accreditation and/or
= failing to meet the Standards under the TA Act.

A teacher may also voluntarily cancel their accreditation.

During the 2019-20 reporting year, an Interim Revocation, Suspension and Voluntary Cancellation of
Accreditation Policy came into effect. The NESA Board approved the interim policy in June 2019.

Table 2.1 Number of teachers whose accreditation was revoked or suspended for misconduct
(under section 24 of the Teacher Accreditation Act 2004) during 2019-20

Accreditation action Number of teachers
Accreditation revoked 28
Accreditation suspended 64
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Table 2.2 Number of teachers whose accreditation was revoked or suspended for not obtaining
a Working with Children Check clearance (under section 25A of the Teacher
Accreditation Act 2004) during 2019-20

Accreditation action Number of teachers
Accreditation revoked 17
Accreditation suspended 1,401*

* Of the 1,401 teachers suspended during 2019-20, 462 teachers had their suspension lifted once they provided a Working with
Children Check clearance. The remaining teachers were no longer teaching in NSW. They either retired, were teaching interstate or
overseas, or were no longer working as a teacher.

Table 2.3 Number of teachers who applied to voluntarily cancel their accreditation (under
section 25E of the Teacher Accreditation Act 2004) during 2019-20

Accreditation action Number of teachers

Voluntary cancellation of 1,658
accreditation

Internal reviews to suspend or revoke teacher accreditation

In 2017, NESA became solely responsible for decisions to suspend or revoke the accreditation of teachers
in NSW. If a decision to suspend or revoke a teacher’s accreditation is made, the teacher may seek an
internal review of the decision. An Inspector from NESA’s School Registration and Accreditation directorate
conducts this review.

In 2019-20, NESA inspectors conducted three internal reviews of decisions to suspend a teacher’s
accreditation. Two decisions were upheld and one decision was overturned.

NSW Civil and Administrative Tribunal

If a teacher appeals the outcome of an internal review decision to suspend or revoke teacher accreditation,
the teacher may appeal to the NSW Civil and Administrative Tribunal.

There were zero appeals of this type in 2019-20.

NESA Annual Report 2019-20 30



3.1 School registration and accreditation

Responsibilities

The Education Act 1990, Education Standards Authority Act 2013 and Teacher Accreditation Act 2004
provide for NESA'’s responsibilities in relation to school and teacher registration and accreditation, teacher
accreditation authority (TAA) regulation, school providers delivering courses to overseas students, and home
schooling registration.

NESA'’s school registration functions

The NESA Board’s School Registration Committee makes recommendations to the Minister regarding the
registration of schools. The Committee also makes decisions about the accreditation of schools, the
approval of TAAs and school providers and the recognition of schools from outside NSW.

Recommendations and decisions of the Committee are based on the findings of NESA Inspectors or on the
advice of registration systems. The administration of these functions is based on the requirements, and
evidence of compliance, described in:

= |ndividual non-government schools — Reqistered and Accredited Individual Non-government Schools

(NSW) Manual

= Systemic non-government schools — Registration Systems and Member Non-government Schools
(NSW) Manual

= Government schooling system — Registration Process for the NSW Government Schooling System
Manual

= TAAs — Guidelines for the Requlation of Teacher Accreditation Authorities for Non-government Schools
and Early Childhood Education Centres

= School providers — Guidelines for Approved NSW School Providers Delivering Courses to Overseas
Students

= Schools from outside NSW — Manual for the recognition of schools outside NSW to present candidates
for the NSW Record of School Achievement and/or Higher School Certificate.

Through NESA’s ongoing regulatory function, NESA Inspectors implement the annual inspection program
for schools and schooling systems by:

= inspecting schools, TAAs and school providers seeking registration, accreditation and/or approval

= assessing applications for proposed new schools, new Year levels and/or approval as a new TAA or
school provider

= monitoring schools, TAAs and school providers where concerns about compliance have been identified

= monitoring internal assurance procedures implemented by the government and non-government
schooling systems to monitor compliance of their member schools

= assessing applications for recognition to enter candidates for the award of the Record of School
Achievement and/or Higher School Certificate

= assessing applications for home schooling registration

= investigating compliance concerns raised by complainants and other sources.

Impact of COVID-19 on the 2019-20 inspection program

In mid-March 2020, in response to the COVID-19 pandemic, NESA amended its inspection program based
on a risk approach. Some inspections were re-scheduled until later in 2020. NESA reviewed applications
from some schools by documentation only.

Where relevant, NESA aligned periods of approval for TAAs and school providers to school registration.
NESA also cancelled the remaining inspections of schools selected randomly.
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Figure 3.1 NESA school registration 2019-20 inspection program, key statistics

The 2019-20 inspection program included:

180 inspections of individual non-government schools

Monitoring the 12 non-government school registration systems, in relation to internal assurance
mechanisms

Inspections of 5 non-government and 12 government schools, selected randomly

111 inspections of Teacher Accreditation Authorities

47 inspections of school providers*

*In this context, a registered school provider refers to the legal entity approved by NESA and listed on the Commonwealth Register of Institutions
and Courses for Overseas Students (CRICOS). These School Providers have approval to deliver courses to overseas students who enter Australia
on a student visa.

The inspection program includes monitoring the government schooling system. NESA provides advice to the
Minister and the Secretary on government schools’ compliance with requirements similar to those that apply
to non-government schools.

NESA also completed two investigations arising from complaints relating to the compliance of non-
government schools.

Detailed statistics relating to the 2019-20 inspection program and the Committee’s recommendations and
decisions are at Tables 3.1 t0 3.7.

Documentation to support applications

The breadth and depth of the particular supporting materials required to be uploaded by individual non-
government schools to online applications for renewal of registration and accreditation in 2019—-20 was based
on an assessment of risk.

Schools assessed as lower risk provided supporting materials demonstrating a basic level of assurance
while schools with higher risk indicators were required to submit materials providing a higher level of
assurance about compliance.

Amendments to manuals and guidelines

During 2018 and 2019, NESA conducted a review of the risk-based approach to identify where refinements
can be made. During 2019-20, following consultation with stakeholders, NESA amended the registration
manuals for non-government schools and the government schooling system in relation to refining the
evidence of compliance in the manuals from a risk perspective. This amendment was completed in
September 2019.

In March 2020, the manuals were amended as a result of the introduction of the Children’s Guardian Act
2019 effective from 1 March 2020. The Children’s Guardian Act 2019 transferred the reportable conduct
scheme from the NSW Ombudsman to the Children’s Guardian.

NESA did not amend the guidelines for school providers and TAAs during this period.

Annual reports

Under the Education Act 1990, all non-government schools are required to disclose publicly and submit to
NESA an annual report that includes information about the school’s educational and financial performance
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measures. Reports referencing the preceding calendar year are to be submitted annually by the end of June.

A 2019 review of a sample of annual reports for the preceding year found that the vast majority of schools
satisfactorily addressed the mandatory reporting measures.

In May 2020, NESA advised schools that due to the COVID-19 pandemic, the timeframe for submission of
annual reports for the 2019 school year was extended to 9 October 2020.

NSW Civil and Administrative Tribunal

The NSW Civil and Administrative Tribunal hears applications for review of recommendations by NESA to
the Minister that a non-government school not be registered, and decisions by NESA that a non-government
school not be accredited.

During 2019, one school applied to the NSW Civil and Administrative Tribunal for a review of NESA’s
recommendation that registration and accreditation be refused.

Following mediation ordered by the NSW Civil and Administrative Tribunal, the school withdrew its
application. The school subsequently decided to cease operation in November 2019. The school’s
registration and accreditation ceased at that time.

2019-20 inspection program statistics

At the end of the 2019-20 reporting period, there were 957 non-government schools comprising 390
individual schools and 567 systemic schools. Tables 3.1 to 3.5 provide information on NESA’s school
registration and accreditation activities in 2019-20, with comparisons to the previous three reporting years
(where applicable).

Table 3.1 NESA School Registration Committee recommendations on school registrations,
during 2016-17 to 2019-20

2016-17 2017-18

Ind.* Sys.** Ind. Sys.

Renewal of registration (5 years)®@

Primary education 16 186 18 1 36 249 27 2
Secondary education 12 51 20 0 28 70 26 1
Primary and secondary 70 15 30 0 53 17 82 5
education

Education of a kind, or for 7 1 4 0 2 0 7 0

children of a kind

Exemption from registration 1 0 0 0 0 0 2 0

Total 106 253 72 1 119 336 144 8

Initial registration for new year levels of schooling (1 year)

Primary education 4 3 6 0 4 6 7 1

Secondary education 4 3 7 0 13 7 23 1
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2016-17 2017-18

Ind.* Sys.** Ind. Sys.

Primary and secondary 13 3 2 0 1 5 0 5
education

Exemption from registration 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Provisional initial registration 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total 21 9 15 0 18 18 30 7

Extension of registration (1 year)

Primary education 1 0 2 0 4 0 3 0
Secondary education 2 0 3 0 6 0 0 0
Primary and secondary 3 0 2 0 4 0 8 0
education

Total 6 0 7 0 14 0 11 0

Other recommendations on school registrations

Reduced period of 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
registration (provisional)

Cancel registration 0 0 1 0 0 0 1 0
Initial registration of new 7 3 8 0 5 7 6 3
schools

Registration of new 7 1 0 0 7 1 7 1
campuses of existing

schools

* Ind. = individual non-government schools
** Sys. = systemic non-government schools belonging to a registration system

a. The variation in the number of recommendations for renewal of registration for each reporting year reflects the number of schools with registration
expiring in each reporting year.

Table 3.2 NESA School Registration Committee recommendations on accreditation, recognition
for schools outside NSW and other matters during 2016-17 to 2019-20

2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20

Ind.*  Sys.* Ind. Sys. Ind. Sys. Ind. Sys.

L (@)
Renewal of accreditation (5 years)

Courses leading to the award
of the Record of School 63 64 41 0 67 77 98 0
Achievement
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2016-17 2017-18 2018-19

Ind.* Sys.* Ind. Sys. Ind. Sys.

Courses leading to the award
of the Higher School 60 59 38 0 61 64 87 1

Certificate

Initial accreditation for registered schools (1 year)

Courses leading to the award
of the Record of School 4 4 3 0 6 7 2 2
Achievement

Courses leading to the award
of the Higher School 7 2 4 0 4 4 8 2
Certificate

Other recommendations on accreditation

Reduced period of

o . 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
accreditation (provisional)
Cancel accreditation 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 0
Initial accreditation for new
schools for courses leading
to the award of the Record of 4 3 2 0 1 3 3 3
School Achievement
Initial accreditation for new
schools for courses leading 1 0 1 0 1 1 1 1

to the award of the Higher
School Certificate

Recognition for schools outside NSW

Courses leading to the award
of the Record of School 1@ 0 0 2
Achievement

Courses leading to the award

of the Higher School 5@ 0 0 2
Certificate

Other matters

Recognition as a special 7 1 5 0 6 1 11 1
school

Regognltlon as a special 5 0 3 0 8 5 5 0
assistance school

School closed 4 1 1 0 5 2 4 4
Campus closed 10 0 11 0 9 4 3 1
Approval of school providers

of courses for students from 260 160 210 470

overseas
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2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20

Ind.*  Sys.* Ind. Sys. Ind. Sys. Ind. Sys.

Approval of Teacher
Accreditation Authorities 91 44 68 109

* Ind. = individual non-government school
** Sys. = systemic non-government schools belonging to a registrationsystem

(a) The variation in the number of recommendations for renewal of accreditation for each reporting year reflects the number of schools with
accreditation expiring in each reporting year.

(b) Includes recognition of school providers of English Language Intensive Courses for Overseas Students.

(c) This data corrects the data published in the 2016—17 annual report.

Table 3.3 New schools granted initial registration in 2019 to commence in the 2020 calendar year
School ‘ Location Year level
Arise Christian College Metford Years 3t0 10
Living School Lismore Kindergarten to Year 8
Pambula Beach Flexible Learning Centre Pambula Years 7 to 10
Sydney Science College Epping Years 11 and 12

Table 3.4 Schools closed during 2019-20

School Location Year level
Australian Institute of Music Sydney Years 11 and 12
Holmes College Sydney Years 11 and 12
Oxford College Sydney Years 10to 12
Sydney Science College Epping Years 11 and 12
Catherine McAuley Catholic College Medowie Years 7 and 8
Gillieston Heights Adventist School Gillieston Heights Kindergarten to Year 7
St Mary’s Catholic Primary School North Sydney Kindergarten to Year 6
Table 3.5 Complaints about non-government schools investigated by NESA officers during

2016-17 to 2019-20

2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20

Complaints about individual schools 5 4 1 3
investigated
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2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20

Complaints about systemic schools investigated 0 0 0 0

Complaints about schools with overseas 0 0 0 0
recognition investigated

Investigations completed 9 5 3 2
Complaints substantiated 8 5 3 2
Complaints ongoing into the next reporting 3 2 0 1
period

Number of complaints investigated per requirement(®

Governance 2 0 0 0
Teaching staff 1 0 0 0
Curriculum 2 1 0 1
Safe and supportive environment 7 4 2 1
Premises and buildings 0 0 0 0
Facilities 0 0 0 0
Discipline 3 2 1 2
Attendance 1 1 0 0
Management and operation of the school 0 0 0 0
Educational and financial reporting 0 0 0 0
Boarding facilities 0 0 0 0

(@) For some schools, the complaint related to more than one issue or requirement.

Home schooling registration

The Education Act 1990 provides for parents to home school their children. Under the Act, NESA is
responsible for administering the program for home schooling registration — which involves granting approval
for a child to be schooled at home and maintaining details of children who are registered for home schooling.

NESA'’s Guidelines for Home Schooling Registration in NSW describe the requirements and processes for
home schooling registration.

Authorised persons assess applications for approval for home schooling registration and provide
recommendations to the Minister or the Minister’'s delegate.

Children may be registered for home schooling, or approved but exempt from being registered, for a
maximum period of two years. Children with exemption from registration on religious grounds must meet the
requirements for registration.

In mid-March 2020, in response to the COVID-19 pandemic, NESA temporarily ceased home schooling
visits. NESA continued to assess applications for home schooling registration using a risk-based approach.
Most applications were assessed by documentation review and some automatic renewals were granted a
shorter period of registration.
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During 2019-20, the number of children registered for home schooling continued to grow (Tables 3.6 and
3.7), particularly at the time the COVID-19 pandemic began.

NESA collects data about parents’ reasons for choosing to seek home schooling registration on an opt-in
basis. Since 2010, the most common reasons have been philosophical choice, religious reasons and an
individualised approach to addressing the special learning needs of the child.

Consultation and new guidelines for home schooling registration

In 2015, NESA established a Home Schooling Consultative Group (HSCG) to oversee consultation with the
home schooling community and consult on issues affecting the community. During 2019-20, the HSCG met
four times, mainly focusing on a review of NESA’s Guidelines for Home Schooling Registration in NSW.

Professional learning forums

Each year, NESA provides regular professional learning forums for authorised persons who assess
applications for home schooling registration. In 2019-20, topics included child protection, curriculum updates
including adjustments for students with disability, and case studies involving external guest speakers and
home schooling parents.

NSW Civil and Administrative Tribunal

The NSW Civil and Administrative Tribunal hears applications for review of recommendations to refuse home
schooling registration. During 2019-20, one parent appealed a recommendation to refuse home schooling
registration for their children. The application was dismissed as the applicant failed to appear for proceedings.

Table 3.6 Number of children with home schooling registration at the end of reporting period,

during 2016-17 to 2019-20

2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20
Number of children with registration 4,479 5,066 5,698 6,534
Number of families 2,269 3,027 3,498 3,996

Table 3.7

Number of children with exemption from home schooling registration at the end of
reporting period, during 2016-17 to 2019-20

2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20
Number of children with exemption 182 183 189 196
from registration
Number of families 88 95 83 94
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4.1 NSW school curriculum

Figure 4.1 NESA curriculum development activity, 2019-20 key statistics

2019-20 year in review

5 K-10 syllabuses under development 15 Stage 6 syllabuses under
during 2019-20 development during 2019-20
6 K-10 syllabuses reviewed/updated 17 K-10 syllabuses implemented*
6 Stage 6 VET frameworks updated or 8 new and 7 re-introduced
amended for 2020 qualification pathways available

through Stage 6 VET Board endorsed
courses in 2020

12 Stage 5 VET Board endorsed course 108 Stage 6 VET Board endorsed
descriptions reviewed, updated and course descriptions reviewed, updated
re-endorsed for 2020 and re-endorsed for 2020

*NESA did not implement any Stage 6 syllabuses in 2019—20. In September 2019, the NESA Board decided to defer Stage 6
syllabus implementation until the release of the NSW Curriculum Review.
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4.2 Key curriculum achievements

NESA is responsible for developing courses of study for primary and secondary schools (under the
Education Act 1990). A course of study, or syllabus, describes the aims, objectives, content and outcomes
of student learning in NSW schools.

NESA develops NSW syllabuses through extensive consultation with teachers, subject experts, academics
and the community. The syllabus development process ensures that government and non-government
schools teach common content, regardless of where a student lives or attends school.

More information about the NSW Kindergarten to Year 12 curriculum is available on the NESA website.

NSW Curriculum Review

The Minister's 2020 Statement of Expectations tasked NESA with finalising the NSW Curriculum Review
and delivering a final report to the NSW Government by mid-2020. The Review aims to ensure students are
equipped to contribute to Australian society in the 21st century.

On 23 June 2020, the NSW Premier and Minister for Education and Early Childhood Learning announced
the release of the NSW Curriculum Review final report and the NSW Government response.

The NSW Government Response to the NSW Curriculum Review outlines an ambitious program for
streamlining and strengthening what is taught in our schools over the next four years.

The reforms include:

= building strong foundations for future learning by 2022 with new English and Mathematics syllabuses
for Kindergarten to Year 2

= more time for teaching by 2022 by reducing the hours teachers spend on extra-curricular topics and
issues and compliance requirements

= strengthening post school pathways by 2022 with new learning areas for Years 11 and 12 that clearly
link learning to future employment and study options

= anew curriculum from 2024 with new syllabuses focused on what is essential to know and do in early
and middle years of schooling, and key learning areas in the senior years.

Over the next four years, the NESA Board will oversee the rewriting of the curriculum to meet high community
expectations. Reform implementation includes:

= planning and scoping reform activities

= developing new syllabuses

= consultation with teachers and other key education stakeholders

= professional development to support teachers to implement the new curriculum.

NESA is working closely with the education sectors and other key stakeholders to ensure that reform
activities:

= involve teachers in all implementation phases of the new curriculum
= develop systems that align curriculum, assessment and reporting, and teacher professional
development.

NESA has established a dedicated website with up-to-date news and information about the curriculum reform
program.

School Developed Board Endorsed courses 2019-20

School Developed Board Endorsed courses are designed by an individual school or group of schools to
meet the local needs of students. More information on School Developed Board Endorsed courses is

NESA Annual Report 2019-20 40


https://www.educationstandards.nsw.edu.au/wps/portal/nesa/k-10/understanding-the-curriculum/curriculum-syllabuses-NSW
https://nswcurriculumreview.nesa.nsw.edu.au/home/homePageContent/view
https://nswcurriculumreview.nesa.nsw.edu.au/home/homePageContent/view
https://educationstandards.nsw.edu.au/wps/portal/nesa/11-12/Understanding-the-curriculum/curriculum-development/board-endorsed-courses

available on the NESA website.

Figure 4.2 School Developed Board Endorsed courses key statistics, 2019-20

During the 2019-20 reporting year:

26 Stage 5 School Developed Board Endorsed course proposals received

14 new Stage 5 School Developed Board Endorsed courses endorsed

7 Stage 6 School Developed Board Endorsed course proposals received

1 new Stage 6 School Developed Board Endorsed course endorsed

University Developed Board Endorsed courses 2019-20

University Developed Board Endorsed courses supplement and extend the HSC curriculum for high
achieving students in Stage 6. These courses are developed by universities in conjunction with schools.
More information about University Developed Board Endorsed courses is available on the NESA website.

Figure 4.3  University Developed Board Endorsed courses key statistics, 2019-20

During the 2019-20 reporting year:

16 University Developed Board Endorsed courses were available

8 University Developed Board Endorsed courses were delivered, with 224 students enrolled in a
University Developed Board Endorsed course

Supporting the Kindergarten to Year 12 curriculum

During 2019-20, NESA developed a range of support materials for the Kindergarten to Year 12 curriculum,
including:

guides for teachers and parents

sample scope and sequences

sample units of work

sample assessment tasks

Life Skills outcomes worksheets

advice for teaching and assessing students with disability.

NESA publishes K-10 support materials on the NESA website.

Vocational education and training

Vocational education and training (VET) courses allow students to study and achieve nationally recognised
vocational qualifications, for which students receive credit for the RoSA and HSC. The VET curriculum
supports school-based apprenticeships and traineeships providing students with a pathway to employment
and future careers. Most students undertaking a VET course as part of their HSC do so through industry
curriculum frameworks developed by NESA.
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There are 13 industry curriculum frameworks operating in NSW. Information on industry curriculum
frameworks are available on the NESA website.

Supporting students with disability to access the curriculum

NESA is committed to supporting students with disability to access quality curriculum. NESA ensures
syllabuses and support materials are developed to include the full range of learning needs, including students
with disability.

Schools and teachers have obligations under the Disability Standards for Education 2005 to provide
reasonable adjustments for students with disability. During the 2020-21 reporting year, NESA will work with
the NSW Department of Education to contribute to the Review of the Disability Standards for Education 2015,
which is being led by the Australian Government through COAG Education Council processes.

NESA continues to work closely with key disability stakeholders to inform a range of NESA policy
development and program activities, including the NSW Chapter of the Australian Association of Special
Education (AASE).

The NESA Special Education Committee met twice during the reporting period to advise the NESA Board
on curriculum, assessment and teacher professional development issues relating to disability. COVID-19
affected planned meetings for the Committee during the first half of the 2020 calendar year — the Special
Education Committee will resume meeting in the 2020-21 reporting year.

Life Skills

Life Skills outcomes provide course options for students with disability who cannot access the regular course
outcomes, particularly students with an intellectual disability.

NESA continues to develop Life Skills outcomes and content for all Years 7—10 syllabuses and separate Life
Skills courses for students in Years 11 and 12. More information on Life Skills, including any current Life
Skills curriculum under development, is available on the NESA website.
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5.1 Student assessment

Figure 5.1  NESA activity related to the 2019 Higher School Certificate

2019 Higher School Certificate in review
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More than 74,000 HSC candidates, with 666 students sat the first ever online
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Science Extension course
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5.2 Key achievements in student assessment
Higher School Certificate (HSC)

NESA is responsible for issuing the:

= Higher School Certificate (HSC) at the completion of Year 12
= Record of School Achievement (RoSA) to eligible students who leave school before completing the HSC.

The HSC and RoSA credentials provide students with a comprehensive and meaningful report of what they
have accomplished during their schooling. These credentials are important documents for students seeking
employment, further education and university entrance.

2019 HSC
New HSC Science Extension online examination

In 2019, NESA introduced an online HSC examination for the new Science Extension HSC course. The new
course reflects the directions of the Stronger HSC Standards reforms.

The 666 HSC students who studied this new course in 2019 were the first in NSW to complete their HSC
examination online. This is a significant milestone for NESA and the HSC credential, reflecting the
collaborative efforts of a range of NESA’s key stakeholders in developing the course.

2019 HSC results

In December 2019, NESA issued 2019 HSC students their HSC results via email and SMS. Students’ results
were also made available via the Students Online website.

NESA provides a number of HSC results services for students, teachers and principals. More information on
these services is available on the NESA website.

Figure 5.2 HSC results services key statistics, 2019-20

During the 2019-20 reporting year:

663 student inquiries to HSC Results Inquiry Centre (excluding PIN requests)

1,218 students ordered one or more post-HSC services, with 4,373 total items requested from HSC
post-results service

762 schools accessed the Results Analysis Package, with 13,750 unique users

2020 HSC

During the 2019-20 reporting year, NESA continued to support students, teachers and schools in their
preparation for the 2020 HSC.

In response to the COVID-19 pandemic, during the reporting year NESA and the COVID-19 Response
Committee approved several changes to the HSC in 2020. This included curriculum and assessment
processes supporting the HSC, and administration of the HSC practical, performance and written
examinations (detailed in the introduction to this report).
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Figure 5.3 2020 HSC key statistics, 2019-20

During the 2019-20 reporting year:

78,837 students enrolled in an HSC course (Term 1, 2020)

70,272 students were eligible for award of HSC (Term 1, 2020)

21% of students eligible for award of HSC were enrolled in or completed at least one Extension
course

26% of students eligible for award of HSC were enrolled in or had completed at least one VET
course as part of their total pattern of study

Student support for the HSC

Disability provisions

Disability provisions are practical arrangements designed to help students with a disability (verified by
functional evidence), so that they can access the questions in the HSC examinations and communicate their
responses.

The NESA disability provisions program complies with the Disability Discrimination Act 1992 (Cth) (DDA)
and the Disability Standards for Education 2005, issued under the DDA, and requires that a student is neither
advantaged nor disadvantaged through the allocation of provisions.

NESA publishes comprehensive statistics on disability provisions on the NESA website. NESA regularly
reviews and updates the disability provisions guidelines to ensure clarity and accessibility.

The 2018 Review of Disability Provisions in the HSC — Review of implementation, conducted by John Firth,
found that NESA’s approach to disability provisions were procedurally fair and complied with legislative
requirements. This review made several recommendations to strengthen the implementation of disability
provisions in NSW schools, which NESA has worked to implement during 2019-20 in consultation with key
stakeholders and the Assessment and Special Education Committees of the NESA Board.

Education experts and independent auditors ensure that decisions taken under the Disability Provisions
program are fair, appropriate and consistent, by reviewing the disability provisions program regularly. All
reviews and audits conducted on the disability provisions program are listed on the NESA website.

HSC illness/misadventure applications

Students who are prevented from attending an examination (including speaking/listening or practical
examinations), or who consider that their performance has been affected by illness and/or misadventure
immediately before or during an examination, may submit an illness or misadventure application.

NESA published comprehensive statistics on illness/misadventure applications for the period including the
2019-20 reporting year on the NESA website.

HSC minimum standard literacy and numeracy tests

From 2020, students will be required to demonstrate a minimum standard of literacy and numeracy to be
awarded the HSC. To show that they meet the HSC minimum standard, students need to achieve an
Australian Core Skills Framework Level 3 or 4 equivalent in short online reading, writing and numeracy tests
of skills for everyday life.

NESA Annual Report 2019-20 45


http://educationstandards.nsw.edu.au/wps/portal/nesa/11-12/hsc/disability-provisions/statistics
https://educationstandards.nsw.edu.au/wps/wcm/connect/0e234201-4ce5-495b-93ee-cfb363ff7fc4/Disability+provisions+in+the+HSC.DOCX?MOD=AJPERES&CVID=
https://educationstandards.nsw.edu.au/wps/portal/nesa/11-12/hsc/disability-provisions/statistics
https://www.educationstandards.nsw.edu.au/wps/portal/nesa/11-12/hsc/rules-and-processes/illness-misadventure

NESA publishes resources for students, parents and teachers, as well as information about the tests,
disability provisions and exemptions. These resources, and more detailed information about the HSC
Minimum standard, are available on the NESA website.

Record of School Achievement

The Record of School Achievement (RoSA) is a credential provided to eligible students who leave school
after Year 10 and before completing the HSC. The credential recognises student achievement in all courses
completed in Years 10 and 11.

Figure 5.4 Record of School Achievement key statistics, 2019-20

During the 2019-20 reporting year:

91,787 students enrolled in at least one Stage 5 course eligible for inclusion towards the RoSA
(Term 1, 2020)

Piloting a new Stage 6 Numeracy Course

In August 2018, the NSW Government announced the NSW Government’'s Mathematics Strategy. As part
of this strategy, in 2019 NESA began piloting a new mathematics-based HSC course for students who have
not typically chosen to study maths, focusing on numeracy and practical applications for everyday life. The
pilot continued in 2020 in an increased number of schools.

A dedicated NESA project team provides extensive support to schools that participate in the pilot, including
sample teaching and learning programs, online professional learning sessions, assessment resources and
sample teaching guides for each of the four modules in the syllabus. NESA will consider options for wider
implementation of the course in the 2020-21 reporting year.

National Assessment Program — Literacy and Numeracy (NAPLAN)

The National Assessment Program — Literacy and Numeracy (NAPLAN) tests identify whether students have
the literacy and numeracy skills that provide the critical foundation for their learning. NAPLAN tests also
provide information on students’ progress and complement the wide range of formal and informal
assessments already conducted in schools.

NESA is the test administration authority for all schools in NSW and for international schools registered with
NESA. More information on NAPLAN is available on the NESA website.

Cancellation of 2020 NAPLAN tests

In March 2020, the Council of Australian Governments (COAG) Education Council decided to cancel
NAPLAN testing for 2020. This decision aimed to help principals, teachers and school staff focus on student
learning during the COVID-19 pandemic. This decision meant that NESA did not administer NAPLAN tests
in NSW and ACT schools during the 2019-20 reporting year.

During the 2019-20 reporting period, NESA had supported more than 3000 schools in NSW and the ACT to
register for NAPLAN tests in 2020, a significant proportion of which were intending to sit NAPLAN Online for
the first time in 2020. The process to register schools for NAPLAN 2020 had occurred before Education
Council decided to cancel the tests for 2020.

Supporting the transition to NAPLAN Online

At an Education Council meeting on 12 June 2020, Commonwealth, state and territory ministers agreed that
due to the cancellation of NAPLAN 2020, the full transition to NAPLAN Online would be deferred from 2021
to 2022. All states and territories agreed to maximise participation in 2021 before a full transition in 2022.
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Before Education Council’s decision to cancel NAPLAN in 2020, NESA provided support to NSW and ACT
schools intending to transition to NAPLAN Online in 2020. NESA supports all schools tranisitioning to
NAPLAN Online through teacher training in the lead up to the tests, and school and student readiness
activities.

Any NSW school that was intending to transition to NAPLAN Online in 2020 participated in a school
readiness test (conducted between 2 and 20 September 2019). The information generated from the
readiness test helped to determine the most suitable time for NSW schools to transition to NAPLAN Online.

Into the 2020-21 reporting year, NESA will continue to support all NSW schools to complete the full transition
to NAPLAN Online by 2022, as agreed by Education Council, considering the insights gained from
preparation activity conducted in 2019.

2019 NAPLAN results

NSW schools received their 2019 NAPLAN results report package in mid-September 2019. Trends from the
2019 NAPLAN data indicated that the NSW mean score is above the national average for all five testing
domains across all year levels, and that NSW is the highest-ranking jurisdiction nationally in the Spelling
domain across all year levels.

Australian Music Examinations Board (NSW)

The Australian Music Examinations Board (NSW) is responsible for administering practical and written
examinations in Music and Speech and Drama in accordance with the Australian Music Examinations Board
(AMEB) requirements.

These examinations range from preliminary grades through to the Fellowship in Music Australia and
Fellowship in Speech and Drama Australia. Detailed information about the AMEB membership is available
on the AMEB NSW website.

Key achievements in 2019-20
The AMEB (NSW) conducted over 35,000 examinations throughout NSW and the ACT during 2019-20.

Figure 5.5 AMEB administration statistics, 2019-20

In 2019-20, AMEB administered:

90 practical music syllabuses

4 practical speech and drama syllabuses

5 written syllabuses, and introduced one new syllabus.

Figure 5.6 AMEB award statistics, 2019-20

In 2019-20, AMEB awarded:

146 associate diplomas

50 licentiate diplomas to musicians

20 diplomas to speech and drama candidates
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Overseas marking — 2019 HSC

HSC markers employed by NESA travelled to Hong Kong, Malaysia, Singapore and Norfolk Island between
September and November 2019 for the marking of 2019 HSC practical and performance examinations in
Design and Technology, Drama, Music, Industrial Technology and Visual Arts.

NESA recognises the Australian International Schools (AIS) in Hong Kong, Malaysia and Singapore to offer
the NSW HSC. Norfolk Island Central School is a NSW Government school.

Each Australian International School met the costs of the marker visits to their schools. NESA met the costs
of the marker visits to Norfolk Island Central School.

Table 5.1 Overview of HSC markers appointed to mark 2019 HSC examinations overseas

Number of markers School

Design and Technology

Two markers 21-24 Sept 2019 AIS Singapore
30 Sept-11 Oct 2019 AIS Hong Kong
AIS Malaysia
One marker 23-25 Sept 2019 Norfolk Island Central School

Drama

One marker 9-13 Sept 2019 AIS Malaysia
AIS Singapore

Industrial Technology

Two markers 8-11 Sept 2019 AIS Singapore

One marker 6-9 Sept 2019 Norfolk Island Central School

Music

Two markers 7-13 Oct 2019 AIS Malaysia
AIS Hong Kong

One marker 25-27 Sept 2019 AIS Singapore
One marker 23-24 Sept 2019 Norfolk Island Central School
Two markers 4-8 Nov 2019 AIS Singapore

AIS Malaysia
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6.1 Stakeholder engagement

Key stakeholders and the community

NESA works collaboratively with the school sectors, key education stakeholders and the broader community
to ensure that future educational reforms build on the high quality of primary and secondary education in
NSW. NESA regularly collaborates with the NSW school sectors, key stakeholder groups and leaders in the
NSW education system as part of our policy development and implementation work.

NESA also hosts regular formal information-sharing and consultation meetings with key stakeholders. These
meetings are an opportunity for stakeholders to provide views and feedback that inform NESA’s strategic
decision-making. During 2019-20, NESA held consultation meetings with the:

= NSW Aboriginal Education Consultative Group Inc.

= Advocate for Children and Young People

= Association of Catholic School Principals NSW

= Association of Heads of Independent Schools of Australia NSW/ACT
= Association of Independent Schools NSW (AISNSW)

= Catholic Schools NSW

= Catholic Secondary Schools Association NSW/ACT

= Christian Education National

= Christian Schools Australia

= Council of Catholic School Parents NSW/ACT

= English, Mathematics, Science and History teachers’ associations
» Federation of Parents and Citizens Associations of NSW

= Independent Education Union NSW/ACT

= |solated Children’s Parents’ Association of NSW

= NSW Department of Education

= NSW Parents’ Council

= NSW Primary Principals’ Association

=  NSW Secondary Principals’ Council

= NSW Teachers Federation

* Professional Teachers’ Council NSW.

Between 25 October and 20 December 2019, Professor Geoff Masters’ Interim Report of the NSW
Curriculum Review was open for public consultation. NESA undertook a range of engagement activities to
support consultation on the Interim Report, including:

= receiving over 700 submissions from the community and key stakeholder groups through a dedicated
online portal, with a number of representative organisations also submitting written submissions directly
to NESA.

= conducting 21 teacher workshops with over 450 attendees, held with teachers across metropolitan
and regional NSW. Key themes and issues arising from facilitated discussion were recorded at each
workshop.

= collating 900 student responses to a targeted student survey constructed to gather feedback from
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Year 10, 11 and 12 students on Reform Directions relevant to senior secondary schooling.

HSC student feedback survey

The 13th annual HSC Student Feedback Survey was open to all HSC students from September to December
2019, and more than 4000 NSW students responded to the survey. The survey asked students what
motivated their HSC course choices and sought students’ impressions of each of their courses.

Most respondents indicated that their non-compulsory HSC courses met their expectations, were
challenging, interesting, and would be useful for further education and future work. The survey also sought
feedback from students that sat the new Science Extension course, which ran for the first time in 2019.
Science Extension students that responded to the survey indicated that the course would be very useful for
their future education.

School registration

In 2019, NESA inspectors, in collaboration with the Association of Independent Schools NSW (AISNSW),
delivered information sessions for individual non-government schools with registration expiring in 2020. The
sessions focused on:

= registration and accreditation requirements

= the online application form

= the materials required to support an application, and
= the risk-based inspection process.

These sessions also provided advice about the application process for TAA approval.

In February 2020, NESA conducted a briefing for proposed new schools seeking initial registration to begin
in 2021. The session provided an overview of the requirements for initial registration, evidence of compliance,
and the process undertaken by NESA in assessing an application. The session also included advice about
seeking initial approval as a TAA.

In November 2019 and March 2020, NESA held briefings for non-government school registration systems to
advise systems about updated information, changes to legislation, emerging issues and plans for monitoring
systems.

In August 2019, NESA delivered a school provider briefing, hosted by AISNSW, for currently approved
school providers and those seeking initial approval. The briefing provided an update on changes to the
National Code and the implications for school providers. This briefing helped school providers to understand
the requirements for approval, and the application and assessment process.

Professional learning forums

Each year, NESA provides regular professional learning forums for authorised persons who assess
applications for home schooling registration. In 2019-20, topics included:

= child protection

= reminders of child protection obligations for mandatory reporting

= curriculum updates

= information about curriculum adjustments for students with special learning needs
= report writing

= information about TAFE pathways
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= case studies from the field and external guest speakers, including home schooling parents through the
Home Schooling Consultative Group parent group representatives.

During 2019-20, NESA curriculum inspectors presented at a series of teacher professional association
gatherings and other workshops.

Supporting rural and remote education

Each year, NESA undertakes a range of activities to support the NSW Government’s commitment to improve
educational outcomes for students in rural and remote areas.

During the 2019-20 reporting year, NESA conducted a detailed analysis of the relative performance of rural
and regional students in NAPLAN 2019 and the 2019 HSC. NESA also examines the patterns of Teacher
Accreditation data and course offerings in rural and regional schools, and reports them regularly to the Board
and its Committees to determine any relevant policy priorities.

In October 2019, NESA hosted the annual delegation of the Isolated Children’s Parents’ Association of NSW
(ICPA NSW). This meeting provides an opportunity for the NESA Chief Executive Officer (CEO) and key
NESA staff to consider the views and concerns of parents of NSW students in rural and remote locations,
including those studying by distance education.

The CEO also met with ICPA NSW in Term 2, 2020 to discuss the impact of COVID-19 on rural and remote
students and their parents. This discussion focused on the changes and adjustments that the COVID-19
Response Committee had approved in order to ensure the continuity of education for all NSW students.

HSC marking opportunities

Each year, HSC marking uses either a pen-and-paper process or onscreen marking. The onscreen marking
and metropolitan/regional day marking programs for the 2019 HSC supported teachers from rural and
regional schools across NSW to access HSC marking, an important professional development opportunity.

In 2019-20, four marking centres in metropolitan and regional areas conducted day marking for the 2019
HSC. More than 70 teachers also participated in the 2019 HSC Rural and Remote Marking Program (RRMP).
The RRMP is a joint program run each year by NESA, the NSW Department of Education and Catholic
Schools NSW.

This valuable professional development program gives teachers based in rural and remote areas the
opportunity to participate in HSC marking, which allows onscreen marking of subjects offered under the
program. Successful applicants participate in briefing and practice marking sessions in regional centres,
which in 2019 included Dubbo, Lismore and Wagga Wagga, before they begin marking.

Teacher professional learning

During 2019-20, NESA conducted a suite of information sessions for professional development providers,
including online sessions that cater for regional and remote providers. NESA routinely informs providers of
the unique needs of rural and remote teachers.

During the reporting year, several professional development providers hosted flexible and sophisticated
courses via purpose-built Learning Management Systems and applied to broaden the mode of their endorsed
course/s to offer online courses in response to COVID-19.

Each year, NESA provides targeted and systematic support to rural independent and catholic schools for the
endorsement process for School-based Registered Professional Development. School-based Registered
Professional Development allows rural schools to develop and run contextually relevant programs at a
considerably lower cost than using external professional development providers.
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Commissioning program

In mid-2019, NESA selected the NSW AECG to deliver the first phase of the Professional Learning
Commissioning Program. During 2019-20, the AECG delivered three different courses across ten sessions,
eight of which were conducted in regional NSW. More information about the Commissioning Program is
available at Appendix H.
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7.1 Managing human resources

People and Culture strategy

During 2019-20, NESA continued the implementation of a comprehensive people and culture strategy
introduced in 2017-18. The strategy supports the delivery of the NESA vision and organisational objectives
and facilitates building a collaborative culture and workforce practices that benefit staff, managers and the
organisation.

The strategy has seven focus areas:
= Culture, value and engagement

= Diversity and inclusion

= HR service delivery and systems
= Leadership and management

= Organisational structure and roles
= Resourcing and recruitment

= Performance and development

Workforce planning information from a range of sources was utilised in determining the current state and
recommending actions in the strategy, including interviews with executive and non-executive staff, and the
results of the NSW public sector-wide 2019 People Matter Employee Surveys.

Staffing and recruitment

The table below provides the distribution of NESA staff by category, counted by Full-Time Equivalent (FTE),
for the periods 2017-18 to 2019-20. Over the course of the year, an additional 502 full-time equivalent
casual staff were engaged principally to assist with the peak periods associated with Higher School
Certificate programs.

Table 7.1 Distribution of NESA staff by category, 30 June 2018 to 30 June 2020

2018 2019 2020

General scale 45 2.0 6.5 1.0 1.0 2.0 1.0 1.0 2.0
Grade 1/2 124 9.0 21.4 8.0 5.0 13.0 6.6 8.0 14.6
Grade 3/4 47.7 13.3 61.0 48.2 14.3 62.5 49.8 8.3 58.1
Grade 5/6 26.6 11.8 38.4 34.6 10.8 454 32.6 18.8 514
Grade 7/8 22.0 16.7 38.7 26.6 16.7 43.3 28.6 18.7 47.3
Grade 9/10 31.3 13.8 45.1 33.8 17.8 51.6 35.0 15.6 50.6
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2018 2019 2020
Grade 11/12 16.4 8.8 25.2 19.3 12.8 32.1 19.4 15.8 35.2
Senior 58.4 215 79.9 57.3 17.2 74.5 48.9 15.2 64.1
Education
Officer
Principal 11.0 1.0 12.0 12.0 1.0 13.0 14.6 1.0 15.6
Education
Officer
Chief 21.8 12.0 33.8 21.4 15.0 36.4 22.0 13.0 35.0
Education
Officer
Executive 10.0 10.0 20.0 9.0 13.0 22.0 7.0 13.0 20.0
Totals 262.1 119.9 382.0 271.2 124.6 395.8 265.5 128.4 393.9

*Key: F = Female, M = Male

Note: NESA has revised to a FTE methodology for the 2019-20 Annual Report. Staffing distribution data for the 2018

and 2019 financial years (in Table 7.1) may differ from that reported in previous annual reports.

Public Service Senior Executive (PSSE) staff
At 30 June 2020, NESA employed 20 Public Service Senior Executive staff.

In 2019-20, 7.24 percent of NESA employee-related expenditure was for senior executives, compared with

10 percent in the 2018-19 reporting year.

Table 7.2 Number of NESA Public Service senior executives, by gender and band level, at 30
June 2019 and 30 June 2020

30 June 2019 30 June 2020

Female Male Female Male

Band 4 0 0 0 0
Band 3 0 1 0 1
Band 2 3 2 3 2
Band 1 6 10 4 10
Total 9 13 7 13
Overall total 22 20
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Table 7.3 Average total remuneration for NESA Public Service senior executives per band at 30
June 2019 and 30 June 2020

Average total remuneration ($)

30 June 2019 30 June 2020
Band 4 Not applicable Not applicable
Band 3 351,491 400,000
Band 2 295,884 313,961
Band 1 233,851 235,616

Workforce diversity

This section outlines trends in the representation and distribution of workforce diversity groups in NESA over
the past three years (Table 3.5), as well as NESA workforce diversity achievements in 2018-19 and
strategies for 2019-20.

Table 7.4 Trends in representation of workforce diversity groups in NESA, 2017-18 to 2019-20

Workforce diversity group Benchmark or 30 June 30 June 30 June
target (%) 2018 (%) 2019 (%) 2020 (%)

Women 50.0 68.0 69.0 67.0

Aboriginal people and Torres Strait 26 20 50 26

Islander Peoples

People Whoge first language as a child 19.0 19.0 18.0 18.0

was not English

People with a disability n.a. 1.0 1.0 1.0

People w!th a disability requiring work- 15 10 10 14

related adjustment

Table 7.5 Trends in distribution of workforce diversity groups in NESA, 2017-18 to 2019-20

Workforce diversity group Benchmark or 30 June 30 June 30 June
target (%) 2018 (%) 2019 (%) 2020 (%)

Women 100 97 94 90

Aboriginal people and Torres Strait 100 na na na

Islander Peoples

People vyhose first language as a child was 100 88 88 88

not English

People with a disability 100 n.a. n.a. n.a.

People W.Ith a disability requiring work- 100 na na na

related adjustment

Notes: A distribution index of 100 indicates that the centre of the distribution of the workforce diversity group across salary levels is equivalent to
that of other staff. Values less than 100 mean that the workforce diversity group tends to be more concentrated at lower salary levels than
is the case for other staff. The more pronounced this tendency is, the lower the index will be. In some cases, the index may be more than
100, indicating that the workforce diversity group is less concentrated at lower salary levels. The distribution index is not calculated where
workforce diversity group or non-workforce diversitygroup numbers are less than 20.
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Workforce diversity achievements for 2019-20

NESA'’s workforce diversity achievements during the 2019-20 reporting year included:

= streamlined communication in all advertised roles, promoting NESA’s commitment to an inclusive and
diverse workplace

= promoting job opportunities in suitable channels, increasing our reach to Indigenous communities
= participating in the 2019-20 NSW Government Aboriginal Internship Program

= supporting flexible working conditions for all employees, to create a more supportive environment for
those requiring flexible work options

= supporting staff to transition to working from home arrangements as a result of the COVID-19
pandemic

= supporting cultural events including Harmony Day and NAIDOC week

= implementing the NESA Innovate Reconciliation Action Plan (RAP) in conjunction with Reconciliation
Australia, NSW Aboriginal Education Consultative Group Inc., Metropolitan Local Aboriginal Land
Council, NESA Aboriginal Education Committee members, and NESA staff

= staff cultural inclusion training to build cultural awareness and cross-cultural competence, improve
inclusivity and increase knowledge of Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander histories and culture.

Workforce diversity strategies for 2019-20
NESA’s key workforce diversity strategies for 2019-20 include:

= continuing the review of NESA people management policies, processes and practices, including
recruitment, on boarding and induction, to reduce bias and ensure inclusivity

= gathering and analysing NESA workforce profile data from a diversity groups perspective
= incorporating people and culture goals and actions from the NESA Reconciliation Action Plan

= celebrating and participating in National Reconciliation Week by providing opportunities to build and
maintain relationships between Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander Peoples and other Australians

= engaging employees in cultural learning opportunities to increase understanding and appreciation of
Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander cultures, histories and achievements

= supporting NESA staff to understand the significance of Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander cultural
protocols, such as Welcome to Country and Acknowledgement of Country

= providing opportunities for Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander staff to engage with their culture and
communities by celebrating NAIDOC Week

= workplace cultural inclusion training

= progressing the NESA RAP working group to oversee implementation of the draft initiatives
underpinning the RAP. This includes specific deliverables in three focus areas — relationships, respect,
and opportunities.

Further information about NESA multicultural policies and services is at Appendix F, and details of the NESA
Disability Inclusion Action Plan are at Appendix G.

Work health and safety

NESA complies with the consultative requirements of the Work Health and Safety Act 2011. The NESA
Health and Safety Committee oversees these requirements.

There were three Workers Compensation Claims reported in 2019-20, with falls being the most prevalent
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mechanism of injury across the organisation. There were no SafeWork prosecutions in 2019-20.

Conditions of employment

NESA staff are employed under the Government Sector Employment Act 2013 with relevant conditions
determined by the following Awards:

= Crown Employees (Public Service Conditions of Employment) Reviewed Award 2009
= Crown Employees (Public Sector — Salaries 2018) Award

= Crown Employees (Board of Studies, Teaching and Educational Standards — Education Officers)
Salaries and Conditions Award 2017

= Higher School Certificate Marking and Related Casual Employees Rates of Pay and Conditions Award
2017

= Crown Employees (Australian Music Examinations Board (NSW) Examiners, Assessors and Chief
Examiners) Award 2017.

Industrial relations policies and practices

Industrial relations policies and practices at NESA accord with the direction and guidance provided by the
Industrial Relations Branch of the NSW Treasury, the NSW Public Service Commission, the Department of
Premier and Cabinet and relevant government policies.

Code of Ethics and Conduct

NESA is committed to ethical conduct, which is reflected in its Code of Ethics and Conduct for NESA
Employees, The code sets the standards of behaviour expected of employees and provides guidance to all
staff in being responsive to the needs of customers and key groups. The code has been distributed to all
staff and is provided to new staff as part of the induction process.

Exceptional movements in employee wages, salaries or allowances

There were no exceptional movements in employee wages, salaries or allowances in 2019-20.

Recreation leave and extended leave liability

As at 30 June 2020, the monetary value of extended (long service) leave and recreation leave for NESA
was:

= Extended leave: $15,414,000.
= Recreation leave: $5,564,565.
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8.1 Audit and Financial statements

Delivering NESA strategic and operational activities

The NESA Chief Executive Officer (CEO) leads and oversees the implementation of NESA strategic and
operational activities. The following corporate governance committees support the CEO in overseeing
these activities:

= Executive Leadership Team

= Senior Leadership Group

* Audit and Risk Committee

= Information and Physical Security Committee

= Information Management and Technology Committee.

Audit and risk management

NESA’s audit and risk management protocols and procedures comply with the requirements of NSW
Treasury Policy Paper 15-03 Internal Audit and Risk Management Policy for the NSW Public Sector (TPP
15-03).

Audit and Risk Committee

Treasury Guidelines prescribe the establishment, composition and functions of an Audit and Risk Committee.
The objective of the Audit and Risk Committee is to provide independent assistance to the Chief Executive
Officer by overseeing, reviewing and providing advice about NESA governance processes, risk management
and control frameworks, and its external accountability obligations. The Committee has no executive powers.

The Committee is directly responsible and accountable to the Chief Executive Officer for the exercise of its
responsibilities. In carrying out its responsibilities, the Committee must always recognise that primary
responsibility for management of NESA rests with the Chief Executive Officer.

The responsibilities of the Committee may be revised or expanded in consultation with, or as requested by,
the Chief Executive Officer from time to time. Membership of NESA’s Audit and Risk Committee is included
in the Internal Audit and Risk Management Attestation Statement below.

Legislative requirements

During 2019-20, NESA continued to meet its legislative obligations under various Acts and regulations.
NESA reporting under the Government Information (Public Access) Act 2009 is at Appendix D. A range of
statutory disclosures are provided at Appendix E.

Public interest disclosures

No public officials made a public interest disclosure to NESA during 2019-20. No public interest disclosures
were finalised by NESA during 2019-20.

NESA has established public interest disclosure policy and procedures that are available to all staff on its
intranet site. The Chief Executive Officer has ensured that all staff are aware of the policy and procedures
by undertaking internal briefings, training new staff, and sending email messages and circulars to staff.
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Complaints management

NESA devolves complaint resolution to line managers and staff at the point of delivery of services. NESA is
generally able to directly remedy or resolve problems at the source as they arise. NESA applies the NSW
Government customer service delivery standards as a reference point for clients and staff in this process.

NESA addressed complaints arising from these matters in accordance with the standards, and through
structured appeal mechanisms. The NESA Complaints handling policy and process can be viewed on the
NESA website.
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Internal Audit and Risk Management Attestation Statement for the 2019-20
Financial Year for the NSW Education Standards Authority

I, Paul Martin, am of the opinion that the NSW Education Standards Authority has internal audit and risk
management processes in operation that are compliant with the eight (8) core requirements set out in the Internal

Audit and Risk Management Policy for the NSW Public Sector, specifically:

Core Requirements

Risk Management Framework

11

12

The agency head is ultimately responsible and accountable for risk
management in the agency

A risk management framework that is appropriate to the agency has
been established and maintained and the framework is consistent with
AS/NZS 1SO 31000:2009

Internal Audit Function

21

2.2

2.3

An internal audit function has been established and maintained

The operation of the internal audit function is consistent with the
International Standards for the Professional Practice of Internal Auditing

The agency has an Internal Audit Charter that is consistent with the
content of the ‘model charter’

Audit and Risk Committee

3.1

3.2

3.3

An independent Audit and Risk Committee with appropriate expertise
has been established

The Audit and Risk Committee is an advisory committee providing
assistance to the agency head on the agency’s governance processes,
risk management and control frameworks, and its external
accountability obligations

The Audit and Risk Committee has a Charter that is consistent with the
content of the ‘model charter’

Membership

The chair and members of the Audit and Risk Committee are:
Independent Chair, Mr John Gordon (appointed 1 March 2019 to 28 February 2022)

Independent member, Dr Gul Izmir (appointed 1 March 2014 to 28 February 2022)

compliant

compliant

compliant

compliant

compliant

compliant

compliant

compliant

Independent member, Ms Joan Wilcox (appointed 17 September 2015 to 28 February 2022).

These processes demonstrate that the NSW Education Standards Authority has established and maintained

frameworks, including systems, processes and procedures for appropriately managing audit and risk within the NSW
Education Standards Authority.

Paul Martin
Chief Executive Officer
27 November 2020
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9.1 Financial management

The 2019-20 audited financial statements for the NSW Education Standards Authority and the NESA Staff
Agency are provided at Appendix J of this report. This section provides additional information on financial
management, including payment of accounts and consultancies engaged.

Payment of accounts

NESA carries out accounts payable procedures in accordance with the NSW Government's payment of
accounts policy, as required by the Treasurer’s Directions and the Public Finance and Audit Regulation 2010.

Table 9.1 shows the time taken for payment of accounts in 2019-20. Table 9.2 shows details of accounts
paid within each quarter.

Table 9.1 Time for payment of accounts, 2019-20
Quarter Current, Less than 30 Between 30 Between 60 More than 90 days
(2019-20) i.e. within days overdue and 60 days and 90 days overdue ($°000)
due date ($°000) overdue overdue ($°000)
($°000) ($°000)
All suppliers
September 18,681 803 197 216 190
December 25,891 1,423 569 365 205
March 19,079 402 297 186 120
June 13,024 274 196 137 78
Small business suppliers
September 375 Nil Nil Nil Nil
December 291 Nil Nil Nil Nil
March 308 Nil Nil Nil Nil
June 297 Nil Nil Nil Nil
Table 9.2 Details of accounts due or paid within each quarter, 2019-20
Measure Sep 2019 Dec 2019 Mar 2020 Jun 2020
All suppliers
Number of accounts due for payment 1,722 2,610 2,406 1,335
Number of accounts paid on time 1,550 2,336 2,225 1,195
Dollar amount of accounts due for payment $20,087,385 $28,451,339 $20,803,189 $13,709,912
Dollar amount of accounts paid on time $18,681,318 $25,891,725 $19,079,111 $13,024,972
::C:zﬁ::f payments for interest on overdue Nil Nil Nil Nil
Interest paid on overdue accounts Nil Nil Nil Nil
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Small business suppliers®

Number of accounts due for payment to

small business 55 63 1 66
Number of accounts due to small business
) . 55 63 71 66
paid on time
Dollar amount of accounts due for payment $375.187 $201 812 $308.127 $297 218
to small business ' ' ' '
Dollar amount of accounts due to small
) . . $375,187 $291,812 $308,127 $297,218
business paid on time
!\Iumber of payments to small business for Nil Nil Nil Nil
interest on overdue accounts
Interest paid to small business on overdue , ) ) )
Nil Nil Nil Nil
accounts
Measure Sep 2019 Dec 2019 Mar 2020 Jun 2020
All suppliers
Actual percentage of accounts paid on time 90% 90% 92% 90%
(based on number of accounts)
Actual percentage of accounts paid on time 93% 91% 95% 95%
(based on $)
Small business suppliers®
Actual percentage of small business
accounts paid on time (based on number of 100% 100% 100% 100%
accounts)
Actual percentage of small business
100% 100% 100% 100%

accounts paid on time (based on $)

a) The identification of small business suppliers is an ongoing process. Suppliers have been advised of the new policy via purchase orders
and selected identification from vendor and payment records.

Major works in progress
Table 9.3

Property, plant and equipment acquisitions, 2019-20

Property, plant and equipment Cost ($°000)
IT network computer equipment Nil
Total Nil

Table 9.4 Intangible asset acquisitions, 2019-20

Intangibles Cost ($°000)

Examination system applications 816
Customer Relationship Management 1,357
system development

Total 2,173
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Appendix A — NESA charter
NSW Education Standards Authority Charter

1. Mission and purpose

Consistent with the National Declaration on the Educational Goals for Young Australians, the NESA mission
is to support teachers, schools and sectors to offer all children and young people a high quality education
that enables them to fulfil their potential through schooling that:

= |s characterised by equity and excellence

= equips young Australians to become successful learners, confident and creative individuals, and active
and informed citizens

= nurtures the development of the whole person, preparing students not only for undertaking meaningful
work, but for living the lives they have reason to value.

NESA provides a forum for collaboration on key educational matters in NSW. NESA works in partnership
with:

= students
= parents

= teachers
= principals

= school sectors
= other stakeholders

to identify issues and produce policy that supports teaching practice, student learning and the attainment of
high education standards in NSW.

2. Objectives and functions

The NESA Act sets out the principal objectives of NESA. These are to:

= provide strategic leadership in improving standards of school education

= promote an evidence-based approach in improving standards of school education

= ensure that the quality of:

teaching

school curriculum

forms of assessment

regulatory standards under the NSW education and teaching legislation

are developed, applied and monitored in a way that improves student learning, while maintaining flexibility
across the entire school education and teaching sector.

NESA has functions under the education and teaching legislation relating to the:

= accreditation of teachers and the monitoring of the accreditation process across all schools and early
childhood education centres

= approval of initial and continuing teacher education courses that are relevant to the accreditation of
teachers

= development, content and application of professional teaching standards
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= school curriculum for primary and secondary school students
= granting of Records of School Achievement and Higher School Certificates
= registration and accreditation of schools

= approval of providers of courses at schools to overseas students, and reporting and advising on
matters relating to NESA functions and basic skills testing.

3. Standards informed by evidence

The foundations of NESA work are standards developed through the analysis of data, research and the
practical experience, wisdom and professional judgement of teachers and schools across the four domains
of:

= teaching quality

= curriculum

= assessment

= school regulation.

As an independent authority acting across school sectors, NESA identifies common and agreed standards
and benchmarks for the jurisdiction as a whole.

NESA draws on evidence nationally and internationally to implement policy that generates improvements in
the quality of teaching and student learning.

NESA draws together expertise from within the school sectors, universities and other professional groups
and promotes evidence-based analysis, teacher judgement and policy within and on behalf of the teaching
profession.

4. Values and operating principles
NESA work is underpinned by the following values and operating principles:
= Supporting the profession: help to maintain and build the status of the NSW teaching profession

= Educational expertise and leadership: exercise a leading role in ongoing monitoring, research and
development in teaching quality, school curriculum, assessment, and school regulation

= Quality and effectiveness: implement best practice to provide high quality, efficient services that are
relevant to the interests of and respond to the needs of the New South Wales community

= Accountability and transparency: actively promote community confidence in NSW education through
activities in the public interest that are ethical, sustainable and transparent

= Focus on stakeholders: provide exemplary representation and service with professionalism and
commitment to our stakeholders

= Productive relationships and partnerships: foster collaborative, constructive and valuable relationships
and partnerships with the school sectors and the community

= Equity and inclusiveness: policies and programs are underpinned by the principles of equity and
inclusiveness and will be designed and delivered with fairness, transparency and consistency

= Research, evaluation and innovation: encourage and promote innovation and creativity to develop
new strategies, ideas, products and processes

= Continuous improvement: secure continuous improvement through active self-evaluation and
independent external evaluation of our work and services.
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5. The Board

The Board of the NSW Education Standards Authority (the Board) is established by the NESA Act. The
Board:

= provides strategic leadership in improving standards of school education

= promotes an evidence-based approach to improving standards of education

= ensures that each of the following matters is developed, applied and monitored in a way that improves
student learning, while maintaining flexibility across the entire school education and teaching sector:

— teaching quality and professional standards
— school curriculum

— forms of assessment, and

— regulatory standards for schools.

The Board oversees:

= high level strategic governance of NESA
= regulatory functions set out in legislation
= financial governance to provide direction on the alignment between resource allocation and functions

for NESA
* meeting priorities set out in the Minister’'s Statement of Expectations.

Board members exercise their functions in a manner that promotes the objectives of NESA.
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Appendix B — NESA Board

Table B1
2020)

Membership

(outlined in NESA Act)

Membership of the Board of the NSW Education Standards Authority (as at 30 June

Appointed member

An independent person appointed by the Minister as
the Chairperson of the Board

Professor Peter Shergold AC (appointed from 1 January
2020)

Six persons appointed by the Minister

1 from the government school sector

Mr Mark Scott AO, Secretary, NSW Department of
Education (appointed to 2nd term beginning 1 January
2020)

1 from the Catholic school sector

Mr Dallas Mclnerney, CEO, Catholic Schools NSW
(appointed to 2nd term beginning 1 January 2020)

1 from the independent school sector

Dr Geoff Newcombe AM, CEO, Association of Independent
Schools NSW (appointed to 2nd term beginning 1 January
2020)

2 from teacher unions

Mr Denis Fitzgerald, NSW Teachers Federation executive
(appointed to 2nd term beginning 1 January 2020)

Mr Mark Northam, Secretary, Independent Education Union
NSW (appointed to 2nd term beginning 1 January 2020)

1 from Aboriginal education

Mr Nathan Towney, Pro-Vice Chancellor, University of
Newcastle (appointed from 1 January 2020)

No less than 4 (but not more than 6) other persons
appointed by the Minister with regard to:

= teachers and school leaders

= universities

= vocational education and training
= parents of school children

= early childhood education

= gpecial education

= business acumen

= strategic advisory skills

Ms Christine Legg, Chief Executive Officer, KU Children’s
Services (appointed from 1 January 2020)

Ms Katherine Grace, General Counsel, Company Secretary,
Stockland Group (appointed to 2nd term beginning 1 January
2020)

Ms Jude Hayman, Principal, Griffith Public School (appointed
from 1 January 2020)

Dr Anne Wenham, Head of College, St Stanislaus’ College
(appointed from 1 January 2020)

Mr Gary Johnson, Principal, Cherrybrook Technology High
School (appointed from 1 January 2020)

Ms Jenny Allum, Head of School, SCEGGS Darlinghurst
(appointed from 1 January 2020)

The Chief Executive Officer (ex-officio)

Mr Paul Martin, Chief Executive Officer, NESA

Members of the Board whose terms expired during the reporting year

In December 2019, the NSW Government announced
the appointment of five new members of the NESA
Board, and a new independent chairperson.

Mr Tom Alegounaris (Chair)

Professor Paul Chandler
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Membership Appointed member

(outlined in NESA Act)

The terms of the inaugural Chair of the NESA Board | Emertius Professor Susan Dockett
and five inaugural Board members expired on 31
December 2019. These members are no longer | Ms Robyn McKerihan PSM
serving on the NESA Board. . )
Ms Iris Nastasi
NESA thanks these members for their service to the

inaugural NESA Board. Ms Carol Taylor

The appointed members are typically appointed to serve three-year terms and they are eligible (if otherwise
qualified) for re-appointment. Appointed members may not be appointed to consecutive terms totalling more
than 6 years unless the Minister determines otherwise.

The Board met on eight occasions between July 2019 and June 2020. Table B2 indicates Board members’
attendance at each meeting from 1 July 2019 to 30 June 2020.

Table B2 NESA Board meetings and attendance of members from 1 July 2019 — 30 June 2020

Member 2019 2020

2 Jul 13Aug | 24Sep | 5Nov | 10Dec | 24 Mar | 19 May | 23 Jun

Chairperson
Mr Tom Alegounarias v v v v v n/a n/a n/a
Professor Peter Shergold n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a v v v

Member from the government school sector

Mr Mark Scott AO v v v v v v v v

Member from the catholic school sector

Mr Dallas Mclnerney v 4 4 v v v 4 v

Member from the independent school sector

Dr Geoff Newcombe AM v LOA v v v v v v

Ms R Yates (observer) n/a v n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

Two members from teacher unions

Mr Denis Fitzgerald v 4 4 4 v v v v

Mr Mark Northam 4 v v v v v v v

A member from Aboriginal education

Professor Paul Chandler v 4 v v v n/a n/a n/a

Mr Nathan Towney n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a v v v
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Persons appointed with regard to teachers, school leaders, universities, vocational education and training parents of school
children, early childhood education, special education business acumen and strategic advisory skills
Emeritus Professor Susan Dockett v v v v v n/a n/a n/a
Ms Robyn McKerihan PSM v LOA v v LOA n/a n/a n/a
Ms Iris Nastasi v v v v v n/a n/a n/a
Mr Craig Petersen v v v v v n/a n/a n/a
Ms Carol Taylor v v v v v n/a n/a n/a
Ms Katherine Grace v 4 v v v LOA v v
Ms Jenny Allum n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a v 4 4
Ms Jude Hayman n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a 4 v v
Mr Gary Johnson n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a v v v
Ms Christine Legg n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a v v 4
Dr Anne Wenham n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a v v v
The Chief Executive Officer
Mr Paul Martin v 4 4 v v v v v
Notes:

n/a indicates that this member was not a serving member of the NESA Board at the time of this meeting.

LOA indicates that this member had an approved leave of absence for this meeting.
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Governing Board of the NSW Education Standards Authority and its Committees

Appendix B provides an overview of the membership compositions of the NESA Board.

Figure B.1  Governing Board of the NSW Education Standards Authority and its Committees

Board

Assessment Curriculum Initial Quality School Aboriginal
Committee Committee Teacher Teaching Registration Education
Education Committee Committee Committee
Committee
RC RC RC
KEY:
[C]=8 Governing Board Regulatory Committees Advisory Committees
Notes:

Finance
Committee

*Audit and Risk
Committee

Research
and
Technical
Committee

AC

= *The Audit and Risk Committee is an independent committee of NESA, reporting through the NESA CEO to the NESA Board.

= The NESA Board disestablished the Research and Technical Committee in January 2020.
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Appendix C — Committees of the NESA Board

NESA and its governing Board were established on 1 January 2017 under the Education Standards Authority
Act 2013 (the NESA Act). The Board sets the strategic direction for NESA and provides guidance about the
nature of the activities NESA is expected to undertake in fulfilling its functions and executing the policy
directions set by the Board and the Minister.

The NESA Act provides for:

= the NESA Board to establish committees subject to the Minister’s approval
= the NESA Board, once approved, to appoint members to those committees
= the committees, once established, to in turn establish and appoint members of sub-committees.

Table C1 Committees of the NESA Board

Regulatory committees Advisory committees

Assessment Committee Aboriginal Education Committee
Curriculum Committee Finance Committee

Initial Teacher Education Committee Research and Technical Committee*
Quality Teaching Committee Special Education Committee

School Registration Committee

COVID-19 Response Committee *Disestablished during th i
(established in March 2020) Isestablishe uring the reporting year.

The regulatory committees exercise powers delegated by the Board and provide advice to the Board on
policy related to their delegated functions. Advisory committees provide advice only. More information,
including each committee’s membership and attendance register, is available on request.

The Committees of the Board may establish relevant sub-committees, time-limited working groups or other
consultative mechanisms necessary to support the committees in fulfilling their delegated functions and
appointing members to these sub-committees.

Table C2 Sub-committees of committees of the NESA Board and other NESA committees and
panels
Sub-committees of committees of the Other NESA committees and panels
Board
Assessment Committee HSC examination committees
HSC Standards Committee Technical Advisory Group
Examination Rules Committee Board curriculum committees
Independent Appeals Committee Industry curriculum committees
Curriculum Committee Moderating and Consistency Committee

Vocational Education Board Endorsed Course
Panel

School Developed Board Endorsed Course Panel

University Developed Board Endorsed Course
Panel

Board Endorsed Alternative Education Program
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Sub-committees of committees of the Other NESA committees and panels

Board
Panel

More information about each of the sub-committees of the committees of the NESA Board and other

committees and panels established by NESA to inform its policy development work is available on request
from NESA.
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Appendix D — Obligations under the Government
Information (Public Access) Act 2009

Agency name: NSW Education Standards Authority
Principal department: Not applicable
Reporting period: 2019-20

GIPA Annual Report

Section 125 of the Government Information (Public Access) Act 2009 (GIPA Act) requires agencies to report
annually on their obligations under the GIPA Act to the Minister responsible for the agency. A copy of the
GIPA data must also be sent to the Information Commissioner.

NESA has an Agency Information Guide as required under the GIPA Act. The Agency Information Guide
includes helpful information about:

= the structure and functions of NESA and how these functions affect the community

= how members of the community may participate in the formulation of policy and the exercise of NESA'’s
functions

= various kinds of government information held by NESA, the kinds of information made publicly
available and how members of the public may access information held by NESA.

The Agency Information Guide is available on the NESA website.

Review of proactive release program — Clause 8(a)

Under section 7(3) of the GIPA Act, agencies review their programs for the release of government information
annually to identify the kinds of information that may be made publicly available. The NESA program for
proactive release of information involves the review and identification of information and data by key
stakeholders.

NESA proactively released the following information relating to identified key activities and developments
that occurred during the reporting period:

= 2019 HSC facts and figures

= 2019 HSC merit lists: lists of students who achieved outstanding results in the HSC

= 2019 disability provisions statistics

= Nurturing Wonder And Igniting Passion — Designs For A New School Curriculum (final report of the
NSW Curriculum Review).

Number of access applications received — Clause 8(b)

During the reporting period, NESA received five formal access applications (including withdrawn
applications but excluding invalid applications).

Number of refused applications for Schedule 1 information — Clause 8(c)

During the reporting period, NESA partly refused one access application because the application was for the
disclosure of information referred to in Schedule 1 to the Act (information for which there is conclusive
presumption of overriding public interest against disclosure).
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Statistical information about access applications — Clause 8(d) and Schedule 2

Tables D1 to D9 provide details of information access applications to NESA during 2019-20.

Table D1 Number of information access applications by type of applicant and outcome, 2019-
20
Access Access Access Information Information Refuse to Refuse to Application
granted granted refused not held already deal with confirm/deny withdrawn
in full in part in full available application whether
information
is held
Media 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 1
Members of 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Parliament
Private
sector 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
business
Not for
profit
g?wmmms 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
community
groups
Members of
the public
(application 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
by legal
representative)
Members of
the public 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
(other)
Note: More than one decision can be made regarding a particular access application. If so, a recording must be made regarding each such

decision. This also applies to Table D2.

Table D2 Number of information access applications by type of application and outcome,
2019-20

Refuse to
Access Access Access e Information Refuse to confirm/deny Aerlieaiiem
granted granted refused ok el EULCELY deal with whether inFt)hdrawn

in full in full available application information

is held

Personal

information 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

applications*

Access applications
(other than
personal 2 1 0 0 0 0 0 2
information
applications)

Access applications
that are partly
personal
information
applications and
partly other

*Note: A personal information application is an access application for personal information (as defined in clause 4 of Schedule 4 to the Act)
about the applicant (the applicant being an individual).
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Table D3 Invalid access applications, 2019-20

Reason for invalidity Number of applications

Application does not comply with formal requirements 0

(section 41 of the Act)

Application is for excluded information of the agency 0

(section 43 of the Act)

Application contravenes restraint order 0

(section 110 of the Act)

Total number of invalid applications received 0

Invalid applications that subsequently became valid applications 0
Table D4 Conclusive presumption of overriding public interest against disclosure: matters

listed in Schedule 1 of the GIPA Act, 2019-20

Public interest consideration Number of times consideration used

Overriding secrecy laws

Cabinet information

Executive Council information

Contempt

Legal professional privilege

Excluded information

Documents affecting law enforcement and public safety

Transport safety

Adoption

Care and protection of children

Ministerial code of conduct

Aboriginal and environmental heritage

oO|l0o|lo|jo|jlojo|lojo|lo|Oo|lOo|Oo|N

Information about complaints to Judicial Commission

Information about authorised transactions under Electricity Network
Assets (Authorised Transactions) Act 2015

o

Information about authorised transaction under Land and Property
Information NSW (Authorised Transaction) Act 2016

Note:  More than one public interest consideration may apply regarding a particular access application. If so, each such
consideration is to be recorded (but only once per application). This also applies in relation to Table D5.
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Table D5 Other public interest considerations against disclosure: matters listed in table to

section 14 of the GIPA Act, 2019-20

Public interest consideration

Number of occasions when application

not successful

Responsible and effective government

Law enforcement and security

Individual rights, judicial processes and natural justice

Business interests of agencies and other persons

Environment, culture, economy and general matters

Secrecy provisions

Exempt documents under interstate Freedom of Information legislation

1
0
1
1
0
0
0

Table D6 Timeliness of decisions on access applications, 2019-20

Timing of decision

Decided within the statutory timeframes (20 days plus any extensions)

Number of applications

Decided after 35 days (by agreement with applicant)

Not decided within time (deemed refusal)

Total

3
0
0
3

Table D7 Number of applications reviewed under Part 5 of the GIPA Act (by type of review and

outcome), 2019-20

Type of review Decision varied Decision upheld Total
Internal review 0 0 0
Review by Information Commissioner* 1 0 1
Internal review following recommendation under 0 1 1
section 93 of the Act

Review by NSW Civil and Administrative 0 0 0
Tribunal (NCAT)

Total 1 1 2

*Note: The Information Commissioner does not have the authority to vary decisions, but can make recommendation to the original decision-maker.
The data in this case indicates that a recommendation to vary or uphold the original decision has been made.

Table D8 Applications for review under Part 5 of the GIPA Act (by type of applicant), 2019-20

Applications for review

Applications by access applicants

Number of applications

1

Applications by persons to whom information the subject of access application
relates (see section 54 of the Act)

Table D9 Applications transferred to other agencies (by type of transfer), 2019-20

Transfers to other agencies

Number of applications

Agency-initiated transfers 0
Applicant-initiated transfers 0
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Protection of personal information

NESA maintains a Privacy Management Plan to explain how NESA manages personal and health
information in compliance with the Privacy and Personal Information Protection Act 1998 and the Health
Records and Information Privacy Act 2002. The Privacy Management Plan:

= provides information on the types of personal and health information collected by NESA

= identifies the policies and strategies that NESA uses to ensure compliance with privacy legislation

= provides a mechanism to allow for periodic review of NESA’s practices regarding the handling,
maintenance and security of personal and health information.

During the reporting period, NESA has implemented and promoted awareness of its privacy risk assessment
procedure among NESA employees to encourage:

= greater education and awareness of the need for privacy compliance
= more effective management of privacy risk.

NESA also promoted compliance with NSW privacy legislation by:

= providing staff with information briefings regarding privacy obligations in the course of their employment
= participating in Privacy Awareness Week 2020 (coordinated by the Information and Privacy Commission
NSW).

During the reporting period, there was no review conducted by or on behalf of NESA under Part 5 of the
Privacy and Personal Information Protection Act 1998. A copy of the Privacy Management Plan is available
on the NESA website.
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Appendix E — Statutory disclosure requirements

Funds granted to non-government community organisations

NESA did not grant funds to non-government community organisations during 2019-20.

Legal change

The three statutes that NESA’s work are the Education Standards Authority Act 2013, the Education Act
1990 and the Teacher Accreditation Act 2004, collectively referred to as the education and teaching
legislation, and the associated regulations made under that legislation, and the associated regulations made
under that legislation.

There were no changes to the education and teaching legislation in relation to NESA’s functions during the
reporting period.

Economic/other factors affecting the achievement of operational
objectives

There were no specific economic factors affecting the achievement of objectives during 2019-20. The body
of this report covers other factors.

Land disposal

NESA does not hold title to any land or buildings and was not involved in the disposal of land by other
agencies in 2019-20.

Subsidiaries, partnerships, joint ventures and other associations

NESA joint ventures with other organisations are described on the inside front cover and in Sections 1-8 of
this report.

Investment management performance

NESA is an authority listed in Schedule 2 to the Public Finance and Audit Act 1983 (PFA Act) and, as
such, has authority to invest as set out in Schedule 4, Part 2 of the PFA Act. Part 1 of Schedule 4 of the
PFA Act authorises, among other investments, deposits with a bank or the NSW Treasury Corporation.

Liability and management performance

NESA does not have a level of debt at or above the level determined by the Treasurer. Accordingly, the
relevant sections of the annual report Acts and regulations do not apply.

Additional matters

There were no additional matters arising after 30 June 2020 and prior to the submission of the annual report
that were expected to have a significant effect on the operations or clientele of NESA.
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Appendix F — Multicultural policies and services

NESA is committed to the principles of multiculturalism as contained in and required by the Multicultural
NSW Act 2000. During 2019-20, NESA promoted these multicultural principles through the initiatives and
programs outlined below, with reference to the two 2019-20 priority multicultural reporting themes (as
determined by Multicultural NSW).

Key achievements in 2019-20
Reporting Theme 1

Improving outcomes for women leadership to support the NSW Government’s commitment to increasing the
proportion of women from culturally and linguistically diverse (CALD) backgrounds in leadership positions in
the public service sector.

NESA is committed to improving the outcomes for women in leadership, and is exceeding public sector
targets for the proportion of women in senior and leadership positions throughout the organisation.

NESA is exceeding the NSW Government performance target for the proportion of women employed by the
agency (67% compared to the 50% target). A majority of NESA'’s senior, hon-executive staff are also women,
at the Senior Education Officer, Principal Policy Officer, Principal Education Officer and Chief Education
Officer Grades. NESA has more to do in the coming years to increase the proportion of women at the Senior
Executive level to meet the NSW Government’'s 50% target. NESA is well positioned to progressively
increase the proportion of women from culturally and linguistically diverse backgrounds in future reporting
years.

Reporting Theme 2

Initiatives implemented to ensure the CALD community is assisted and included in the agency’s response to
the COVID-19 pandemic.

The NESA Board established a COVID-19 Response Committee to address developing and urgent issues
relating to COVID-19. The Committee comprises representatives across the education sectors. It met five
times in the reporting year.

The Committee provided clear and regular advice to teachers, schools and parents regarding the 2020 HSC
and the K—10 curriculum, on NESA's dedicated COVID-19 webpage. Public communication activity included
videos with captioning and plain English downloadable PDFs for students.

In responding to the impact of COVID-19 on students, the Committee considered a range of key equity
issues including particular impact on diverse learners and marginalised student populations. Decisions made
ensured every student could equitably access teaching, learning and assessment opportunities. Key
decisions included:

= delay in the start date for the HSC written and oral examinations, with language oral examinations
beginning seven days later

= greater flexibility for schools to determine the number, type and weighting of assessment tasks in
Years 11 and 12

= increased opportunities for students to sit for the HSC minimum standard online tests

= greater flexibility for schools to determine which syllabus outcomes and content are taught and
assessed across K-10.
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Appendix G — Disability Inclusion Action Plan

NESA demonstrates continued commitment to the objectives of the NSW Government’s Disability Policy
Framework, through:

= NESA'’s response to COVID-19: All resources made available to students, schools, parents and the
wider community and all decisions taken by NESA and the COVID-19 Response Committee
considered the needs of all students, including those with a disability

= Progressing and finalising the NSW Curriculum Review: NESA ensured that engagement activity
and resources were accessible, and that the Review’s consultation phases comprehensively
considered the views of people with a disability. NESA conducted the Review with regard to its
obligations under the Disability Discrimination Act 1992 and the Disability Standards for Education
2015

= Reviewing and updating curriculum and assessment support materials to help teachers to
personalise learning for students with disability

= Supporting the Special Education Committee of the NESA Board, which continued to provide
expert advice to NESA and the NESA Board on a range of school education issues relating to students
with disability during 2019-20

= Responding to the needs of students with disability, their parents and their teachers on a case-by-
case basis, through NESA’s School Liaison Unit and through making relevant information available and
accessible online

= Reviewing and updating advice in line with current disability legislation, in relation to meeting the
needs of students with disability within the curriculum

= Assessing the impact of the Disability Discrimination Act 1992 on school registration requirements
and making necessary amendments to school manuals.

NESA works to ensure that it complies with the NSW Department of Premier and Cabinet’s circular C2012-08
NSW Government Website Management, which requires all NSW government websites to comply with Web
Content Accessibility Guidelines (WCAG) 2.0.

NESA is achieving compliance with WCAG 2.0 guidelines through a staged approach, prioritising areas of
the NESA website according to the nature of the material and its level of traffic. All resources published
online related to NESA'’s response to the COVID-19 pandemic have been made accessible in accordance
with WCAG 2.0 guidelines.

In 2019-20, NESA is working with the NSW Department of Education to engage with the National Review
of the Disability Standards 2015 led by the Australian Government through COAG Education Council
processes. This work will progress into the 2020-21 reporting year.
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Appendix H—-NSW Aboriginal Education Consultative
Group Incorporated

Mission and goals

The NSW Aboriginal Education Consultative Group Inc. (AECG) is recognised as the principal advisory body
to the NSW Government on all matters relating to Aboriginal people from preschool to higher education.

The vision of the AECG is to:

= be the political voice of Aboriginal people regarding quality education

= provide advice on all matters relevant to education and training with the mandate that this advice
represents the Aboriginal community viewpoint

= promote respect, empowerment and self-determination — the AECG believes the process of collaborative
consultation is integral to equal partnership and is fundamental to the achievement of equality

= advocate cultural affirmation, integrity and the pursuit of equality to ensure that the unique and diverse
identity of Aboriginal people is recognised and valued.

The NSW AECG aims to provide opportunities for Aboriginal people to be actively involved in all decision-
making that is relevant to education and training, through a collaborative and consultative process. This is
central to developing the highest level of informed decision-making to ensure:

= culturally appropriate delivery of education and training programs for Aboriginal learners and
= that all Australians are better informed on Aboriginal history, culture and relevant current issues.

In 2019-20, the NSW AECG continued developing and delivering a range of educational services and
resources to support:

= the attendance, engagement and educational outcomes of young Aboriginal people in early childhood
education, schools and tertiary education and employment
= capacity building, resilience and the wellbeing of Aboriginal communities across NSW.

Participating in committees of the NESA Board, and Curriculum committees

The NSW AECG is represented on three committees of the NESA Board: the NESA Curriculum Committee,
Special Education Committee and Aboriginal Education Committee. The NSW AECG also participates on
committees convened as part of the curriculum development process. By participating on NESA curriculum
committees, the AECG NSW works to:

= ensure that curriculum effectively meets the needs of Aboriginal students
= promote awareness and understanding of Aboriginal Australia by all students.

The NSW AECG’s representation on these committees in 2019-20 provided advice to NESA on inclusive

curriculum and the implementation of Aboriginal perspectives in syllabuses, curriculum and teaching.

Professional development

NESA Commissioning Program

The NSW AECG continued to deliver a range of professional development programs across the state during
the 2019-20 reporting year.

During 2019, the NSW AECG worked with NESA on the NESA Commissioning Program to support the
delivery of three Connecting to Country, four Healthy Culture Healthy Country and four Engaging with
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Aboriginal Communities professional development programs across regional and urban NSW. From June to
December 2019, the AECG delivered courses on Country across NSW, including in metropolitan Sydney,
the NSW North Coast, the NSW South Coast, and NSW Riverina regions.

Under the NESA Commissioning Program, more than 300 teachers, principals and executive NSW
Department of Education staff were subsidised to participate in these three professional development
programs. Each of the programs contribute to Registered Professional Development. Early feedback from
teachers indicates a high level of satisfaction with the courses.

Connecting to Country is a three-day immersion program designed, developed and implemented by the
local NSW AECG. Courses are run on Country and by local Aboriginal community members. The knowledge
and understanding gained by teachers from the localised cultural immersion may then be integrated into
teaching and learning practices and activities linked to the school’s curriculum.

The Healthy Culture, Healthy Country program advances the importance of maintaining local Aboriginal
languages and cultures through education. The program emphasises the synthesis between the health of
culture, the health of Country, and the health and wellbeing of Aboriginal Australians. Some of the areas
explored are Designing Local Aboriginal Cultural Curricula, Exploring Aboriginal Teaching Methods, and
Culturally Apposite Assessment.

The Engaging with Local Aboriginal Communities course aims to help teachers develop their
understanding of culture so they can liaise effectively with Aboriginal families and communities. Teachers
learn about Aboriginal cultures of NSW, cultural issues that Aboriginal families and communities face, and
verbal and non-verbal intricacies of Aboriginal English as the language of community.

AECG projects and priorities during 2019-20

The NSW AECG continues to support the recovering, re-voicing and re-practising of Aboriginal languages
and culture throughout NSW. In 2019-20, key projects delivered by the NSW AECG included:

= Aboriginal Culture and Literacy Program — a two-day program for AECG K-10 school students to
enhance their literacy and writing skills in an Aboriginal cultural context

= Connected Communities — a strategic program to improve outcomes for children and young people in
their schools and communities

= A range of professional development programs for early childhood educators, on Aboriginal
perspectives in an early childhood setting

= Language and Culture Camps — a two-day camp to contribute to informing, strengthening and
connecting students to language and culture through sharing knowledge and resources

= A range of programs to celebrate National Aboriginal and Islander Day Observance Committee
(NAIDOC) Week across NSW

=  SHOW Camps to encourage students to lead healthier and active lifestyles

= STEM Camps to foster students’ interest in STEM subjects, and an opportunity for students to engage
with industry to see practical STEM applications.

Contact details
NSW Aboriginal Education Consultative Group Inc.
37 Cavendish Street, Stanmore NSW 2048

Telephone:  (02) 9550 5666

Fax: (02) 9550 3361
Email; info@aecg.nsw.edu.au
Website: www.aecqg.nsw.edu.au
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Appendix | = Knowledge management and
Information security

Protection of personal information

NESA manages personal and health information in compliance with the Privacy and Personal Information
Protection Act 1998 (PPIP Act) and Health Records Information Privacy Act 2002 (HRIP Act).

NESA manages Privacy Management Plan:

= maintains a current list of personal and health information collected by NESA

= identifies the policies and strategies that NESA uses to ensure compliance with the PPIP Act

= provides a mechanism for periodic review of NESA practices regarding the handling, maintenance and
security of personal and health information.

NESA amended the Plan relating to information about VET data collection, Disability provisions data
collection and adopted procedures for:

= applications to access personal or health information
= applications to request alteration of personal or health information.

NESA also promoted awareness of and compliance with NSW privacy legislation by briefing staff regarding
their privacy obligations.

NESA conducted two internal reviews under Part 5 of the PPIP Act.

A copy of the Privacy Management Plan is available on the NESA website.

Cloud computing

NESA continues to take a cloud first approach in line with the NSW Government Cloud Policy guidance, to
move to procuring IT as a service where possible. To this end, NESA has delivered business-critical solutions
to support a secure enterprise mail capability. NESA is currently delivering services to support enterprise
collaboration, unified communications and mobility services.

NESA has also implemented cloud solutions to facilitate the delivery of online assessments such as HSC
Minimum Standard tests and the first online HSC examination, Science Extension, which ran for the first time
during the 2019-20 reporting year.

NESA first moved to the private cloud in GovDC in 2015 and is transitioning to a hybrid cloud to provide
flexible, scalable and innovative solutions to the customer.
Electronic Teacher Accreditation Management System (eTAMS)

The electronic Teacher Accreditation Management System (eTAMS) supports all aspects of teacher
accreditation, including the:

= storage of data relating to recording and maintaining teacher’s personal details, their qualifications and
professional development
= initial and ongoing accreditation data of teachers and their employment.

The system also stores all communications to and from stakeholders related to teacher accreditation and
financial data creation, which links to teacher records and online payments of teacher accreditation fees. All
teachers in NSW use eTAMS to maintain their accreditation.
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NESA continues to make ongoing improvements to the system to support all stakeholders with teacher
accreditation activities.

Information security management

An ISO 27001 based Information Security Management System (ISMS) is a set of integrated processes that
enables organisations to align with global standards of best practice management of information security
programs, policies and procedures. ISO 27001 is globally recognised as the standard against which
organisations can be certified.

The-then Board of Studies NSW obtained whole-of-organisation certification in 2011. NESA has maintained
its certification through annual audits.

Digital information security annual attestation statement for the 2019-20 financial
year for the NSW Education Standards Authority

I, Paul Martin, Chief Executive Officer, am of the opinion that the NSW Education Standards Authority have
continued working towards maturity in the management of cyber security risks in a manner consistent with
the Mandatory Requirements set out in the NSW Government Cyber Security Policy.

Governance is in place to manage the cyber security maturity and initiatives of the NSW Education Standards
Authority, within the resource capacity of the Authority.

Risks to the information and systems of the NSW Education Standards Authority have been assessed and
are managed.

The NSW Education Standards Authority has an Information Security Management system (ISMS) in place
and has maintained compliance with the ISO 27001 requirements by an accredited third party during the
2019-20 financial year.

There exists a current cyber incident response plan for the NSW Education Standards Authority which has
been reviewed during the reporting period.

The NSW Education Standards Authority has undertaken the following the continuously improve the
management of cyber security governance and resilience:

e The information and Physical Security Committee representatives contributes to, and oversees, the
program of cyber maturity and uplift

e Annual identification of crown jewels across the agency.
The attestation covers the following agencies:

NSW Education Standards Authority

Paul Martin

Chief Executive Officer

NSW Education Standards Authority
27 November 2020
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Appendix J — Financial statements

NSW Education Standards Authority
Year ended 30 June 2020

Statement by Chief Executive Officer
Pursuant to section 41C(1B) of the Public Finance and Audit Act 1983, | state that:

a) the accompanying financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the applicable Australian
Accounting Standards, the requirements of the Public Finance and Audit Act 1983, the Public Finance and
Audit Regulation 2015, the financial reporting directions mandated by the Treasurer, the Treasurer's
Directions and other authoritative pronouncements of the Australian Accounting Standards Board (AASB);

b) the Statement of comprehensive income presents a true and fair view of the results of the NSW Education
Standards Authority for the year ended 30 June 2020;

¢) the Statement of financial position gives a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the NSW Education
Standards Authority as at 30 June 2020; and

d) there are no circumstances which would render any particulars included in the financial statements to be
misleading or inaccurate.

Paul Martin

Chief Executive Officer

NSW Education Standards Authority
27 November 2020
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Statutory Audit Report

The Hon. Sarah Mitchell MLC
Minister for Education and Early Childhood Leaming Contact: Jan-Michae! Perez

SEE?NEEED\'T ﬁ»j ':-.,r 2001 Pronena: 02 B275 7115
- Oour ref: D20ZI7001647

16 October 2020

Dear Minister

STATUTORY AUDIT REPORT
for the year ended 30 June 2020
NSW Education Standards Authority

| have audited the financial statements of the NSW Education Standards Authority (the Authority) as
required by the Public Finance and Awdit Act 1983 (PF&A Act). This Statutory Audit Report outlines
the results of my audit for the year ended 30 June 2020, and details matters | found during my audit
that are relevant to you in your role as one of those charged with the govemance of the Authority. The
PF&A Act requires me to send this report to the Authority, the Minister and the Treasurer.

This report is not the Independent Auditor's Report, which expresses my opinion on the Authornity's
financial statements.

My audit is designed to obtain reasonable assurance the financial statements are free from material
misstatement. It iz not designed to identify and report all the matters you may find of governance
interest. Therefore, other governance matters may exist that | have not reported to you.

My audit is continuous. If | identify new significant matters, | will report these to you immediatedhy.

Audit result

| expressed an unmedified opinion on the Authority’s financial statements and | have not identified any
significant matters since my previous Statutory Audit Report.

Lawad 10, Dasling Park Towar 2, 201 Busses Birast, Bydaoy MEW 2000
BP0 Box 12, Sydney NSW 2007 | £ 02 9275 7909 | mabiRaudil new.goy s | sudil.new gov.au
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Misstatements in the financial statements

Misatatements {both monetary and disclosure deficiencies) are differences between what has been
reported in the financial statements and what is required in accordance with the Authority’s financial
reporting framework. Misstaternents can arise from emor or fraud.

| have certain obligations for reporting misstaterents:

the PF&A Act requires agencies to obtain the Auditor-General’s approval for all changes to the
financial statements originally submitted for audit. The more significant'material changes ars
reported in a Statutory Audit Report

the Auditing Standards require matters of governance interest and significant misstatements
identified during the audit to be communicated to those charged with govemance

statutory obligations require the Auditor-General to report misstatements resulting from or not
detected because of failures in intemal controls andfor systemic deficiencies which pose a
significant risk to the Authority.

The Appendix lists and explains the nature and impact of the misstatementa contained in the financial
statements.

Table one reports uncomected misstatements and disclosure deficiencies
Table two reports comected misstatements and disclosure deficiencies.

Based on my evaluation, none of the misstatements reported are due to fraud.

Compliance with legislative requirements

My audit procedures are targeted specifically towards forming an opinion on the Authority's financial
statements. This includes testing whether the Authority complied with key legislative requirements
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statementa. The results of the audit are
reported in this context.

Deemed appropriations

The deemed appropriations provisions in the Government Sector Finance Act 2018 commenced on
1 July 2019. However, the Authority’s cument delegations from the respongible Minister, being the
Minister for Education and Early Childhood Leaming, did not include a specific delegation to incur
expenditure out of the Authonty's deemed appropriations.

My testing did not identify any other reportable instances of non-compliance with legislative
requirements.

Auditor-General’'s Report to Parliament

The 2020 Auditor-General's Report to Parliament will incorporate the results of the audit.

Management Letter

In October 2020 | expect to 2end a Management Letter from the final phase of my audit to the Chief
Executive Officer which includes ohservations from miy audit. This letter will also include
management's responses to the matters raised.

| believe the observations in the letter are not significant and have therefore not mentioned them in
thiz report. Please contact the Chief Executive Officer for a copy of the letter.

NESA Annual Report 2019-20 88



Acknowledgment
| thank the Authority's staff for their courtesy and assistance.

Yours sincerely

P

Jan-Michael Perez
Director, Financial Audit

Delegate of the Auditor-General for New South Wales

NESA Annual Report 2019-20

89



NSW EDUCATION STANDARDS AUTHORITY

Financial Statements
30 June 2020

CONTENTS

Statement of Comprehensive Income for the year ended 30 June 2020

Statement of Financial Position as at 30 June 2020

Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 30 June 2020

Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 30 June 2020

Notes to the financial statements

o D m s e R

HHEBsmdaorvmo

HERER

NESA Annual Report 2019-20

Statement of Significant Accounting Policies
Expenzes Excluding Losses

Revenus

‘Conditions and Restrictions on Income of Not-for-Profit Entities
Other Gains | (Losses)

Program group statements for the period ended 20 June 2020
Current Assets - Cash and Cash Equivalents

‘Current f Mon-Current Assets - Recsivables

‘Contract Assets and Liabilities

Current Azsets - Inventories

Property, Plant and Equipment

Leazes

Intangible Assets
Restricted Assets

‘Current Liabilities - Payables
‘Current f Mon-Current Liabilities - Bormowings
‘Current f Mon-Current Lizbilities - Provisions

Equity

‘Commitments.

‘Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

Budget Review

Reconciliation of Cash Flows from Operating
Activities to Met Result
Mon-cash Financing and Investing Activities

Trust Funds
Fimancial Instruments

Related Party Disclosures
Events after the Reporiing Period

HLEEE BUEBENNNEU

90



Eale of goods and senvices
Eale of goods and senvices

from coniracts with Cusiomer s
Ireestment revenue
Grantz and other conirbudions
Acceptance by e Crosn Endty of

empioyee Denefits and offer [abiltes

Cther Income

Total revenss

Operating recitt

Gains | osses) on dsposal

Oither Gains ! (Losses)

Hed recult

Dtfear oomprshenches Inooms
Total other sompnehent ve IRoomss

TOTAL CORPREHENINE INRCOMIE

HEW EDUCATION 3TANDARDE AUTHORITY

Stateenemt of Comprehssnsches Inoomis Tor the year snded 30 Juns 2020

203y
20
ch
2y
2y

3@
Hay
3k

£l 4]
3y

The accompeamying notes form part of these fnancisl statements.

NESA Annual Report 2019-20

Aptual Aghsal EBudget Aatual Aoheal

Concolidated Farsnt Concolldatsd Concolldabed Farsnt

Entty Entity Endtty Entity Entity

020 S 200 2iHE 3HE

$oi0a Food $'0aa F000 F00d

116,550 - 113,367 121,784 -

- 113,813 - - 116,318

34573 3573 25,87 45 451 45451

2480 2420 5,855 177 1,778

38 3F 113 - -

453581 150,504 145,221 170,011 185,145

I - mass mas

nm 0 I

- - 22 - -

130482 130,452 38,150 138,784 138,784

2777 - 2,747 4,885 -

3 0S5 3,055 B80S 2,358 2,358

457,548 134,788 144 250 177,053 172,187

3564 3,554 (1,571 70z T

- - 10 - -

113 113 - - -

3751 3,751 11,561 TO&2 T2

A7E1 3,751 (1,561 704 Tz
Page 2

91



Cash and cash equivaienis

Mt Accats | [Lablitec)

E@UTY
Accumuiabed funds ! {Losses)

Total Equity

HEW EDUCATION STANDARDS AUTHORITY

2taisment of Financial Focition ac at 30 June 2020

wom e

-
=1

"
1"

12
13

15
15
15
15

1B
17
w

16
17
7

18

The accompamying notes form part of these financial statements.

NESA Annual Report 2019-20

Aotual Hohsal Eudget Habual Bohsal
Concolidated Parent b Parent
Endthy Entity Enttty Entity Enttty
2020 2020 2020 208 FITEY
o0 #0008 $'000 #0000 #0008
o 14,211 3,847 5508 5505
5184 5184 4.67% 10,480 0,450
21 531 1,712 1,180 1,150
20566 0,555 10,258 17,145 17,145
2 - 3 3
- - I
=7 =7 - 1535 1,538
355 35 253 458 255
1352 1,352 23 2,002 2,003
2137 FXEr 3EN
5068 5065 7,540 8Os B07E
12558 [FE= 11,518 10,082 40,052
33828 33,525 22,20 7228 pafer]
48T 4571 10,210 504 5804
34 - - 207 -
- 34 - - 7
g3z ] 8,254 553 5,538
5245 B,24% -
41 B41 == - -
B1ET - 4,532 E551 -
- 8,157 - - 5551
23,154 2,154 23,627 2,298 2.2
1528 1528 1483 - -
188 - 122 185 -
- 155 - - 155
1316 1,818 1,605 185 155
25010 200 25,232 288 22854
8515 B,S515 (3.030 4,764 4,764
B34S 8515 (3.030 4764 4784
BEE BE1S (3,030 4,764 4,784
Page 3

92



HEW EDUCATION STANDARDS AUTHORITY

Stabsmesnt of Changesc In Eguity for the vear snded 30 Juns 2020

Coneolkdaed Enify Parsnt Endtty

Anoumulated Anpumulated
[Funds Total [Funids Total
o0 F0S0 $'000 000
Ealanos af 1 July 3018 4TE4 474 4,74 4784
Hed recult for the year 3,751 3,751 3,751 3,751
Oitesr nomprehences Inooms - - - -
Total other comprehens ive Inoomes - - - -

Total comprehencive Inoome for

the year 3 3,751 3,7 3,751
Ealanos af 20 June 020 8515 8,515 B,515 B,515

Concolkdaied Endly Parsnt Enttty

Anoumulated Anpumulated
[Funds Total [Funids Total
o0 F0S0 $'000 000
Ealanos af 1 July 3018 2 278 (2378 2278
Hed recult for the year 7042 T2 7042 7082
Oitesr oomprehencies Inooms - - - -
Total other comprshans hwe Imaomse - - - -

Total comprehencive Inoome for

the year TE2 T2 7,042 7,02
Ealanos af 20 June 2018 ATE4 474 4,74 4T84

The accompamying nobes form part of thess financial statements.

Pags 4
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CAZH FLOWSE FROM DPFERATING
ACTIVITIEE

Faymanis

Empioyee neisbed

Persornel Sarvices

Euppliers for goods amd serdices

Finance cosis

Total Paymanbs

HET CARH FLOWE (UEED] | FROM OPERATING
ACTIATIES

CAEH FLOWSE FROM INVEITING ACTIVITIES

Procesds from saies of property, pant and
equipment
Purchase of plant and equipment and leasehold
Improvements
Furchass of inlanglbies asseis
Other

HET CARH FLOWE FROM INVEETING
ACTITIEE

CAZH FLOWS FROM FINARCING ACTIVITIES
Repayment of bormowings and advances
Fayment of principal portion of iz ase Eabiifes

HET CAEH FLOWE FROM FIHANCING
ACTIITIER

MET INCREASE | {DECREAZE] IN CAEH AND
CAZH EGUIVALENTS

Coering cxsh and cass equivalents

CLOSING CASH AND CAZH EQUIVALENTS

HEW EDUCATION STAKNDARDS AUTHORITY

Statement of Cach Flows for the year snded 30 June 230

The accompanying notes form part of these financial stabaments.

NESA Annual Report 2019-20

Antual bl Aabtual Ahsal
‘Concolldated Farent i Farent
Endtty Entity Enttty Entity Entity
2020 1] 20 s s
111,319 - 110,620 (115515 -
- 111,319 - - 195,516
= 25444 22,075 G5 E58, 55,658
351 38| (113 - -
145,801 15 201 133,208 (172574 172574
22153 2,153 104,328 31.804 31,504
- - 1P - -
127,541 127541 36,150 138,255 138,255
Bz14 B514 4,002 E,04E E,345
158,308 158,302 144, 2 178,008 178,005
2 11,507 11,507 4,554 sS4z Sa3z
- - i - -
- - - 308 308
2173 - 1438 1434
- - (2300 - -
2173 (2,970 1,742 1,742
- - (4555 - -
[ (29 - - -
(=] E25 (4 EES - -
8,705 B,TOS (1,532 3,590 3520
B B 5 873 1,818 1,818
T 14201 14,211 3,47 E.50& 5,505
Pags &
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HEW EDUCATION 3STANDARDE AUTHORITY
Mot fo the Ananolal chatsments tor the year snded 30 Juns 2020
1 Statemant of Signfoant &ocosurting Polloles:
{a) Reporting sntfy
The: KEW Education Standards Authority THESA) ks a NEW povemment enfity and s controled by the Siale of New
Eouf Wales, which |5 the uimats parent.
MESA |5 a not-for-profit enSty (a5 profit ks not Bs principal objective) and it has no cash genemating unis.
The: neporting entity CTMESAT) ks consolidated a5 part of the NEW Total Sechor Aocounts.

MEEA a5 & neporting enSty comprises all the entities under Bs conirol, namely the NSW Education Siandands Authorty S2aT Agency
NEEA, E5aiT Agency).

All the: pperating activities of NIEEA ane under the control of NESA which IRCudes sLDporing e sendces requinsd by the Sustralian
Music Examiratons Board and the Aborginal Education Consuladve Group.

The KEEA Eiaff Agency provides persomne] services o KESAL

Iri the process of preparing the consoildaked Snancial stabements for NESA, consising of the confroiiing and oonfrofied entifes,
all inter-enifty transactions and balances have been elminaied

These ¢ Tinancial Tor the: year ended 30 Juns 2000 have buen suthorised for Issus by the Chisf Exeouie
Cficer on 13 Cciober 2000,

§bj Eacle of preparatiosn

MESA's firancial stalements are general pupose finandal sSalemerts which fawe been prenared on an accnaal basis and in
accordance with:
- applicable Ausiralian Accounting Standands [AAS ) (which inchade Australian Accounting inferpretafions )
= the reguirements of Se Pudidc Fnance ang AuchE Act T3 (the Act) and Publlc Snancs and Avak
Reguiation 2018 and
= Tregsurer's Direchons Issusd under the Act.

Propesty, plart and squipment and czriain financial assets ond abiles ans measured ab fair valee. Ciher Snancal sitement fiems
are prepared In acoordance with the historical oost convention except whene specified ofensise.

Judgrants, key assumptons and estimatons manageTent fas made are dscosad i the nesvant notes 1o the francial statsents.

Al amounis ane rounded fo e neanest one Fousand dollars and ars expressed in Ausirallan oumency which s MESA's presaniafion
andl funcSonal cumency.

o] Seoldng Conoesm

MESA's Nimancial sbements Fave besr preparsd on @ going Conosm basis, which conb=mpiates the ponbinuity of normai opserating acvity
and the: nealisation of asseis and the sefement of IRDED2S In T normal courss of Dperations.

MESA maintains careful management of cash fSows with posithie cash fiows for the year and cash on hand and ot ank

a5 at 30 June of Fia.2m.

MESA neceivess 3 grant from the Department of Education which s sufficent io fund ks ongoing operagons.

The Cepartment of Education recetves appropriations from the Consollidated Fund. Appropriations for each financial year are s2f out in
e Appropriafions Act for that year. Due o COVID-18, e ESabs Budges and relaied 2020-21 Appropriation B Fas besn delayed and &
anticipated o be tabbad In Pariament in MoyembenDecsmber 2030, Howsver, pursuant o seciion 4.10 of the GEF Act, fe Tressuner has
authorisesd Minksters o spend speciic amounts from Consoldated Fumd, This authorisaSion ks curment from 1 July 2000 untll the sarier
of 3 Decemiber 2000 jor another day prescribed by repuiafions | or enactment of Se 2020-21 annual Appropriatons A

{d} Etzbement of pompilanos
The financial stabements and nobes comply sith Ausiralian Accounting Standards, which Inciude Australan Accounting Interpretations.
i) Apsounting for ths Goodc and Ssrvioss Tax
IFCome, EvpeEnses and assets ane recogrised ret of Be amount of goods and services B (G5T), excepd that Be:
- amourt of GET incumed by MESA as a purthaser Fat |s not recoverabie from e Acsirallsn Taxabon Office (AT ks
recognised 25 part of an assef's cost of acquisition or s part of an fiem of expense and
- repsivabies and payabies are siabed with the amount of GET Included.

Cxsh Sows are inciuded In the Statement of Cash Fiows on @ gross basis. Howewer, the GET componesnts of cash fiows arsing from
Investng and financing actvibes which are recoverabie from, or payabie Bo, the ATO are classified a5 operating cash fSows.

Page 8
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HEW EDUCATION STANDARDS AUTHORITY
Hotes fo the Ananclal ctatsmeants for the Fear ended 30 Jurs 2020

{f) Forsign cumenoy tranciation
Transaciions In foreign cumencies ans reconded using the Spot rate at the date the ransaction first guaifies for recognition.

Wonstary assets and labies denomimaled in fonsion curencies are ransiated at the functional curency spot rates of exchange at the
erd of e reporting dabe.

Dfferences arising on settiement or ransiaton of monetary Remes are necognised Im net resut

Mormmonatany tems that ane measured in ferms of histoncal cost in @ fonsign oumency are fransiabed wsing e exchangs rates at the dates
of the Intial transactions. Mor-monstany fems mexsursd at fair vaiue Ina fonsign ourency ane transiated using the exchange rates

2 the dabe when T fair value |5 delemined. The gain o loss arsing on ransiation of nom-monetary Rems measunsd at fair vaius b nealed
In line with the: necogniion of the gain or loss on Bhe change in fair vaiue of the iem (Le. transidon @Tenences on Rems whose fair value
{gain or ioss |s recognisad IR ofer comprenens e Income of net resulls ane also Fecognised In offer CompRREnshee INCOME oF Ret nesults,

!
{o) Commparathes Infoammaticn

Except when an AAE permis or reguires offenwise, comparative imformation Is presented In respect of the previous firancial year for all
armsunis neporisd in the Srancal shiements.

{h) Changes In e or reviced AAS

I} EfMectve for the first Bme in 2015-20

HEZSA appilad AAZE 15 Revenue from Contracts with Cusiomers, AMES 052 Income of Mol-for-Froft Entties, and AAZE 15 Leazes
for tr first ez, T nahure anad efiect of e changes &= 8 resut of sdoption of these new scoounting standumis are describad beiow.

Eeveral offer amerdments and inferprstations appdy for the first Hme In FY2015-20, but donot haree an Impact on the firancial
shierments: of NESA.

AAEE 16 Revanud from Comiraces with Cusiomers

AMES 15 supersedes AMER 111 Constrcton Confrads, AASE 118 Revense and neiated Intzrpretations and &t appdies, with Imied
exceptions, toall revenee arising from ontracts with customers. AASE 15 estabilshes a Tve-step moded b acooant for revenue ansing
Trom confracts with cusiomers and regquires that revenue be recognised at an amount that refiects e consideration o which NESA
expects b be enttied 1k exchangs for ransfaming goods or sanvices bo 8 customer.

AMES 1S requires enfities o eyercise [udpement, taking Indo consideration all of the: relevant facts and cicumsiances when
2pplying each step of the modsl io confracts Wi their cusiomers. The standard also speciies the acoounng for Be incremental
cosis of obiaining a confract and the costs direciy refafed fo 8ufling a confract. In addiion, the stbmdard requines Frelevant disciosunes.

I accondance with the FansSon provisions In AASE 15, NEEA has adopied ANSE 15 netrospectvely Wi the cumuistive ssact of
Inttaity appilying the standard recogrised af the dabe of initial appication, Le. 1 July 2013 NESA has ussd the transSoral practcal
epeciart permitied by fe sSandand bo nefiect fe aggregate sffect of 2l of the modfications that poour betors 1 July 2018 when:
* idenitfying the satisfied and unsatishied performance ciolgations

* determining e transacion price

* alocating Fe ransaction price b the safsfied and unsatisTed performance ohilgabions.

“The: Impasct of appiying the shove practicsl avpesdients [= not axpecied b significantty afert e financial staierments.
“The: adopdon of AAES 15 did not hawe an impact for the: Snancial year.

AABE 1968 Incom of Med-fer-Profit Entitias
AAES 1058 repiaces most of e sisting nequinements In AAES 1004 Contributions. The scope of AASE 9004 ks now Imbed mainty i
confrbutions by owners (Rciuding paramentary approprissons Sat satisty the definiion of 3 conirbution by cwners), adminkstratte
amangements and kabiftes of govemment deparsments assumed by other antties.

AAES 1058 applies o Income with a donafion component, Le. tansacions wihene the consideration io aoguire an assef ks signficanty
ez than fair value principally o srabie 2 nok-ior-proft endity 1o furier Bs objecives; and volunizar senvices. AAES 1055 adopls &
residunl 3poroach, meaning Fat enties first apoly other applcabie Australan Arcouniing Standands (2.0, AAEE 1004, AAES 15,
AAES 15, AASE 5, AMASE 137) 1o & rsnzaction Bafone recognising income.

Mot-for-profit entibies nesd o defermine whether & ansacton iscontains & donation (socounted for under AAES 9058 or &
coniract with a customer (accounted for under AAES 15).

AAES 1058 requines rRcogNtion of receipt of an asset, after the recognition of any riated amounts In accordance wih ofer
Aussraiian Accounting Standarnds, as income:
~when the pbigations under S transfer I3 safisfied, for transfers o enabie an ety o acquine or consruct a
recogrisable non-Snancial asset St sl be controdied by NESA
~mmediately, for 3l offer Rcome Wi e soope of AASE 1055

Ini accondance with the iransion provisions in AAES 1058, NESA has adopted AASE 9052 nefrospectively with the cumisthe
efact of iIntfally applying the standard ot the dabe of iniisl spplcation, Le. 1 July 2019 NEEA has adopled Se prachical
expeciert I AASE 055 whersby axising assebs scquired for consideration significantty less than fair value principaly o
enabie NESA o further fts objsctves, ane not restated bo their fair value.

The adopsion of AMES 1055 did not Fave an Impact Sor e francial year.
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HEW EDUCATION 3TANDARDE AUTHORITY
Moies fo the Ananolal chatsments for the year snded 30 Jurs 2020

AAZE 18 Liases

AMES 16 supersedes AAER 117 Leagses , Inlermnetation 4 Defermining whethar an Aranpemean’ comtains 3 Lease,
Interpretation 115 Cperafing Legses — Incenfves and Inferpretation 127 Evaiuating e Substance of Transacions involdng
the Lepal Form of @ Lease . The standard st out the principles for the recogriion, measurement, presantation and disciosuns:
of mxses. and neguines essess o necognise most Eases on e balance shest

Lessee acoounting

AMER 15 requires MESA o account for all leases under a single or-balancs sheet mode] similar bo the accounting for firance

mases under AAER 117, As the lessee, NESA recognises @ exse (labity and right-of-use asset of the Inception of the ease.

The lsxse Rabity i= measured af he present walue of the fSubure ease payments, dscounisd using the inferest e implck in Fe ease,
or et lessee’s Incremental borrowing rate [T the inkenest rate Implict in the ssse cannot be readly debermined. The odresponding
rghi-ofuse asset s measured at Fe value of the lease lability adjusted for lease payments before inception, lease ncenthies,

Intial direct costs and estmastes of costs for dismanting and remicving the asset or restonng the sie on whichiit ks located.

MESA has adopbed e partial retrospective oplon In AASE 16, whene the curulsthve eact of inftially appiying AASE 96 s
recognised on 1 Juty 2015 and the companathies for e year ended 30 June 2015 are not restabed.

I rmdation by isases St had previousty besn ciassfed 2t Cparatng leases’ Under AASE 117, 3 lase labdity s recogrised

o 1 Juty 2018 at S present woiue of the remaining lease payments, discounted using the lessee's ncremental bomowing ke
af the dabe of Initial appécation. The weight=d average |essee's ncnemental bomowing rake appied i the e labiges

on 1 July 2013 was 1418,

The: comesponding right-of-use assef |s inftialy necorded on ranstion at an amount squal to the kase labiity, adheted by
e amcunt of amy prepald or accrued lease payments relating 1o Tat lease recognised in the statement of Sinancial pesBon
s ot 30 June S, The exceplion ks Aght-of-use assets Fat ane subject o accsierabed depredation.

These assets are messuned at Feir fair vaiue ol 1 July 20419

For lmases previoushy ciassTiad as Anance eases MESA recogrized Fe camying amount of Fe ease asset
and isase kabilty mmedately betore ranston as the camying amount of the ight of Lse asset and e l=ase labity
a the date of Inftal appécation. The measurement principies of AASE 15 are oniy appied F%er fat date.

NESA miected to use the practical sxpediant 1o sxpense lease payments for isase comtracts that, at their commenceent
dabe, have 3 jsase tar of 12 months o lass and do ot contain 3 punchass option (shors-iar leases), and ease contacs
Tor which the undiertying asset 1= valued at §10,000 or under when new (ow-yalue assets)

I anpiying AASE 15 for the first Hme, NEEA has used the Soliowing practical evpedisnts permited by S standand:

* nof reaszass. whether & confract ks, or comtains, a leass af 1 July 2019, for those contracts previously assessed under AASE 117
and intemrstation 4.

* no recogrise 3 lease kabilty and right-of-Use-asses for shork i ieases Sat =nd wihin 12 monts o e date of Intial apploation,

+ exriuding e nial dinect costs from e measurement of S rght-of-use assat of S date of NSa applcadon.

The: effect of adoption AMES 15 as af 1 July 2013 (IRcrease’ (decnease] IS, &5 Tollows:

FDD

Arcatn

Right-ofuse asseis 2.8
Tods' asseds b3 o)
LiabliRies

Bomowings 2858
Tots Fabilities 1EEE
Equity

Accumuiated Tunds -

The lmxse Eshiities 32 af 1 July 2019 can be reconcliad io the openaling lease commiments as of 30 June 2012, 3 fodows:

Ea]
Ciperafing lease commitments 2 at 30 June 2015
IGET Inciuded) TNz
[Less): GET Incuded In oparafing lesse commitments BES
Ciperafing lease commitments a5 at 30 June 2015 [GET enchuded) BT
‘Weighbed arverage InCremental borowing o as ab 1 July 2013 141
Discounted operaling lease commbments as at 1 Juy 2009 B 212

Afd: commiments reabing 1o leases previous iy cassified
as finance leases (GET exciuded)

[L=ss]: commitments relaling o shod-erm leases (22
[L=ss]: commitments relaling o leases of low-nlue assebs {5
Addiflessl confracts re-assessed as lesse conracts

Aod: Legse paymens reabng io renswal periods: not inciuded In

‘operating l=ase commitments as at 30 Juns 2019

Addilesc adustments reiating 1o changes In the index or rate:

Fmcing variabis payments -
Lzase Iabifties as af 1.Juty 2019 —  iF=
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HEW EDUCATION 3TANDARDE AUTHORITY
Mot fo the Ananclal clatsments for the year snded 30 Jurs 2020

) Essued bt not yet effectie
KEW public sechor entiies ane not permited fo =arfy adopt new AAS unless Treaxsury determines ofensise.

The: fodowineg new AAE have nof been appiled anad ane not yet effective. Manspement has reviewsd the actual Impact of Tese
Etandards in NESA's firancial sialements in the year of el inital sappdcation.

AAES 1T Insurance Conracks

AAES 10D Earvice Conp=ssion Amangements: Graniors

AMES 2018-5 Amendmeents o Australlan Accounting Standands — Defemal of AASE 1053

AMES 20186 Amendments o Acstrallan Accounting Standards — Definllon of 3 Business

AMES 201ME-T Amendments o Acstralian Accounting Standands — DefiniSon of Matenal

AMES 20151 Amendmeents o Acstrallan Accounting Standands — Refensnces o the: Concephal Frameswonk
AMES 20152 Amendmients o Acstrallan Accounting Standards — Impeemeniabion of AASE 10E5

AMES 20153 Amendmients o Australlan Accounting Standards — Inlerest Rale Benchmark Reform

AAER X057 Amendrents b Acsiralian Accouniing Standands — Disciosure of OFS Measures of Bey Flscal

Aggregates and GAAFGFE Reconciiations.
MESA has assessed that frere wil be no matenial mpact in e year of Infbial applcabion of these standards.
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HEW EDUCATION 3TANDARDSE AUTHORITYT
Hotes o the Ananclal clabsmeants for the year ended 39 Juns 2020

2 Expencet Evoluding Locoss.

(3} Employes rejated expenses

Saiaries and wages (nciuding annual lsave] |
SupemnnUaton - defined bereft pans
Supemnnuaton - defined onrbution plans
Long sarvice gy

Whoriers' compenzation nouranoe

Faymod e ard fringe berefits tax

1 An amount of §9. 1285 (201 B8-15: $0L67 =) for empioyee related expenses wxs capialksad during fe financial year

[by Personnel sendoes

Personns senvioss

[l Cther operating expenses. Rciude the foliowing:

AuBor's FETRnEration

- st of Bre financial shaisments

Computing Expenses

Couriers

Experse reiating io short-=m eases
Experze reiating 1o leazes of Dw-vaiue assets
ariabie lease payments, not incuded In ease
labiNties

Fees for services

Fumiture and equipment

Insurance:

Legal fees

1 An amount of §1.0=5m (2018-19: $0L625m) for conractor neiated expenses was Capkalised during the francial year

ob= 2[a)

Total mantenance expenses included In Mote 2(a) +
=1

* Reconcliation - Tofal makfenanos sxpanse

NESA Annual Report 2019-20

Concodidated Farent Concollidated Farsnt
Enttty Entity Enttty Entity
2020 o] 2m8 2ms
§oa0 E gi=e] §'00a 000
EEEL] - 102472 -
44 - s
TEs4 - 7834
2482 - 4,625 -
33 - =5 -
5752 - ) |
TESD : ik
- 113,813 - 116,318
= TTTETY TTESTE
o o -] B2
54 =t 3,150 3,150
3 = 254 284
3578 3,578
i T
1134 1131 1,977 1977
TE4 TEd 1,156 1,196
a2 3z 43 L]
&26 5% IA I
1,237 1337 " 1,25 1298
ET 3517 3,538 3,538
413 418 473 4T3
5,162 5,2 17,654 7.8
1,717 1,717 2,950 2,960
=1 554 1411 1411
2338 2,135 2,554 2,554
2762 2 1,653 1,683
4 4 = 51
=1 = I For
1,084 1,054 536 B35
1,778 1,778 2,102 2,002
=TT R EIIT Y
Concodidated Farent Concolidated Farsnt
Enity Entity Enftty Entity
2020 o] 2m8 2ms
§oa0 E gi=e] §'00a 000
1,337 4,337 1,258 1,298
337 T T TIEE
Page 10
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HEW EDUCATION 3TANDARDE AUTHORITYT
Wt fo the Ananclal clabsmeants for the year ended 39 Juns 2020

Resogniiion and Mascursmant

Mainternanos Expanss
Cea-io-dayy servicing costs or mainierance are charped as sxpenses &5 inoumed, excspt where they reiabe o the replacement or an
enhance=ent of a part or oomponent of an asset, Inwhich case Fe oosh are capiallsed and deprecisbed.

Insuranoe
HESA'S IRsurancs actvities ane conducted Snough e NE'W Treasury Managed Fund Scheme of seif insurance for Govemment entbies.
The expense [premium) ks defermined by the Fund Manager based on past caim experience.

Lo anpoiniisad (g I 30 June 2079)

Oiaraling Ladses

Up b 30 June 2019, aoaratng esse payrmants. ane racognised as an oparatng expense in the Statement of Compretanshe Inoome
Of 3 shraigh-ine basls over the ease erm. An operaling lease b5 3 lease other Tan a finance ease.

Lowss avponss Trom 1 Joly 2095)
From 1 July 2013, NEEA recognises the lssse payments associsbed with Be following types of eases a5 an expense
on 3 shraighi-ine baesls:

- Lepses that mest the definifon of shori-ierm Le. wiene the: lease farmn ot commencement of e lease s

12 months or k2ss. This exciudes ieases wih & purchas: option.

- Leases of assels thal are valued ab §10,000 o under when new.
Variabie mase paymenls not IncChaded In T measurement of the lease Tabily (L. varabie ease payments Tal
00 ot depend on an index or a rate, nifaly mexsured using he index o rale a5 af Te commencement dabe).
These payments ane recognised in e period Inwiich Be svent or condiion Sat Triggers those payments oours.

Concolidated Farwnt Concolldated Farent
Endty Entity Enttty Entity
2020 e 208 ikl
000 FDD $'000 #0023
|dy Deprecisbon and amortisation expense
Crepreciation
Leasehoid mprosemets 538 538 e 545
Fiant and equipment 113 113 TE FL]
Right-pf-ume asseis 548 s - -
1,299 129 T2 T2
Aot sation
Eoftware intangibies 1,181 1,181 1,054
TIET T1=T TS
Totd depreciabion and arorisaton expense 2480 TE0 1778 1776
Refer io Mole 11, 12 and 13 for necognifion and measurement polcies on depreciafion and amartisation.
Concolidatsd Farent Concolldatsd Farsnt
Endty Entity Enttty Entity
2020 e 208 ikl
000 FDD $'000 #0023
=} Firance oosts
Interest sxpense from kease labifties 38 = -
Tokl imierest sypense L] = - -

Rescgnifion and Mascursmasnt

Finance cosés consist of inferest and other cosks Inoured In comnechon with leasing.
Finance cosis are recognisad as expenses in e pariod I wiich ey ane iInoured, in
accondance with Treaswury's kandabe o rot-for-profit NEW GOE entties.

Page 11
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HEW EDUCATION 3TANDARDE AUTHORITYT
Mobsc fo the Bnanclal ctabsmenbs for the year snded 30 Juns 2020

T. Aavenus

Untll 30 Jure 2013, Income |5 reoognised in accordance with AASE 111 Construction Confracts, AASE 118 Revenoe
and AAES 1004 Contributions.

From 1 July 2013, incorme |s recognised In accondance with B reguirements of AAER 1S Revence fom Confracis
Wit Customers of AASHE 1058 Income of Nod-for-Proff Entlies | dependent on whether Tene b5 3 confract weh 2
ousiomer defined by AAZE 15 Revenue from Comfracts with Cudiomerns . Comments. reganding the accounting
podicies for the recognition of Income: ans dsoussed beiow,

(2} Sake of goods and services from contracts with

customers | Sale of goods and services Concolidated Farent Concolldabsd Farsnt
Endity Entity Entity Entity
20 0 2ma ms
$o0a E g el $'000 F002
Saie of goods and senices
Publcation and copyright fees 8574 g7
Higher School Cerificates user charpes 1,125 133
NAFPLAN user charges 5,154 B 154
fusiralan Music Exsmination Eoard fees 3,98 3,965
Exhibition fees 555 583
Acorediation fass 5,053 18,053
Other 350 s
Sale of goods and senices rom
conkacts with usiomess:
Sake of goods:
Publcation and copyright fees TE1 51
Subtiofal of safe of goods el el
Rendering of services:
Higher School Cerificates user charpes 1424 1424
NAPLAM user charges 232 53z
fusiralan Music Exsmination Eoard fees 3,140 3,140
Exhibition fees 353 k-]
Acorediation fass 14523 14,523
Other 42 e
Sublotal off rengsing of sendoss 20450 20,420
21731 21,221 29445 25,445
Resognition and Mascursmant

UinHl 20 June 3013

Sala of goods

Rievenue fom saie of goods is recogrised a3 nevenus wher NESA fransfers te sigrificant ricks and rewands of
ownership of the goods, Usuaily on delfvery of the goods.

Fendeing of senvices
Revenue fom rendenng of sarvices s recognised when the senvios s provided or by referencs o the stage of
compietion (based on labour hours Incumed 1o daksh

From 1 i

Sada of goods

Rewenue Fom saie of goods b= nscognised wihen NESA saisfies a performmanos obilkgation by transfering &

prorisad poods such as publicalions or access o copyright malerisl. NESA bypicaly salisfies s periomranos obigations
e e e I made.

The payments are typicaily dus 30 days from the saie date.

Revenue fom fess saies |5 recognised based on the price speciied In e confract, and nevenue IS only recogrised 1o e
exient that it s Righty probabie that & significant reversal will not oocur. Mo slement of financing 1= desmed present as the saies
are made with & short credit berm. Mo woume dscount or warmanty |s provided on the saie.

Rundaring of senices

Revenue fom renderng of serdces ks ecognised when KEEA salisfies e performance obigation by arsfsmring
e promissd services.  Senices Include access o participate In HEC, NAFLAN or AMEB sxaminabions.

HEESA ypically salisfies s performanos chilgations: when an involce for Be service s raissd.

Conirod of the poods or aocess o e service |s ransfermed o the cushomer upon sake of the goods or services.
The payments are typicaily dus 30 days from the saie date.

The revenes s measunsd al fe ransacion prics agresd under e contrac,. The cost charged for each service s reviewed
on an annual basis @kng Into consideraion CF1 Increases. The price charped ks noft RegoSable.

The performance obiigation |s deemed b have ocoumed Upon sale.

Mo mlement of firancing s desmed present as pay™ents ane due when serdice s provided.

Fiader Mobe 5 for Fe disclosures of the aggregate amount of the ransacion price alocaiesd fo performance
obdgations that are unsaisted (or partialy ursalsSed) ot the end of e neporting period, amd wien BNESA
expects b recognise e unsatisted portion a5 nevenue.
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HEW EDUCATION 3TANDARDSE AUTHORITY
Hotss fo the Ananclsl chatsmeants for the year snded 30 Juns 2020

Concolldated Farent Concolidabed Farent
Endtty Entity Enttty Entity
2020 ] 20me ms
00 F0oD $'D00 F0DS
[bi  Grants and other contributions
Wocational education and training 47 M7 M7 T
Crown Eniity Redundancy Grant 438 L35 528 L]
Depariment of Education 127,156 127,158 137,150 137,150
Elpibility of AccreciEsion Grant ore:} ot 1,856 1,635
(= _§ 1,536 1,535 [x] 63
T35 T3 3,74 TIETH
Fesognition and Mascursmsnt
Uil 30 June 013
Income from grants (other than contribution by cwners) s recognised when NESA cbiains conirol ower the
conribufion. MEEA ks deemed fo have assumied conirol when the grant is recehied or recehiabie.
Coniributions are recogrised at their fair valee, ConbibuSions of senioes are recognised) when and onfy when
2 fair value of fose services can be relabiy debermined and the senvices would be purchased i not donsbed.
From 1 Juily 2018
Fevenue fom grants with suSiciently specific periormano:: obiigations |5 recognized as when NESA
satisfies a performance cbligation by compising e promised sereice, Such as the devsiopment
o & Spexific DuTicuium module.
The payments are pically due 30 days from the saie date.
Fesyenue fom fese grants 15 recognised based on e grant amount specifisd In the funding
agreamentSunding approval, and revenue ks only recognised o the exbent that E = highly probabie
Tata signficant reversal will not ocoer. The grant amount ks determined In advance of amy work commencing.
Mo element of firancing ks desmed present as funding pAyments ane usLRly recefved In advanos or
shortly after the reievant obligation s satisSed.
Fefier Mobe 3 for ransaction price aliccaled 1o e perfiormancs cbiigations Tat have not ben sabsfied
o the ond of e yeor and when i especied io be necognised as revenue.
Income from grants without suSicientty specic perfomance obilgabions i necognised winen BESA
‘blains control over the granted asseis (2.0 cash).
MNESA neceives s funding wia grants fhom the Department of Education.
Concolldated Farent Concolidabed Farent
Endtty Entity Enmitty Entity
20210 pairas] 208 Piig]
$o00 oo $'000 FODo
il Accepiance by the Crown Entity of empioyes
benefis and other Eabdties
SuperanmLaton - defined beneft 441 - a3 -
Long service leave 2312 - 4,230 -
Pagrol fax 2 - 33 -
2TTT - 4,855 -
[y  Cther Income
Froject Smrvices L =1 43 &3
FEsurance B -3 =5 59
hark Marager 2568 2868 2773 2713
Creersens fees - - 32 iz
Miscelaness 15 15 45 45
IIEE TES TR THEE
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HEW EDUCATION 3TAMDARDSE AUTHORITY
Haotes to the fnanclsl clatements for the year sndsd 39 Juns 2020

4. Condflons and Asciriotions on Income of Mod-for-Promt
Entriec

The Educafional Siandards AwhonTy A 2073 (the NEEA ACT) ab Section 15 establshed the Education ESandards Authorty Fund
the MIEELA Fund') iniD which s 5o be paid &l fees. and changes, any appropriations and amy other money payaiie o NESA under

e Teacher Accreaifation Ao 2004
The KEEA furd has a separabe operafing bank account. The fund Fad a balance of $2.14dm ot 30 Jurme X000

The NEEA Act sSpulates Bat money heid In e Fund ks bo e appiled onfy for the purposes of mesting costs incurmed in connexction with
e accrediation of leachers under e Act and In monfioring, maintaining and developing teacher qualty.

& Dfher Gaing / (Locees) Concolidated Parent Concolldated Farsnt
Enttty Entity Enttty Entity
200 . il 2m8 FLRE]
00 FD5D $'000
Impairment losses on right-of-uss assets under ieases 113 113 -
113 113 - -

Recognifion and Mascursmasnt

impaimment losses o non-francia assets

Imparment losses may ans: on non-financial assets hedd by NESA from ime o time. Accounting for impalrment losses
Is dependient upon the Indvidual asset [or groun of assets) subject io mpairment. Acoouning Pollcies and svents gving
rise io impairment losses are discosed In the folowing notes:

Trade recetvabizs and contract asssts - Mok S

Property, plart and equipment - Mol 11

L=azes - Mode 12

Intangibie assets - Nols 13
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H5SW EDUCATION STANDARDS AUTHORITY
Motas to the financial statements for the year ended 34 June 2020

&. Program group statemants for the year snded 30 June 2020

Program Group 1* Program Group 2 Program Group 3* Program Group £° Total

2029 W13 2020 2013 2020 203 2020 2013 2020 2013
EXPENSES & INCOME $7000 $'000 $000 $'000 000 4000 $000 £'000 $000 000
Expensss axcluding losses
OpEraing EXpenses
- Empinyes related 5,438 15,832 3,238 12,178 B6,151 77842 11,716 15,332 116,550 121,784
= DMer operaling expenses 2085 .o 1,378 3163 25,436 29473 2674 6.500 T 25431
Depraciation and amansation 120 ] ) 174 213 1,680 870 23% 462 2,460 1.776
Financs Costs 3 - 3 - 2B - 2 - k] -
Total sxpansss axcluding lesss 11,768 3073 10,730 15,554 118,435 108,250 14,650 23094 153,881 17001
Revanua
‘Zale of Qooss and Services 533 =39 11,778 16,155 28,245
Sale of Qoods and Services

from contracts with customers 3 Eil 5,501 14,623 .21
Invesiment revenue - - - - - - - - - -
Grants and other contributions 12,046 20,558 8,901 16,774 55,652 S0,EE0 13,683 11,162 130,482 138,764
AcCEpancs by the Crown Enfity of emplayes
benefts and other abliities 25 w24 20 437 2052 2622 am 633 2777 4,366

OmEr INComs - 30 - - 3,058 2693 - bl 3,055 2958
Total ravenus 12,653 22805 3,437 17,850 105,850 108,353 28,555 28033 157,545 177,053
Galns { (Losses) on disposal - - - - - - - - - -
Omer Gans | (Losses) ) - “ - [33) - (3] - (113} -
Met result 880 (258 {1,357 2,236 [3.728) =) 13,855 4345 3,751 7,042
Other Income
Increase § {decrease) In revaluation surplus - - - - - - - - - -
Ofher - - - - - - - - - -
Total ofther comprehenslve Income - - - - - - - - - -
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 860 (288) [1,357) 2,736 [2.728) &3 13,958 4345 3,751 7.042
ENTITY' ASSETS & LIABILUITIES 2020 3 2020 2013 2020 2ma 2020 2013 2020 2013

$000 $o00 $000 $o00 000 $o00 $000 $'000 $000 $o00
Current Azasts
Cash and cash eguivalents 1.088 s 938 10 10,756 3,029 1.367 2092 14,211 5506
Recalvabiss 1403 523 156 209 4 5,753 4,261 3975 E.164 10,280
Contract assets - - - - -
Inventones 285 OB - - 796 472 - - 551 1,160
Total current assets: 2,788 1,508 1,154 3 11,398 9234 5,628 BDET 20,968 17,148
Hon-currant Asasts
Recaivables - 1 1 1 1 1 - - 2 3
Confract assets - - - - -
Property, plant and equipment 110 200 107 160 == 1,382 135 261 1,352 2,003
Right-0of-U=e assels 174 168 1578 | 213 2137
Intangibis asssts 488 - 458 B 3,266 3B 4,544 32 5,068 BOTE
Total non-cumsnt asssts T3 TeE T4E i 5,885 M7 2155 432 12,559 10,062
TOTAL ABSETS 3,539 22372 1,500 1,126 17,263 14271 10,623 5,553 33,525 720
Current labdities
Fayabiss 17 33 17 313 2425 6,680 2,846 8,131 5,505 6,111
Ofher 48 - a4 - 478 - &l - 632 5,526
Coniract llablifes 253 - 1B 7738 E.249
Eomowings &2 51 474 g2 841
Proviskns 565 1,339 7 1332 6,035 233 E20 1,559 B 167 E,561
Tatal current Nablittiss 1,175 1712 859 1,645 9,831 8211 11,523 9730 23,194 22,298
Mon-current lablities
Contract llabiites - - - - -
Eomowings 132 128 1203 164 1,528
Proviskons 13 35 15 33 138 = 13 41 168 166
OTEr Nan-CUment Iabiities. - - - - - - - - - -
Total non-cumsnt labilttes 147 3% 144 3 1342 8 183 40 1818 168
TOTAL LIABILITIES 1322 1747 1,003 1,678 10,573 9,289 11712 9770 25,010 29,484
MET A53ETS 2217 525 g7 [552) 5,250 5.002 {883 [211) 8,515 4,764

Expenses and Income, excapt for Iméesiment revenus have been allocat=d on an achual basls . Assels and llabillles have been allocated on an aciual Das’s or Dy staMng numbers except for cash

wifiich Is not atributadle.
* The names and purposes of 2ach program groug are summarnsed below.
Program Group Deacriptions:
Program Group 1: Curnculum Standards.
: ThiS DIOGTEM COWES Providing relsvant high qUaiity syIaDUESS, COUNSSE and SUPDort matenals hat promaosz high standards
of primary (K-5) and secondary [Years 7-12) education for a full rANge of siudents.

Program Group 2- School Standargs
Objectives: This program covers regisiering and acorediting non-govemment schools, regisianng home schooling, approving course

PrOVIZETs for SLEnts from OVErSEas and e redg of tzacner aumorties.
Program Group 3: Assessmant os
Objectives: This [rogram covers ng School Certifieate [SC) Bsts i 2011, Higher School Cartifieats (H5C) examinations,

Australlan Musk Examinations Board (AMEE) examinations, administering the Recon of School Achievement (RoSA) and being the test
administration autharity for the National Assessment Program for Litzracy and Numeracy (NAPLAN) from 2013,

Program Group 4: Teaching Standards
Objectives: This program covers as5essing the quallfications of teachers t meet the requirements for provisional or conditional accrediiation.
Adminisiration of the acoreditzTon requiremanss for all ieachers In NSW schools Including earty ehildnood teachars is also a part of tis program.
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HEW EDUCATION STANDARDS AUTHORITY
Notes to the Ainancial statements for the year ended 30 Jung 2020

7. Current Asssis - Cash and Cash Equivalents Consolidated Parent Consolidated Parent
Entity Entity Entity Entity
2020 2020 2019 2013
000 000 000 000
Cash at bank and on hand 14,211 14,211 5,006 5,506
14211 14211 SEﬂE 5,506
For the purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash eguivalents Includes cash at bank and cash on hand.
Cash and cash equivalent assets recognisad In the Statement of Financial Posltion are reconclied at the end of the financil year to the
statement of cash Niows as follows:
Cash and cash equivalents |per Statemeant of Financial
Position) 14,211 14,211 5,506 5,506
Cash and cash equivalents (per Statemeant of Cash Flows) TLIT T4 T 5,005 5,005
Fefer to Note 25 Tor detalls regarding credt risk and market sk ansing from Snancial Instruments.
52.144m of these balances Torm part of the NESA Fund and restrictions apply. See Mole 14 for detals.
& Cument/ Mon-Current Assets - Recslvables Consolidated Parent Consolidated Parent
Entity Entity Entity Entity
2020 2020 2019 2013
000 000 000 000
Trade recelvables from confracts with customers 1,274 1,274
Sale of goods and seniices B18 615
Accreditation Fees receivable 5,067 5,987 4,545 4,545
6,641 B.B41 5,183 5,183
Less Allowance for expected credh losses
- Trade recelvables from contracts with cusbomers 1,458 1,455
- Trade receivables from sake of goods and services 500 500
Total expacted credit losses 1459 1,455 500 500
Sundry government debtors 136 136 - -
Crown Entity Regundancy Grant 623 623 B30 630
Accreed Tess - - 4,996 4,996
Prepayments - Curment 23 23 i 171
Prapayments - Mon-Cument F F 3 3
6,166 &, 166 10,453 10,453
Consolidated Parent Consolidated Parent
Entity Entity Entity Entity
2020 2020 2019 2013
000 000 000 000
“Movement in the allowance for axpactad credit los5as
Ealance at the beginning of the yaar 500 500 534 o34
Amounts writtan off during the year {180} {130} {752} {752)
Amaounts recovered during the year - - - -
Increase [ (decrease) In allowance recognised In net
result 1,139 1,130 38 L
Ealance at the end of the year 1,459 1,455 SO0 500
== == = —

Detalls regarding credlt risk of rage recelvables that are nefiher past due nor Impaired,
are disclosed I Note 25,

Recognition and Maasurement

All ‘reguiar way punchasss or sales of financial assets ans recognis=d and derscognised on a rade date basls. Regular way purchases or
sales are purchases of sales of inancial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame estabiishad by regulation o convention

In the markatplacs.

Recelvables are Initlally recognised at fair value pius any direclly atibutable transaction costs. Trade recelvables that do not contain

a significant financing component are measurad at the ransaction price.
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HEW EDUCATION STANDARDS AUTHORITY
Motes to the fnanclal stataments for the year anded 30 June 2020

SHDW measuramant

MESA Noigs receivabies Wi the Objective to colisct he contraciLal casn Iows and terefore Measures Mem at amortsed cost ushg
the effective Interest method, less any Impairment. Changes are recognised In the net result for the year when Impaired, derecognised or
through the amortisation process.

Impairmant

MESA recognises an allowance for expected credh osses (ECLS) for il debt inancial assets not hald at fair value through profit or loss.
ECLs are based on the diferenca between the contractual cash flows and the cash flows that NESA expects in racelve, dscounted

at the original effactive Interest rate.

For frade racelvables, NESA apolies a smpified approach In calcuiating ECLs. MESA recognises a loss allowance based
on Ifetima ECLs at each reporting date. NESA has establshed a provision matx based on its historical credt lss experience
for trage recaivables, adusted for forward-looking Tactors specilic o the receivabie.
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HEW EDUCATION STANMDARDS AUTHORITY
Nofss to the financial statements for the year ended 30 Jung 2020

3. Contract Azzets and Llabliitles

Consolidated Parent Conaolldated Parant
Entity Entity Entity Entity
2020 2020 1. July 2013 1 July 2013
000 $'000 $000 $'000
adjusted for adjusated for
AASE 15 AASE 15
Contract laolities - curnent 5,249 5,249 9,329 9,329
Contract llablldes - mon-current - - - -
g,249 §,249 9,329 9,329

Contract recevables (Included In node §) -

Recognitien and Maasuramant

Contract assats relabe 1o NESA's night to consideration In exchange for goods transfermed to customersiworks completed, but nod billed at

the reporting date In respect of goods and senvices.
The balance of coniract assets at 30 June 2020 Is nil.
The contract asset balance has not changed during the year.

Contract llablities refate to consideration recelved In advance from cUsiDmers In respect of beacher annual accreditation fess and AMED exams

and copyTight fzes.

The balance of coniract llabdiiies at 30 June 2020 was Impacted by business disruptions caused oy COVID-19.

The conitract liability balance has decreased during the year dwe reducad Involkcing and fe2 cancallations.

Conaolidated Parent
Entity Enttity
2020 2020
$o000 000
Revenue recognised that was Included In the
contract lablity balance (adjusted for
AASE 15) at the baginning of the year 2,329 9,328
Revenue recognised from performance
obligations satisfied In previous perlods - -
The Transaction price aliocated i the remaining
perfarmance abilgations from conracts
with cusiomers 5,249 §,249

The Transaction price allocated to the remalning performance oblgations relates to annual accrediiation Tees, exam fees

and copyright fees.
100% Is expacied to be recognised as revenue I the 2020-21 financlal year.

Papea 18

NESA Annual Report 2019-20

107



HEW EDUCATION STANDARDS AUTHORITY
Notes to the inancial statements for the year ended 30 Jung 2020

100 Current Assets - Inventories Consolldated Parent Consolidated Parant
Entity Entity Entity Entity
2020 2020 2019 2mM3
$'000 000 000 000

Halg-for-distnbumon
Publications siock - at cost 15 15 234 234
19 Lk T3 234

Haig-for-resale

Publications siock - at cost 57z 57z 046 Q46
arz arz 026 Sd6
el | el | 1,130 1,130

A proviskon for pbsoiescence of $0.236m & Included In the above amounts.

Recognition and Maasurament

Inventones held for dstribution are stated at cost, adusted when applcable, for any loss of service potential. A loss of service potential

Is Identified and measured based on the exsience of a curment replacement cost that |s lower than the camying amount. Inventonss

{other than those held for distribution) are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost ks calculated using the “first In firs? out™
method

The cost of Inveniories acquired at no cost or for nominal conslderation |s the cumeant replacement cost a5 at the date of acguisiion.
Current replacement cost is the cost NESA would Incur 1o acquire the assst. Met realisable value Is the estimated seling price In the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of compietion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
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NEW EDUCATION STANDARDS AUTHORITY
Motss to the Ainancial statements for the year ended 30 Juns 2020

11. Proparty, Plant and Equipment

Total progesty, plant and equipment

Leasshold Plant and
Improvemsnts Equipmant Tofal
$000 $000 $000
AL 1 July 2013 - falr valug
IGIDES CATYINg amount 9,632 11,454 21137
Accumuated depreciation
and impairment (B, 148) {10, S36) (19,134}
Met carrying amount 1,535 458 P E]
Leasshold Plant and
Improvemsnts Equipmamnt Tofal
$000 $'000 $000
AL 30 June 2020 - Talr valus
IGIDES CATYINg amount 9,633 11,454 21137
Accumuated depreciation
and impairment (B,636) [11,098) [19,785)
Met carmying amount T 35 1352

Reconclliation
A reconciilation of the carmying amount of e3ch class of property, plant and equipmeant at the
baginning and end of the reparting period IS 52t ot beiow:

Leasshold Plant and
Improvemsnts Equipmamnt Tofal
$000 $'000 $000
Yaar endad 30 Juns 2020
Met carrying amount at beginning of year
peginning of year. 1,535 458 2,003
Depreciation expense |538) {113 [E51)
Met carmying amount at end of year =kl ki T35
Leasshold Plant and
Improvements Equipment Total
$000 $'000 $000
AL 1 July 2018 - falr valug
IGIDES CATYINg amount 9,633 11,174 20,857
Accumuated depreciation
and impairment {7.502) {10,910} [18.412)
Met carrying amount pRER] jii: TAIS
Leasshold Plant and
Improvements Equipment Total
$000 $o00 $000
At 30 Jung 2015 - falr valus
IGIDES CATYINng amount 9,633 11,454 21137
Accumuated depreciation
and impairment (B,148) {10, S36) (19,134}
Med carrying amount 1,035 458 2,005

Reconclliation
A recancillation of the carnying amount of each class of property, plant and equipment at the
beginning and end of the raparting period Is sat ot below:

Leasshold Plant and
Improvements Equipment Total
$7000 $'000 $000
Yaar sndad 30 Juns 20159
Mt carrying amount a1 beginning of year 2,181 264 2445
Addtions - 250 250
Depreciation expense (E4E) (TE] [T22)
Met carrying amount a1 end of year 1,535 458 2,003

Recognition and Maasurament

ACqUISTIoN of properTy, pant and sguipmant

Property, plant and equipmient are Infttally measwed at eost and subsaquently revaleed at fair valus less acoumutated depreciation and
Impalmmant. Cost ks the amount of cash or cash equivalents paid or the falr vale of the ofher consideration given to acquire the assat

at the time of its acquisition or construction or, whers applicabie, the amount atinbutad to Mat 3566t when Initialy recognised i accordance
with the requirements of other AAS.
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HSW EDUCATION STANDARDS AUTHORITY
Motes to the fnanclal statements for the year snded 30 June 2020

Fair value |5 the price thal would be received to 521 an ass&t In an orderly transaction betwean market paricpants at measurement dale.

Whire paymani for an assat Is defemed beyond normal credi terms, [ts cost ks the cash pice sguivalent; |.e. defiemed payment amount Is
effectively flscounted over the period of credit.

As5Ets acquirad at no cost, or for nominal conskieration, are nkially recogrised at their falr value at the date of acquisiion.
cap.mausarran thresholds

Property, plant and equipment and Infanglbie a55ets costing 55,000 and above Individualy o forming part of 3 netwark costing mare than
$5,000) ans capitalised.

Major inspecTon COSIS

When a major inspacion Is parformad, its cost Is recognisad In the camying amount of the plant and equipment 35 3 replacement If the
recognition critera ans satisfied.

RasToranon cosTs

The presant value of the expacted cost for the resioration or cost of dismantling of an asset afler its use s Included In the cost of the
respective asset If the recognition critena for a proviskon are met.

Daprecianon of propay. plant and equupmeant
Except for certain non-degreciabie assets, depreciation Is provided for on @ siraight ine basls 50 3s 1o wiits off the depreciatle amount
of each asset a5 It ks consumed over iBs useful Ife 1o NESA.

Al matenal Kentifable components of assats are depreciated saparately oves thelr useful ves.
Useful lves of each major category of degreciable assets ans:

Piant and Equipment

Computer hardware 3-4ysas
Office fumiture 10-15 years
OfMice equipment i-Syeans
Motor vehicles 7 yeans
Plant and machinery 10 years
Right-of-Use 355816 i-Syeams
Leasehoid IMpravements Unexpired pesiod of the lease

Right-of-Use ASS6IS acquired by Iessses (under AASS 18 from 1 July 2018)
Froem 1 July 2015, AASE 16 Leases (AASE 16) requines 3 Ies5EE 10 recognise a nght-of-use asset for most leases. NESA has

dected o present right-of-usa assets separately on the Stalement of Financlal Posiion.
Further iInformation on |eases |5 contained at Note 12,

MESA has adopted the option to not apply AASS 16 to assets that would be classfied as Service concassion assels i accordance
with AASE 1059 Service Concession ATangements: GrEnfors. NESA continues 10 apply s existing accounting policy to these
Fs5ets Ul AASE 1050 is appiled.

Revaluanon of progamy, plant and equIpment
Physical non-curment assets are valued In accordance with the "Valuation of Phiyskcal Mon-Curment Assets at Falr Valse'

Palicy and Guidelines Paper (TPR14-01). This palicy adopts fair value In accordance whh AASS 13, AASE 116
and AASE 140 investment Property.

Properly, plant and equipment is measured at the highest and best use by market participanis that s physlcally possibie, legaly permissible
and financially feasile. The highest and best use must be avalable al a period that s not remode and take Into accourt the characienstics
of the asset baing measured, Inciuding any socio-poditical restictions iImposad by govemment. In most cases, afer taking Into accout
these considerations, the highest and best use ks the axisting use. In limied cireumstances, the Righest and best use may be a

faasinie altemnative use, whers there are no restrictions on wse or whene thene |5 3 feasibie higher resiricted alternative wsa.

MNon-spaclallsed assets with short u=2ful Ives are maasured at depreciated histoncal cost, which for these assels aporoximales
falr value. NESA has assessed that any diference betwaen falr value and depreciaied histonical cost is unilkedy 1o De material

For obher assats valued using other valuation t2chniques, any balances of accumulated dapraciation at the revaluation dak
In respact of those assets are credited 1o the asset accounts 10 which Mey relate. The net asset accounts ane then Increasad
or gecreased Oy the revaluation Increments or gecrements.
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HEW EDUCATION STANDARDS AUTHORITY
Motes to the financlal statements for the year anded 30 Jung 2020

Impairmeant of progamny, plant and equipment
A5 3 not-for-profit entity with no cash genarating units, Impalmment under AASS 136 Impalment of Assets |s unllkedy o arse. Since

property, plant and equipment is camled at falr value or an amount that approximates fair value, Impalment can oniy artse In the rare
cireumsiances such 3s where the costs of dispesal are material

MESA assessas, al each reporting date, whether there Is an Indication that an asset may be Impaired. If any Indication exdsis, or when
annual Impalrment testing for an asset ks required, NESA estimates the assebs recoverable amount. When the camying amount of an
assel exceeds s recoverable amourd, the asset is considensd Impaired and Is written down to its recoverabie amount.

Speclalised assets held for continuing s of MEr sarvice capactty are rarely 5okl and thelr cost of @isposal Is typleally neghgiie.
Thelr recoverabie amount & expected to be materially the same a5 falr value, whene they are regulany revalued under AASE 13.

A5 a not-for-profit entity, an Impalment loss ks recognised In the net resull 1o the extent the Impalrmeant loss exceeds the amount in the
revaluation surpius for the class of asest.

After an Impalment loss Is recognised, | s reversed only If there has been a change In the assumpiions used o determine the asset's
recoverabie amount. The reversal s Imited so that the camying amount of the assat does not excesd s recoverable amount, nor
exnceed the camying amount that would have been determined, net of deprectation, had no Imparment Ioss Deen recognisad for

the asset In prior years. Such reversal s recognisad In net resull and ks treabed a5 a revalsiion Increase. However, io the extent that
an Impalrment loss on the same class of asset was previously recognised In net resull, a reversal of that Impalment loss Is also
recognised In net result.
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12. Leases

NEZA a5 a lessae

MESA leasss various properties, equipment and mobor vehicles. Lease contracts are typlcally made for fied periods of one to

thrae years, out may have extension opions. Lease tems are negatiaied on an individual basls and contain a wide range of diffenant
termis and condElons. The lease amangements do not Impose any covenants, but leased assete may not be used as secunty for
bamowing purposes. MESA does not provide residual value quaramtess in relation to leases.

Extension and temination opions are included In 3 number of property and aquipmant leases. These terms arne used to maimisa
cperational fiexiblity In tErms of managing contracts. The majorty of extension and temmination options hald are exercisabie only
by MESA and nat by the respective lessar. In determining the leass tarm, management conslders al facis and circumsiances

that creata an economic iIncentve bo exercisa an extension npmn, or not exercise a termination qmun. Extension npmns [ur
pariods after terminasion options) are only included In the IE3se M If the lease Is rEasonably cenaln to be extendad jor not
tarminated). Potential future cash fows have not been ncludad In the lease Kabilty bacause It is not reasonably

cerain that the Ieases will be exiended (or tamminated). The assesSMENt ks reviewsd I 3 Significant event or a signMcant change

In circumstances occurs which afects this assassmant and that s wihin the control of the Iessee. Duning the cument inancial year,
o extenslon or termination npﬂum- Were exarcised.

From 1 July 2018, AASE 15 Leases (AASD 1) requires a lessea to recognisa a right-of-use asset and a comespondng lease lablity
fior most easss.

MESA has eiacted to recognise payments for shor-iemm leasas and low valus 23586 35 SXPSNEEs on 3 sTalght-ing basls, Instzad of
recognising a right-of-use asset and l2ase Iaolity. Short-12mm leases ans leasss with a lease term of 12 months of less. Low value assets
are assets with a falr value of 510,000 or less when new and comprise malniy plant and equipment.

Right-of-use asasts undsar leases
The following table prasents right-of e assets that do not meet e definition of Investmeand property.

Land and
Bulldings Total
$°000 000

Ealance at 1 July 2019 2,698 2,538
Addtions - -
Diepreciation expense [B4E) (648}
Oiher movements - Impalment {113} {113)
Balance at 30 June 2020 2137 2,137
Leasa llabillities
The foliowing tabie presemts labiities under leases.

Lease labiities
Balance at 1 July 201% (2,658)
Remeasuremeant 38
Interast expense {38)
Payments £239
Ealance at 30 June 2020 {12,2685)
The following amounts were recognised In the statement of comprenensive Income for the year enging 30 June 2020 In respact of leases
where HESA Is the lessae:
Depreciation expense of right-of-use assels 645
Interast expense on lease labiities 38
Expense relating to short-term leases 3,078
Expense relating o leases of ow-vale assels TIE
Total amount recognised In the statement of
comprenensive income 540
MESA had total cash outfiows for l2ases of $5.4m In Fr2019-20.
Future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable leases as at
30 June 2019 are, as follows:

Operating Lease
Within one year 5,019
Later than one year and not |t2r than five years 2,293
Later than flve years -
Total including G5T) 7312
Less: G5T recoverable from Australlan Tax Offce 655
Total jexcluding GST) E.EdT
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Recognitien and measuremant {under AASS 18 from 1 July 2013)
MESA assassas 3t contract Inception whether a contract is, or contains, 3 lease. That ks, If the contract conveys e night to control the
uss of an Kentified asset for a period of time In exchange for conskderation.

MESA recognises lease I3olities to make l2ase payments and right-of-us2 as5els representing e nght to use the underiying assats,
except for shori-1emm leases and leases of low-value 3568l

I Right-of-Use 356616

MNESA recognises nght-of-use assate 31 the commencament dale of the lease (Le. the date the undenying asset Is avaladle for use).
Right-of-use assels ane Inftlaly measured at the amount of Infilal measurement of the lease llablity {refer | below), adjusted by amy
lease paymesnts made at or before the commencement date and lease Inceniives , any Initlal direct costs Incumed, and estimated costs
of dismanting and remowing the asset or resionng the site.

The right-of-use 355615 are subsequently measured 3t cost. They are depreciated on a stralghi-ine basis over the shomer of the
Iease temm and the estimated useful Ilves of the assets, a5 follows:
Land and bulldings 3 o 5 years

I camership of the l2ased asset transfers to NESA at the end of e lease term or the cost reflects the exarcise of 3 purchase ogtion,
dapragiation |5 calculatad using the estimaled useful e of the asset

The right-of-use assets are also subject to Impalrment. MESA assesses, at each reporiing date, whether there Is an indication

that an asset may be iImpaired. If amy indication exists, or when annual Impairment testng for an assat Is required, NESA estimates
the assel's recoverable amount. When the camying amount of an asset excesds is recoverable amount, the asset Is consldered
Impaired and ks wiitten down 10 L6 recoverable amount. After an impalmment loss has been recognised, | I8 reversad only [T there
has besn a change In the assumplions usad to determing the assets recoverable amount. The reversal Is Imited so that the
camying amount of the assat does not exceed s recoverable amount, nor excasd the camying amount that would have been
detarmined, net of depreciation, had no Impalrmeant loss been recogrised for the asset In prior years.  Such reversal is

recognised In the net resul.

I Leasa lablites
Althe commencement date of the lease, NESA recogrisee iease llabliles measured at the present value of kease payments to be
made over the lease term. Lease payments include:

* fixed payments [including In substance flxed payments) less any kase Incentlves recelvable;

* varlabie kease payments that depend on an index or a rate;

" amounts expected to be paid under residual value Quaraniess;

* exencise price of a purchase oplion reasonably cerialn o be exerclsed by NESA; and

* paymenis of penalties for terminating the lease, If the l2ase term refiects NESA exercising the option to lerminate.

Vartabiz lease payments that do not depend on an Index of 3 rate are recognised 35 Sxperses (uUnless they are incumed 1o produss
Inwantaries) In the period In which the event or condilon that iriggers the payment ocours.

The leass payments are discountad using the Inberest rate Implct in the lease. 1T that rate cannot be readily determined, which |5
generally the case for NESA's l2ases, the less2e’s Incremental bomowing raie k& wsed, baing the rake thal NESA would have

to pay i bomow the funds necessary bo obtaln an asset of simllar valwee to the fght-of-use assat In a simiar economic environment with
slmiiar tarms, securily and conditions.

After the commencement date, the amount of lease labities ks ncreased 1o rafiect the acoretion of Interss? and reduced for the l2ase
payments made. In addition, the camyling amount of lease lanlites i remeasured If there |s a modifcation, a change In the Iease
tarm, a changs In the lease payments (2.9, changes to fubure paymanis resulting from @ changs In an inday of rate used 1o detemine
such leass payments) of 3 changs In he assessment of an option to purchase the undenying assst

MESA's lease llabiitles are Inciuded In bormowings.

. Short-term leases and ieases of low-value assets

MNESA applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to Its short-term leases of machinery and equipment [Le. thoss leases

that have a kease term of 12 months or lkess from the commencement date and do not contaln a purchase opllon). 1t also applies the
lease of low-value assets recognition exemplion to leases of office eguipment that are considersd to be low value. Lease paymenis on
short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as SxXPenses on 3 siralghi-ine basis over he lease 1em.

Iv. Leases that have significantly balow-mankst terms and conditions principaly to enabie NESA to furiher Bs objectives
The Initial and subseqUEnt measwrament of ight-0f-Use asssts Under leases at signifcantly below-market eems and condltions
that are entered Into principally 1o 2nable NESA to further Bs objectivas IS the same 35 nommal right-of-use assets,

They are measured at cost, subject to Impaimeant.

Recognition and measurement (under AASE 117 untll 30 June 2015)

Thie determination of whather an arrangemeant |s {or contains) a lease ks basad on he substance of the aTangement at the Inception

of the lease. The amangement Is, or containg, a kease If the fuliment of the armangement is dependent on the use of a speciic asset

or assets and the amangement conveys a right to use the assat (or assets), even If that asset (or those asseis) Is not explicily spectfied
In the anrangement.

Urth 30 June 2019, 3 lease was classfed al the Inception date 35 3 Nance lease or an operating lease. A lease that fransfemag
sunstantially all the risks and rewards Inchdental o canership to NESA was classified as a fnance lease.
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Where & non-current asset was acquired by means of 3 finance lease, at the commencemant of he I2ase, the asset was recognised
al Its falr value, or, If lower, 3t the present value of the minimum lease payments. The comesponding Iabilly was estanlished at the
same amour?. Lease payments were apportionsd between firance charges and reduction of the lease bty 5o 35 o achieve 3
constant rate of Interest on the remaining balance af the labiity. Finance charges were recognised In finance costs In the statement
of comprehensive Income.

Property, plant and equigment acquired under finance leasss was depreciated over the usetul e of the asset However, If there
|5 N reasonabie cenainty thal NESA will obiain ownership by the end of the lease temm, the assel was depreciated ower the shomer
of e estimatad w=aful M2 of the asse! and the leasa tamm.

An operating leass 15 3 lease ofher than a inance le3se. Operating IE36e payMEents Were recognisd 35 an 0perating expense In the
statement of comarehenshve INComa on a stralgnt-Ine basls over the lzase term.
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13. Imtangible Assats

Software Total
$°000 $'000
At 1 July 2013
Cest {gross camying amiount) 20,112 20,113
Accumulated amortisation and
Impainmeant {12,037} {12,037}
Med carmying amount BO7E B.O7G
At 30 Jung 2020
Cest {gross camying amiount) 22,286 22 286
Accumuiated amanisation and
Impairment [13.218) {13,215
Med carmying amount 05E 5 066
Softwars Total
$7000 $000
Yaar endad 30 Juna 2020
Med carmying amount a1 beginning of year 5076 B,07E
Additions from Imtemal development 2173 2173
Amartisation [recogrised In
‘depreciation and amortisation’) 1,181} 1,131}
Med carmying amount at end of year 9,055 5,056
Software Total
7000 $on0
At 1 July 2018
Cest {gross camying amiount) 18,609 18,609
Accumuiated amanisation and
Impairmant {10,933} {10,553
Med carmying amount TE TE%
At 30 Junge 2013
Cest {gross camying amiount) 20,112 20,113
Accumuiated amortisation and
Impairment {12,037} {12,037}
Med carmying amount BO7E B07E
Yoaar endad 30 Juna 2013
Med carmying amount a1 beginning of yaar T.E26 T.E26
Addtions from Intemal development 1.204 1,304
Amartisation [recogrised In
‘depreciation and amortisation’) 1,054 1,054)
Med carmying amount at end of year E07E EOTE
Recognitien and Maasursment

MESA recogrises Intanglile assats only I It s probable that future economike benefits wil fiow to MESA and the cost of the asset can

be measured rellably. Intanglole assets are measured Initlally 3t cost. Where an assel Is acquired a1 no or nominal cost, the cost ks s Tar
vale as at the dale of acquisition. Folowing Inftial recognition, Intangibie assels are subsequently measured at falr value only If there ks an
active market. If thens |5 no active market for NESA's Imtangible assats, the assats are carred at cost less any accumulated amarisation
and Imparment loss.

Each year, NESA capitalisss the davelopmant costs related to any new functionalty added to or replaced In the two alectronic
Eysiems used by MESA. These systems are ullised I e operation of the HSC and the adminkstration of Teacher Accreditation.
The costs ane usualy recognisad at year end for the nesw functionalily compieted In that year.

The systems Infrastructure of Doth systems was creatad In pror years.

The agditional moduiss or replacement of functionallty refiect the changing and evoiving responsibliitiss of NESA.

The useful lives nTIntanglue EEE1E ane assess2d 10 e Mnke

MESA's Intanglie assats are amortised using the straight line method over a penod of 3-10 years for sofware Intangibles.

The amortisation perod and the amaortisation mathod far an Infangibde 3seet with a fAnitz Ife are reviewed at least at the end of each
rEgofting perod

Intang ke assats are testad for Imparment where an Indicator of Impalrment exists. If the recoverabie amount is le6s than 115 camying amount,
e camying amount is reduced 1o necoverable amount and the regucton Is recognised &5 an Impalment loss.
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14. Restricted Asasts

15

16

Conaolidated Parent Conaolidated Parent
Entify Entity Entity Entity
2020 2020 2013 2019
$000 £'000 $000 000
The NESA Fund 2,144 2,124 1,730 1,730
5144 5144 1.?ﬂ_EI 1.?ﬂ£
The Educational Siandands Awthority Act 2013 ('the NESA Act) at Section 15 established the Education Sandands Awthonty Fund
{"the NESA Fund’) Into which is 1o be paid teacher acoregitation fees.
Section 15(3) of the NESA Act stipulates that anly costs Incumed by NESA for the accrefitation of teachars and the aversight, maintsnanca
and developmant of taacher quallty are o be pald from the NESA Fund. Such costs Include empioyee related expenses, operating
expenses and other expenditure Incumed by NESA In refation to those functions uner that Act.
Al teacher fees and charges are deposiied Into the NESA fund for which a separate opsrating bank account is heid. Interest earmad from
the Investmernt of money In the NESA Fund ks relinvestad In the NESA Fund.
Saction 15 [4) provides that NESA may Invest the money hekd In the Fund, as applicabie, eiher a5 authorised by the Public Authoriies
{Financial Arangements) &ct 1537 [PAFA Act) of In accordanca with the Trustes Act 1325 (Trustes Act), of 3s aporoved by the Minister
In CONCUITENCE With the Treasurer.
MESA 5 an authority listed In Scheduie 2 to the Public Finance and Audit Act 1363 (PFA Act) and as such, has aumorty to Invest as sed
out In Scheduie 4 Part 2 of the PAFA Act. Part 1 of Schedule 4 of the PAFA Act authorises among ofher Invesiments, deposits with a bank
or the Treasury Corporation.
Currant Liabiities - Payables Conaolidated Parent Conaolidated Parent
Entify Entity Entity Entity
2020 2020 2013 2019
$000 $'000 $000 o000
Acorued salares, wages and on-costs B34 - 7 -
Crediions 4,132 4,132 5,700 5,700
‘Zundry Govemment creditors 473 479 204 204
FRedlef s1alf costs 23 43 ar ar
Uneamed revenue - - 9329 9,329
Persomnel Services - B34 - 207
Other 89 =89 100 100
137 E.137 15,637 .
Detalls regarding liquidity risk Including a maturity analysks of fie above payabies are disclosad n Mote 25,
Recognition and measuremant
Payables represent Iablites for goods and services provwided S0 MESA and other amouris. Shodt-ierm payabies with no stated Interest rate
are measured al the original Involce amount whare the effect of discounting Is Immatenal.
Payables are financial labli?es at amoriised cost, Initially measured at falr value, net of direcy alinibutabie transaction costs. These are
subseguently measurad at amortised cost using the efMacive Interest method. Galns and losses are recognised In net result when the
liabiltles are derecognised as wel 3s through the amortisation process.
From 2019-20, Me transactions Mat previously made up unearned revenus are contract Iabiities under AASE 15 Revenue from Contracis
with Customess [refer o Moie 5).
Currant | Mon-Current Liabllities - Borrowings
Conaolidated Parent Conaolidated Parent
Eniity Entity Entity Entity
2020 2020 2013 2019
$000 £'000 $000 000
Lease lablity - cument (see Mole 12) g41 £21
Lease Eabiity - non-cument [ses Mote 12) 1,628 1,626
2,268 2,269 - -

Detalls regarding Ikquidity risk, Including 3 maturity analysis of the above payables are dlsciosed In Mobs 28,

Recognitien and measurement
Financlal labiites af amortised cost

Eommowings ciassifed as financial labilltles at amortised cost are Initially measured at falr value, net of directly attrioutable Transacion
costs. These are sudsequently measured at amortised cost u=ing the effactive Interest method. Gains and kssas are recognised

In met resull when the llabillties are derecognised as well as through the amortisation process.

From 1 July 3015, lease kablities are defermined In accordance with AASH 16.
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17.  Current { Mon-Cument Liabllitles - Provisions

Currant

Current provislons expecisd to be sstiied within 12 months

Employes bensfts and related on-costs
Annual leave

Redundancies

Long sence leave on-cosis

Payrod tax on LSL payable

Personns] Services

Currant provizlons sxpacisd to be sstiied beyond 12 months

Annual leave
Lorg service leave on-costs
Payrold tax on LSL payable

Personns] Services

Tokal Provialons - Current
Hon-Current

Employss benafts and related on-costs
Long service leave 0n-costs
Fayrod tax on LSL payable

Personnel Services

Total Provialens - Non-current

Apgregate employse bensaflits and related
on-coats

Provisions - currsnt

Provisions - non cument

Acorued salares, wages and on-costs (Mote 15)

Recognitien and Mazsurement
Empioyea banefits and relamad on-coss
Salaries and wages, annual Bave and sick laave

Salarles and wages {INGluding non-manatary benefits), and paid slck leave that are expected to be settied wholy within 12 manihs afer the

Conaolidated Parent Consolidated Parent
Entity Entlty Entlty Entity
2020 2020 2013 2015
£'000 £'000 $000 000
1,459 - 2,656 -
4456 - - -
1,390 - 1,234 -
TG - ETH -
4,11 - 4,589 -
- 4,101 - 4,559

- 4,101 - 4,559
4,066 - 2,092 -
4,066 - 2,092 -
- 4,056 - 2,z

- 4,066 - 2,082
5,187 g,187 6,651 6,651
i - 107 -
a7 - 38 -
188 - 166 -

- 136 - 6,527

- 136 - 6,527

T8E 88 BEIT BEIT
58,167 - 6,651 -
138 - 166 -
B34 - 207 -
9,194 - ] -

end of the penod In which the employaes render the sanvice are recognised and measured at the undiscounted amounts of the Densfil.

Annual leave Is not expected to be settied wholly before 12 months after the end of the annual reporting pesiod In which the employees
render the related service. As such, | Is reguired o be measured at present value In accordance with AASE 119 Empioyes Bensitis

{although short-cat methods are pemitied).

Actuarial advice obtalned by Treasury has confirmed that using the nominal annual leave balance plus the annual lkave entiiements:

accrued while taking annual leave (calculated UEing 7.9% of the nominal vaiue of annual leave) can be used to approdmaie

e present value of the annual l2ave liaDlity. NESA has assessed he actuarial advice based on NEZA's crcumstances and has

determined that the effect of discounting ls Immaterial to annual leave. All annual leave |5 classifed as a curment liabilty even where NESA
does not expect bo satile the Rability within 12 months as NESA does not hawe an unconditional rigit to defer settiemeant.

Urused nor-vesting skck ieave does not give rise to a IabiiRy as It ks not conskdered probable that skck leave taken In the future will be graater

than the benefs accrued In the future.

Long servica fasve and superannuanon

NESA's llaiplities for long senvice leave and gefined benefit suparannuation ane assumad by the Crown Entity. NEZA accounis for

the llanlity a5 having been extinguished, resulting In the amount assumed being shown as part of the non-monetary revenus item described
a5 "Acceptance by e Crown Entity of employes benefis and other labiiies™.
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Long senvice leave ks measured at the present value of expected future payments 1o be made In respect of services provided up io the
reporting date. Consideration is given to certain factors based on actuarial review, Incuting expectad fulure wage and salary iEvels,
experience of employee depariures, and perods of senvice. Expected fubure payments are discounted 1=ing the Commoraealth govemment
bard rate at the raparting date.

The superannuation expansa for the inancial year |5 determined by w=ing the farmulas specified In the Treasurers Directions. The expense
for cenaln sUDeranruation schemes (Le. Baslc Senef and First State Super) s calculated 35 3 percentage of the employe=s’ salary. Faor
other superannuation 5chemes (Le. Siate Superannuation Scheme and Stabe Authorties Supsrannuation Scheme), the expenss Is
calculatad a5 a mulipia of the employess” sUpSrannLaEtion contributions.

Consequential on-costs
Consequential costs to employment are recognised as Iadiites and expenses whare the employes Denems o which they relate have been
recognised. This includes outstanding amounts of payroll tax, waorkers' compensation Insurance premiums and fringe benefits tax.

18. Equity
Recognitien and Maasurament

Accumulared Funds
The category ‘Accumuiated Funds' Includes all cument and prior p2riod retalned fungs.

13, Commitmants

Al balance date there was no capltal expenditure for the acguisilon of goods and services contracted for and not provided.

20. Contingent Liabdiitlas and Contingent Asasts
MNESA Is unaware of any contingent llabillies existing a5 at 30 June 2020

MNESA ks unaware of any contingent assels existing as at 30 June 302,

21. Budgst Review

The budgeted smounts are drawn from tha aniginal budgeted financial statements presented to Parlament In respect of tha reporting
period. Subsequent amendments to the original budget e.g. adjustmant for ransfer of functions bebween enttties as 3 result of
Administrative Arrangaments Orders) ans not refectad in he budgetad amounts. Major varlances Detween the onginal budgsted
amaounts and the actual amounts dsciosed In the finandal statements are explained beiow.

Nar resuit

MESA's Net result was S5m favourabie to budget for the financlal year. The varlance Includes igher revenuss of $13m
offsat by higher expensac of SEM.

The $6m budged varance In expenses ks pimarnly atibautadie to the following:

- empioyes-relatad expenses are 53.2m higher prmarky due to "business as usual” activities.

- aperating expenses are $6.7m higher primarly due to "business as wsual® aclvitles offset by COVID-15 related
delays In expendiure.

- deprecition and amaortisation expenses ane 54.4m lower than budget prmarty due to the iming In the renewal of
leases relating to right-of-use assets.

The 513m budget vanance In revenue is primarly atiributanle o the following:
- additional funding of S15m recalved from the MSW Departmant of Education In order o enabie ongoing core aciiviiss.
- retuced revenues resulting from the Impact of COVID-19.

Assars and Naiimas

Total assets have Increased by 314.5m against budget for the financlal year, primarly due to the following:

- Increased cash balances resufling from additional funding received

- delays In he timing of expendiure arising from the Impact of COVID-19.

- Increases In Imtanglble assets arising from the capitallsation of work undertaken on the electronic Teacher
Accrediation Management System (e-TAMS) and the Examination system.

Total isblities have decrezsad by S0.2m against budget , primarly dus i 3 decrease In payablas.
Cash fows

Closing cash and cash aquivaients are $10.3m higher than budget primarly due o admional Tunding receved from
the Depariment of Education and decreased expendliune associated wihh the cancaliation of activities due to COVID-13,
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22, Reconchllation of Cash Flows from Oparating Activities to
Het Result

Reconcilation of ¢ash fiows from operating actvities to the net result as
reparted in the Statement of Comprehensive Income 35 Tollows:

et cash flows (used) / from operating activiies
Depraciation and amonisation sxpenss

Impairment of ight-of-uss assets

Allowance Tar rﬂFIE.T‘ﬂEITt

Decrease | [increase) In provisions

Ircrease f (decreass) In prepayments and ofner asssts
Increase | (decrease) In coniract assets

Decrease | [increase) In payables

Decreass | {inerease) In contract Babikies

Mat razult

23.  Hon-cash Financing and Investing Activities

Liabities and expensas assumed by the Crown Entity

Conzolidated Parent Consolidated Parent
Enflty Entlty Entlty Entity
2020 2020 2013 2013
000 £000 $000 $000
11,507 11,507 5432 5,432
{2,430) |2,430) {1,776 {1,778)
{113} (113
{950y {e5) - -
{1,528} {1,528) [EBE) |EBE)
13,006 {3,006 {1,045} {1,043}
9,439 3,439 5323 5,323
(8.243) 2ic)
X 3 J ,
Conaolidated Parent Consolidated Parent
Entity Entity Entity Entity
2020 2020 2013 2015
$'000 £000 $000 $000
2777 - 4856 -
2777 - 456 -

24. Trust Funds

MNESA hoids monies donated for the Brather Jotn Taylor Memaral Trest (537,255) and for the Mary Basley Blology Teachers award ($673)
The Brother John Taylr Memarial Trust recognises a HSC student who has overcome significant disadvantage 1o achleve academic
excellence. The Mary Beskey Blology Teachers award recognises outstanding achievement In Blology. Interest eamed from the

Investmeant of these assats Is used to provide cash awands to the reciplents.

A5 NESA perfoms only 3 custodial role In respect of these monles, and because e monies cannot b2 used for the achievement of
NESA'S own objeciives, these funds ane not recognised In the financial slatements. The folowing i a summary of the iransactions In

the trust accounts:

Cash balance at the beginning of the financial year
Add: Receipts
Less: Expendiure

Cash balance at the end of the financlal year

NESA Annual Report 2019-20

Conaolldated Parent Consolldated Parent
Enflty Entlty Entity Entity
2020 020 2015 2018
$000 $'000 $'000 $o00
36 36 36 36
4 4 5 5
3 3 5 5
ar 37 3 36
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25. Financial Instruments

MESA's princlpal financial Instrumeants are outlined below. These financial instruments anse dirscly from NESA's operations
or are required to finance NESA's operations. MESA does not enter Into or trade financial Instruments, Including
derfvatve financial Instruments, far speculative pUrposes.

MESA' maln risks asing from fnancial Instuments are cutlined below, togather with NESA's objectives, polcies and processes
for messuring and managing risk. Further quantitative and qualiative disclosures are Inciuded throughout these inancial
statamients.

The Chiel Executive Officer has overal I'EEP{H'TS‘HH]‘TEI’ the establishment and M'Eriwﬂf nsk rnma;anern and reviews mdagreea
palkias for managing each of these risks. RISk management polickes are estabilshed to identfy and analyse the risks faced by NESA,
b et risk Bmits and controls and to monitor sks. Compllance with policies ks reviewed by NESA on 3 continuous basls.

(&) Fimanclal Instrument categories

Camying Carrying Carrying Carrylng
Amownt Amount Amiount Amount
Consolldated Parent Consolidated Parent
Entity Entity Entity Entity
2020 2020 2013 2013
Class Hots Category $'000 £000 4000 $'000
Financlal Assais
Cash and cash equivalkenis 7 WA 14,211 14,211 5,506 5,506
Recetvanles ] Amortisad cost 5,351 5,381 9,658 o ,E5E
Contract asssts ™ 3 Amortisad cost - -
‘Financial Liabilities
Payaoles """ 15 Financial kablities measured at
amortisad cost 5070 5,070 65,004 6,004
Barrowings - leass latilties 16 Financial kablities measured at
amortisad cost 2,260 2,269 ] ]

* Exciudes statutory recshvables and prapayments Le. not within the scope of AASE 7)

** While contract assets are aiso not inancial assats, they are explity INclugsd In Me scope
of AASET for the pUrpOse of e credH Msk disCiosures.

= Expiutas statlfory payables and uneamed revanue (Le. not within the scope of AASE 7)

MESA getermines the classilication of Bs financlal assets and ladllties after infial recognition and, when allowed and appropriate,
re-evaluates this at each financlal year and.

(b} Derecognitlon of financlal assets and Ananclal llablitties
A financial assat jor, where appiicable, a part of a financlal asset of part of a group of similar financal assets) Is derecognised when the
contractual rights to the cash fliows from the financlal assets expire; or If NESA transfers its rights 1o recalve cash flows from the assel or
has assumied an oblligation to pay the recelved cash fows In ful without material delay to a third party under 3 ‘pass-through’ amangement;
and elther:

- NESA has transferred subsiantially all the risks and rewards of the asset; or

- MESA has nefther ransferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the 3568, but has transfesmed control.

When NESA has transferrad RE rights to recelve cash Nows from an asset or has enterad Into a pass-through arangement, it evalates I,
and to what extent, It has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. Whers NESA has nefther transfemed or refained suostantaily all
e risks and rewards or ransfemad control, the asset continues to be recognised to he extent of NESA'S continuing Involvemen in the
asgel. Inthat case, NESA also racognises an assoclated lablity. The transfemad asset and the assoclated llability are measured on a
basls that refiects the righis and obligations that NESA has retained.

Continuing Invoivement that takes the form of 3 guarantee over the transfemed asset Is measured at the lower of the original camying amount
of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that NESA could be required to repay.

A financial Naolity Is derecognised when the obilgation speciiad I the contract Is dlscharge<d or canceled or expires. WRen an axisting
financial kabilty |5 replacad by anomer from the Same lender on substanbaly diferant terms, of the temms of an existng Iality are
substariially modifad, such an exchange or modfication |s Feated as the darecognition of e original IEbIky and the recogrison of a
new liabillty. The diferancs In the respective camying amounts I recognisad In the net resuit.

|c] Oftzstting Ananclal Instruments
Financlal asssts and financlal labliles are offset and the net amount Is reporied In the Statement of Financial Position I there |5 3 cumently

enforceable lzgal nignt to offset the recognised amounts and there ks an Inkzntion to settie on @ net Dasis, or o realise the assels and sstie
the lablities simukansously.
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{d} Financial riaks
| Credit Risk

Credi risk arises wnen there Is the possibillty Mat the counterparty will defaull on thelr contraciual oblgatons, resulting In 2 inancial

loss to MESA. The masmum exposure to credit risk ks genarally represantad by the carmying amount of the financial assats
{net of any allowance for credi losses or allowance for Impakment).

Credh risk arises from the financlal assets of NESA, Including cash and recalvables. Mo collateral |s held by NESA. NESA has
not granted any nancial guarantess.

Credi risk assoclated with NESA's financial assets, other than recelvables, i managed through the selection of countespartes
and establishment of minimum credlt rating siandards.

MNESA conslters a inancial asset In defaut when contractual payments are 90 days past dwe. Howaver, In certain casas,
NESA may also consider a inancial assat to be In default when intermal or exiemial Information Indicates Mat NESA s unikaly
Lo recedve the ouistanding contraciual amounts in full pefore E3king Imo account any credi enhancements heid by NESA

Cash and cash nqu.rvannm
Cash comprisas ¢ash on hand and bank balances wihin the NSW Treasury Banking System.

Accounuing policy for impairmant of rade recelvables and other Anancial as5e1s

Recelvables - faes recelvable

Accreditation fees recelvable are recognised a8 amounts receivabie at balance date.

Coilectablity of fees ks reviewead on an ongoing basks. Procegures as establshed In the Treasurers Directions are
foliowed to recover outstandling amounts, Including letters of demand.

MESA applles the AASS 3 simplfied approach to measuring expecied credi losses which uses a lifelime expecied loss
for al fee recetvalies.

To maameﬂreemecﬁeﬂ Tt lossaE, TEETEGEHEUEM‘EEEEHQM‘}EH based on shared credit sk characieristics
and the days past dus.

The expached loss rabes are based on histoncal obsarved loss rates. The histoncal loss rales are ad|usted to neflect current
and foraand-iooking Information on macroeconomic factors affecing the abilty of he cusiomers to seflle the recaivables.
MESA has ldentified the GDP and the unemployment rate o be the most relevant factors, and accordingly adjusts

the historcal loss rates based on expecied changes In these factors.

MESA Is exposed to 3 concantration of cradt risk to 3 major group of Sebiors dus 1o the legislative restrictions Imiting NESA to biling

fees from all teachers In Mew South Wales. This exposure Is deemed to be material ($3.740m).

The deitors of NESA represent a large numbser of Individual teachers whose particular credt ratings wil vary and are unknown b NESA.

Fea receivables are written off when thers [= no reasonable expsctation of recovery. Indicators that thers s no reasonable

expectation of recovery Include, amongst others a fallure to make contractual payments for 3 pariod of greater than 90 days past due.

An alowancs for loss s ralsed when thers s objeciive evidence that NESA will not be able to colect amounis due.

This evidence Includes past experience and cument expected changes to the acoregitation process that generates the collection of fees.

Mo Interast Is charged. Accrediaton fees are usually biked on 30 day 1eams.

The loss allowance for fees recelvabies a5 at 30 June 2020 and 2019 was determingd 35 Tollows:

30 June 2020
$000
30-80 &1-20
currant «30 days days days
Expected credt loss rake % % 0% 0%
Estimatad total gross
camying amount at default 4 B z 1
Expected cradt loss - - - -
30 June 2013
30-80 61-30
currant 30 days days days
Expected credt oes rate 1% 1% 1% 1%
Estimatad botal gross
camying amaount at default 2 174 i0 S
Expected credt loss - 1 -

Mofes: e analysis exclides statutony recelvabies, prepayments, 3s these are nat within Me scoge of AASS 7.
Therefore, the total’ will not reconclie to the recetvanles total In Mote & and the contract assets total In Note 9.
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Recaivabias - rade dabrors

Collectablity of trade recelvaibles s reviewsd on an ongolng basks. Procadures as esiablshed In the Treasurer's Directlons are
foliowed to recover outsianding amounts, including letters of demand.

MESA applies the AASS 9 simpified approach to measuring expected credlt losses which usas 3 ifsime expecied lnss
allpwancs for all frade receivwabies.

To measure the expected credit losses, trade recalvables have been grouped based on shared credt fsk charactenstics
and the days past due.

The expected loss rates are based on historcal ooserved Ioss rates. The historcal loss rates are adjusied to reflect curnent
and forward-iooking Infarmation on macroeconamikc factors afecing the ability of the customers to setile the recelvables.
MESA has |dentfied the 0P and the unamploymeant rate (o be the most relevant facions, and accondingly adjusts

the historcal loss rates based on expecied changes In these factors.

Trade recaivables are witien off when there ks no reasonable expectation of recovery. Indicators Mat there & no reasonable
expectation of recovery Include, amaongs? others a falune to make contrachual payments for a period of greater than 90 days
past due.

The loss aliowance for trade recelvabies 3s at 30 June 2020 and 2019 was detemmined 3s fodlows:

30 June 2020
$000
30-50 E1-30 =31 Tofal
Currant 230 days days days days
Expected credt loss rabe 0% % 0% 0% 0%
Estimatad total gross
camying amaunt 1,266 65 & 1 55 1,353
Expected cradt loss - - - - - -
30 June 2013
$000
30-80 8150 =31 Total
Currant «30 days days days days
Expected credt loss rabe % % 0% 0% 0%
Estimatad total gross
carmying amaunt 388 10 4 - 68 5T
Expestsd cradt bss - - - - - -

Moies: the analysls excludes StEtutony recelvables, prepayments, 35 these are not within the scope of AASS 8.
Therefore, the “total’ will nat reconclis 1o the recelvanies total In Note B and the confract assats total In Mote 9.

MESA, Is not materlally exposad to concentrations of credit risk to 3 single trade debior of groun of degtors
a5 al 30 June 2020

Wl Liquidity rizk

Liquidity risk Is the risk that NESA will t= unable to mest its payment cbiligations when they fall due. NESA continuously
manages risk through monttonng future cash Nows and maturities planning to ersure adequate hokling of high qualltty lgukd
assels. The objective |s 1o maintain 3 balance between continuity of funding and Nexibilty through the use of ovendrafis, loans
and other advances. Liquidity risk Is assessed 35 low.

During the cueTent year and prior year there were no defauts on payment obligations. Mo assets have been pedged as collateral.
MESA's exposure to liguidity fsk s deemed nsignificant based on prior periods” data and current assessment of fsk.

Liatdifties are recogised for amounts due to be pald in the Tuture Tor goods or services recefved, whether or not involiced. Amounts

owing 1o suppliers (which ane unsecured) are seftied n accordance with the policy set ot In NSW TC 11-12. For small business suppliers,
whera terms are not spectied, payment ks made not later than 30 days from date of recalpt of 3 comectly rendered Involce. For other
suppilers, If trade terms are not specified, payment Is made not [aber than the end of the month falowing the month In which an Imoice or
a statement ks recelved. Dunng the COVID-19 pandemic NESA has adopted NSW Treasury's Faster Payment scheme, paying suppliers
and contractons as quickly as possie.

For small business suppliers, whene payment ks not made within the spectied tme period, simpie Interest must be

pald automaticaly uniess an existing conract specifies otheraise. For payments to other suppliers, the Chief Executive OfMeer jor a
person appointed by the Chief Executive Officer) may automatically pay the supplier simple Interast.

During the year no peralty Inerest payments were made.
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The table below summartsas the matuity profie of NESA's Tnanclal liablites basad on conraciual undiscounted payments, iogeiher
with the Inbaresi rale exposure.

Inerest rate exposuUne Maturity dates

Waighted

Averags Flxed arlabie Mon-

Effective Mominal Interast Interast Irterest

Int. Rate Amoant 1 Rate Rate Rate = 1year 1-5 years

B 5000 000 F000 F000 000 000

2020
Payaoles - 5070 - - 5,070 - -
Eorrowings - Lease Liabilties 141 2368 641 1,628
2013
Payanies - 6,004 - - 6,004 - -
Moies:

1. The amounis disciosad are the contraciual undiscountad cash fiows of each class of finandal labiities based on the earlest date
on which NES& can be required to pay. The tables Include both interest and principal cash fiows and therefore wil not reconcie
o the ampunts In the Statement of Financial position.

1l Marks# risk

Market risk Is the risk that the falr value or fubure cash flows of 3 inancial Instrument wil Suctuate because of changes In markes pricss.
MESA'S exposures 1o market sk are primarlly through Interest rate risk on NESA'S borrowings. NESA has no exposure to foreign
mﬂqm and doas not enter Inba mmmmtymntm.

The effect on profit and equity due to a reasonably possible change In sk vanable ks outlined In the Information balow, Tor Interest rate
risk and other price risk. A reasonabdy possiole change In risk variabie has besn determined afer taking Into account the conomic
envirarment In which NESA cperates and the time frame for the assessment [Le. wntl the end of the next annual raparting period).
The sereskivity analysls Is based on risk exposures I existence i the Statement of Financial Position reporting date. The analysls

Is performied on the same basls s for 2015, The analysls assumes that &l other varlables remain constant

Intares? rate risk

Inter=st rate fisk IS the MK that e Tair vaue or fuiure c3sN WS o 3 INancial Instrumant wil fuchuate becauss of changes

In market Intenest rates.

MESA has minimal exposure to Interest rate risk from [ts holdings In interest bearing financlal assets.

MESA does not account for any fxad rake fnancial Instruments at fair value through profit or loss or s at falr value through

other comprenensive Income. Therefore, for these fnanclal Instruments, a change In Inferest rates would not aMect profit or loss or equity.

A reasonably possibée change of +/- 1% Is usad, consisient with cument irends In Interest rates (based on ofMclal REA Interest rate voiatiity

ower the last five years). The basls will be reviewsd annually and amended whers there |s 3 structural changs In the level of Imerest rate volatiny.

The foliowing table demonstrates the sensiivity i 3 reasorabdy possiole change In Interest rates:

2020 2013
$7000 $000
% 1% % 1%
Met result (38) 38 (70} 70
Equity [35) 35 [28) 28

(&) Fair vals massurement

L Far wale compared to camying amount
Fair value 15 the price that wouid be received o sell an asset or paid to franster a Iaolity In an ordeny Farsacion Detween
markst paricipants 31 the maasuremant date. The falr value measuremant |s basad on the presumption that the transaction
t sl the ass&t of ranster the IanTy takes place &iMer In (e princlpal mankst for the asset o labillty or I the a0sence of 3
principal marked, In the mast advantageous market for the asset or laolity.
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26. Related Party Disciosuras

MWESA'S key management personnel COMpEnsaton are as folows:

Shoet-enm empioyee benefits:

Salaries
Other monetary allowancas
Mon-monatary benafts

Ofher long-tam empioyes Denems
Post-employmant banafits
Temination benefis

Total remiumeraiion

Conaolidated Parent Conaolidated Parent
Entity Entity Entity Enfity

2020 2020 2019 2ms

$000 000 $000 $'000

5,525 5.525 6,096 6,096

263 53 138 138

645 645 262 262

6,436 &.436 6,497 5,497

MESA enferad Imto no transactions with K2y managemant personnal, thar close family members or thelr controlig entities of jainty

controled enifiss.

MES:A enfercd Into transactions with oiher entiies that are controiled by MSW Govemment. These fransactions In aggregats ars a

slgnificant portion of MESA'S revenue.

During the year NESA fransacted wiih the fallowing NSW govemment agancies:

Department of Egucation (Recument and caphial grant funding and feas for senvicas)
Crown Enifty {Long s2rvice leave, defined benefit superannuation and payroll tax assumed)

Cffice of Siate Revenue (Payroll Tax)
SiCom (Insuranca)

Property M3¥W (Propery rentals)

The Crown Solichior (Legal fess)

The Audit CfMice of NEW (Financial awdi)

27. Events aftar the Reporting Parlod

MESA continues o closaly monior, In consultation with MSW Treasury and the Department of Education, the deveioping COVID-19 situation

and the Impact it will have upon NESA's cperations In 2020-21.

MESA Is not aware of any events afer the financlal year hat have material Impacis on the financial statements for the

year ended 20 June 2020.

End of auditsd financial statemants
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Acronyms and abbreviations

AASE
ACT
AECG
AEC
AHPPC
AISNSW
AMEB
BOSTES
COAG
DD Act
eTAMS
FTE
GIPA Act
HSC
HSCG
ICPA
ISMS
ISO

ITE
ITEC
NAPLAN
NESA
NSW

PD

PFA Act
PPIP Act
PSSE
QTC
RAP
RoSA
RRMP

Australian Association of Special Education

Australian Capital Territory

Aboriginal Education Consultative Group

NESA Aboriginal Education Committee

Australian Health Protection Principal Committee
Association of Independent Schools of New South Wales
Australian Music Examinations Board

Board of Studies, Teaching and Educational Standards NSW
Council of Australian Governments

Disability Discrimination Act 1992

Electronic Teacher Accreditation Management System
Full-Time Equivalent

Government Information (Public Access) Act 2009
Higher School Certificate

Home Schooling Consultative Group

Isolated Children’s Parents’ Association

Information Security Management System

International Organization for Standardisation

Initial teacher education

Initial Teacher Education Committee

National Assessment Program — Literacy and Numeracy
NSW Education Standards Authority

New South Wales

Professional development

Public Finance and Audit Act 1983

Privacy and Personal Information Protection Act 1998
Public Service senior executive

Quality Teaching Committee

Results Analysis Package

Record of School Achievement

Rural and Remote Marking Program (HSC)
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TA Act
TAA
TAFE
VET
WCAG
WWCC
WIRP

Teacher Accreditation Act 2004
Teacher Accreditation Authority
Technical and Further Education
Vocational education and training
Web Content Accessibility Guidelines
Working With Children Check

Witness Intermediary Registration Panel
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Governing Board of the NSW Education Standards Authority and its Committees .............. 68
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Compliance checklist

Requirement Page

Access 75-77
Aims and objectives 7-8, 20-
21, 75-77
Additional matters 79
Charter 65-67
Consultancies n/a
Consumer response 49-52
Digital information security annual attestation statement 85
Disability Inclusion Action Plan 81
Disclosure of controlled entities 79
Economic/other factors affecting the achievement of operational objectives 79
Financial statements 91-124
Funds granted to non-government community organisations 79
Government Information (Public Access) Act 74-78
Human resources 53-57
Identification of audited financial statements 86
Internal audit and risk management policy attestation 60
Investment performance 79
Land disposal 79
Legal change 79
Letter of submission 2
Liability and management performance 79
Management and activities 15-67
Management and structure 9-15
Multicultural policies and services program 80
Numbers and remuneration of senior executives 55
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Requirement Page

Payment of accounts 61-62
Privacy and Personal Information Protection Act 78
Production costs 132
Promotion 47-48
Public interest disclosures 74-78
Research and development 40
Recreation leave and extended leave liability 53
Risk management and insurance activities 60
Summary review of operations 9-67
Website address 132
Work health and safety 56
Workforce diversity 56
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Index

Aboriginal Education, 6-8, 22-25, 56, 82, 125

Acronyms and abbreviations, 125

Audit and risk management, 58-60, 1290

Australian Music Examinations Board (NSW), 8,
47

Charter, 7, 65

Code of Ethics and Conduct, 57
Committees of the NESA Board, 72-73
Compliance checklist, 129

Digital information security annual attestation
statement, 85
Disability Inclusion Action Plan, 81

Financial management, 61
Financial statements, 86

Government Information (Public Access) Act
2009, 74

Higher School Certificate, 44

Home schooling, 37

Human resources, 53

Information security management, 85
Initial teacher education, 27

Multicultural policies and services, 80

NESA Annual Report 2019-20

National Assessment Program — Literacy and
Numeracy (NAPLAN), 46

NESA Board, 9, 68

NSW school curriculum, 39-42

Organisational structure, 15

Payment of accounts, 61

Professional learning, 29

Protection of personal information, 78
Public Service Senior Executive (PSSE), 54

Quality teaching, 26-30

Record of School Achievement, 46
Recreation leave and extended leave liability, 57
Rural and remote education, 51

School registration and accreditation, 31

Staffing and recruitment, 53

Stakeholder engagement, 49

Statement of Expectations, 20

Statutory disclosure requirements, 79

Student assessment, 43-47

Sub-committees of committees of the NESA
Board, 72

Vocational education and training, 41

Work health and safety, 56
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